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HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(lncorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

. (Stock Code: 275)
NOTICE OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a special general meeting of Hanny Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) will be held at Conference Room, 11th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 24th June, 2005 at 10:30 a.m. for the purpose of considering *
and, it thought fit, passing the following ordinary resolution, with or without amendments, as'an
ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the terms of the subscription agreement. (the “Subscription Agreement”) dated 20th April,
2005 entered into between Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited (“CTH”) and Loyal Concept Limited
(“Loyal Concept”) (a copy of which has been produced to the meeting marked “A” and initialied by
_ the Chairman for the purpose of identification), in relation to the subscription by Loyal Concept of
HK$450 million zero coupon convertible note due 2010 in CTH (the “Note™) (a copy of the terms
and conditions of the Note has also been produced to the meeting marked “B” and injtialled by the
Chairman for the purpose of identification), be and are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified and
that the execution of the Subscription Agreement by the directors of the Company be and is hereby
approved, confirmed and ratified and the directors be and are hereby authorised to do all things and
acts and sign all documents which they consider necessary, desirable or expedient in connection with
the transactions contemplated under or which may arise as a result of the performance of. and/or
exercise of rights under the Subscription Agreement and the Note (including without limitation to the
generality of the foregoing, to determine if, when and the extent to which the coaversion rights
attached to the Note is to be exercised from time to time and (if required by the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers (the “Code”) upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Note)
to make a general offer for all the shares of CTH (other than the shares already held) in compliance
with the Code).” .

By the Order of the Board
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles -
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7th June, 2005 -

Registered Office:
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong:

8th Floor, Panl Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon . oo
Hong Kong

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises of:

Executive Directors — Non-executive Directors:~
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles {Chairman) Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning
Dr. Yap, Allan (Managing Director) Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Deputy Managmg Director) -~ Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
Mr. Chan Kwok Hung Ms. Shih, Edith
(alternate to Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning)
Independen: non-executive Directors.—
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the special general meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies
1o attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member may appoint a
proxy in respect of part only of his holding of shares in the Company. Completion and return of an instrument
appointing a proxy will not prectude a member from attending and voting in person at the special general -
meeting,

(o3

Tn order to be valid, the proxy form and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is

signed, or a certified copy of such power of authority, must be lodged at the Company’s branch registrar in -

Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Ceatre, 56 Gloucester

Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the special general
meeling {or any adjourned meeting).




THE CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

?

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should immediately
consult your licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional acccuntant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED. you should at once hand this
circular to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, licensed securities dealer or other agent through whom the sale
or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or the transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoexar for any loss

howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents Wlar. Q
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MAJOR TRANSACTION
SUBSCRIPTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTE OF
CHEUNG TAI HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial adviser to Hanny Holdings Limited

E : SOMERLEY LIMITED

A notice convening a special general meeting of Hanny Holdings Limited to be held at Conference Room, 11th
Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 24th June, 2005 at
10:30 a.m. is set out on pages 178 to 179 of this circular. If you are not able to attend the special general meeting,
you are requested to complete and sign the form of proxy accompanying this circular in accordance with the
instructions printed thereon and return it to the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Secretaries
Limited at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong as
soon as possible and in any event not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.
Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the
meeting or any adjournment of it should you so wish.

7th June, 2005
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context requires otherwise, the following expressions have the following

meanings:
“2005 February CTH

Convertible Notes”

“Aggregate Subscription”

“Aggregate Subscription
Convertible Notes”

“associate”
“Board”

“CTH”

“CTH Announcement”

“CTH Circular”

“CTH Conversion Shares”

“CTH Group”

“CTH Placing”

“CTH Placing Agent”

23

“CTH Placing Agreement

“CTH Placing Convertible
Notes”

the 2% convertible notes due 2008 issued by CTH on 23rd February,
20085, the outstanding amount of which is approximately HK$70 million
as at 19th May, 2005

collectively, the Subscription and the subscription by the Other
Subscribers of the zero coupon convertible notes due 2010 of CTH with
aggregate principal amount of HK$506 million

the zero coupon convertible notes due 2010 with principal amount
of HK$956 million (including the Convertible Note of HK$450 million)
proposed to be issued by CTH by way of direct subscription

has the meaning as defined in the Listing Rules
board of Directors

Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange

an announcement of CTH dated 20th April, 2005 in relation to the
proposed issue of (i) the Aggregate Subscription Convertible Notes; and
(i1) the CTH Placing Convertible Notes

a circular of CTH dated 23rd May, 2005 in relation to the proposed
issue of (i) the Aggregate Subscription Convertible Notes; and (ii) the
CTH Placing Convertible Notes

new CTH Shares which would fall to be issued by CTH upon the exercise
of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note at the then
effective conversion price

CTH and its subsidiaries

the placing of the CTH Placing Convertible Notes pursuant to the CTH
Placing Agreement

Tai Fook Securities Company Limited, a licensed corporation to carry
on regulated activities 1, 3 and 4 for the purpose of the SFO

the conditional placing agreement dated 20th April, 2005 entered into
between CTH and the CTH Placing Agent in relation to the placing of
the CTH Placing Convertible Notes, details of which are set out in the
CTH Announcement

the zero coupon convertible notes due 2010 up to the principal amount
of HK$44 million proposed to be issued by CTH by way of private
placing pursuant to the CTH Placing Agreement




DEFINITIONS

“CTH Shares”

“Companyn

“Completion”

“Convertible Note”

“Director(s)”

“Enlarged Group”

“Fund Subscribers”

“GI'Oup”

“Hong Kong”

“Initial Conversion Price”

“Kopola”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Loyal Concept”

“Maturity Date”

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share Icapital of CTH

Hanny Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange

completion of the Subscription Agreement

the HK$450 million zero coupon convertible note due 2010 proposed to
be issued by CTH and subscribed by Loyal Concept pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement (being part of Aggregate Subscription
Convertible Notes), which entitle Loyal Concept to convert the principal
amount outstanding into CTH Conversion Shares

director(s) of the Company

the Group as enlarged by CTH Shares to be issued to Loyal Concept
upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Note together with the possible acquisition of further CTH Shares by
Loyal Concept pursuant to the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders
of CTH under the Takeovers Code which may be triggered by such
conversion

subscribers of the zero coupon convertible notes due 2010 of CTH with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$356 million, who are funds
managed by global asset management firms

the Company and its subsidiaries
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the initial conversion price of HK$0.44 per CTH Share (subject to
adjustment) of the Convertible Note

Kopola Investment Company Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and a subscriber of the zero
coupon convertible notes due 2010 of CTH with a principal amount of
HK$150 million

3rd June, 2005, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this circular for the purpose of ascertaining certain information for
inclusion in this circular

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Loyal Concept Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Company

the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible Note




_ DEFINITIONS

“Other Subscribers”

“Pacific Wins CTH
Convertible Notes”

€€PRC§5

4‘SFC3!

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“Subscription”

LH}

“Subscription Agreement

“Stock Exchange”
“Takeovers Code”

“HKS”

the Fund Subscribers and Kopola

the HK$15 million 2% convertible notes due 2006 issued by CTH on
6 May 2004, which have been fully converted into CTH Shares as at
19th May, 2005

the People’s Republic of China

the Securities and Futures Commission

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of the
Company

holders of the Shares

the subscription of the Convertible Note by Loyal Concept pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement

the conditional subscription agreement dated 20th April, 2005 entered
into between Loyal Concept and CTH in relation to the Subscription,
subject to the terms and conditions contained therein

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

HANN;) |

VISIONS AHEAD

HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 275)

Executive Directors:— Registered Office:—
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman) Clarendon House
Dr. Yap, Allan {Managing Director) 2 Church Street
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Deputy Managing Director) Hamilton HM 11
Mr. Chan Kwok Hung Bermuda
Non-executive Directors:— Head office and principal
Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning place of business in Hong Kong:—
Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond 8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit 51 Hung To Road
Ms. Shih, Edith Kwun Tong

(alternate to Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning) Kowloon

Hong Kong

Independent non-executive Directors:—
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph

7th June, 2005

To the Shareholders and, for information only,
to the holders of share options granted
under the Company’s share option scheme

Dear Sir/Madam,

MAJOR TRANSACTION
SUBSCRIPTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTE OF
CHEUNG TAI HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

INTRODUCTION

The Company announced on 20th April, 2005 that Loyal Concept, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Subscription Agreement with CTH in relation to the
subscription by Loyal Concept of a zero coupon convertible note due 2010 of CTH with a principal
amount of HK$450 million.

On 8th April, 2005 and 20th April, 2005, CTH entered into (i) eight other subscription agreements
with the Other Subscribers in relation to the subscription by the Other Subscribers of zero coupon
convertible notes due 2010 of CTH with an aggregate principal amount of HK$506 million; and (ii) the
CTH Placing Agreement with the CTH Placing Agent in relation to the placing of zero coupon convertible
notes due 2010 of CTH up to an aggregate principal amount of HK$44 million. Each of the Subscription
Agreement, the other eight subscription agreements and the CTH Placing Agreement are not inter-
conditional on each other. The principal terms of each convertible note to be issued by CTH to Loyal
Concept, the Other Subscribers and the placees of the CTH Placing are the same. Details of the above are
set out in the CTH Announcement and the CTH Circular.




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

The Subscription under the Subscription Agreement constitutes a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Upon-.exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note, Loyal
Concept may become interested in 30% or more of the issued share capital of CTH, thereby triggering an
obligation on the part of Loyal Concept under the Takeovers Code to make a mandatory offer for all the
CTH Shares. Depending on the number of further CTH Shares which may be acquired by Loyal Concept
pursuant to the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH, the acquisition of such additional
equity interests in CTH, when aggregated with the CTH Conversion Shares to be issued to Loyal Concept
on exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note in accordance with Rule 14.22 of
the Listing Rules, may constitute a very substantial acquisition for the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Subscription and the transactions contemplated under the Subscription Agreement
(including the possible very substantial acquisition regarding the acquisition of further equity interests in
CTH pursuant to the mandatory offer) are subject to the approval of the Shareholders in a general
meeting of the Company.

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with, among others, (i) details of the Subscription;
(i1) financial and other information of the Group and the CTH Group; (iii) the pro forma financial
information of the Enlarged Group; and (iv) the notice of the SGM.

THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
Date’

20th April, 2005
Parties to the Subscription Agreement

@) Loyal Concept as the subscriber to subscribe for the Convertible Note with principal amount
of HK$450 million by cash; and

(1i) CTH as the issuer of the Convertible Note

As set out in the CTH Announcement, Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, a non-executive Director, has been
appointed as the chairman and executive director of CTH on 20th April, 2005. Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva is
an independent non-executive director of both the Company and CTH. Each of Mr. Cheung Hon Kit and
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and their respective associates did not hold any CTH Shares as at the Latest
Practicable Date. The Company confirms that to the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the
Directors and having made all reasonable enquiries, notwithstanding the fact that Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
has been appointed as the chairman and executive director of CTH and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva being the
independent non-executive director of both the Company and CTH, each of CTH and its single largest
shareholder is a third party independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules).

The Company confirms that to the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Directors
and having made all reasonable enquiries, each of (i) the Fund Subscribers and their respective investment
managers; and (ii) Kopola and its ultimate beneficial owners is a third party independent of the Company
and its connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules). The Company also confirms that neither the
Company nor Loyal Concept is acting in concert with any of the Fund Subscribers or Kopola in respect
of CTH.
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Conditions of the Subscription Agreement

..

Completion of the Subscription Agreement is conditional upon:—

@)

(i1)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

none of the representations, warranties and undertakings given by CTH pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement having been breached in any material respect (or, if capable of
being remedied, has not been remedied), or is misleading or untrue in any material respect;

none of the representations, warranties and undertakings given by Loyal Concept pursuant
to the Subscription Agreement having been breached in any material respect (or, if capable
of being remedied, has not been remedied), or is misleading or untrue in any material
respect;

the passing of the ordinary resolutions by the shareholders of CTH at the special general
meeting of CTH approving the creation and issue of the Convertible Note to Loyal Concept
and the issue and allotment of the new CTH Shares to Loyal Concept resulting from the
exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note;

the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange agreeing to grant the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the new CTH Shares to be issued and allotted as a result of the exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note;

the compliance of any other requirements under the Listing Rules and the Takeovers Code
or otherwise of the Stock Exchange and the SFC which requires compliance in relation to
the creation and issue of the Convertible Note and the new CTH Shares to be issued and
allotted as a result of the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note;

(where required) the Bermuda Monetary Authority granting its permission to the creation
and issue of the Convertible Note and the issue and allotment of the new CTH Shares
resulting from the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note;

the obtaining of all consents from any relevant persons which are necessary or desirable in
connection with the creation and issue of the Convertible Note (and, where such consents

are given subject to conditions, such conditions are on terms as may be reasonably acceptable
to CTH);

CTH having produced to Loyal Concept a legal opinion issued by a firm of Bermudan
lawyers that CTH is duly incorporated and in good standing and that it has full power to
enter into the Subscription Agreement and the Subscription Agreement is and (when executed
and subject to fulfilment of the conditions of the Subscription) the Convertible Note will be
legal, valid and binding on it and enforceable in accordance with the respective terms
thereof;

CTH having confirmed that the aggregate principal sum of convertible notes (including that
under the Convertible Note) to be issued partly by private placing and partly by direct
subscription shall not be less than HK$1,000 million and that such amount, after deducting
all related expenses, shall be payable to, and for the account of, CTH; and

the passing of the necessary resolution(s) by the Shareholders at a general meeting of the
Company approving, inter alia, the Subscription and the transactions contemplated under
the Subscription Agreement.

Conditions (i), (viii) and (ix) are waivable by Loyal Concept whereas condition (ii) is waivable by
CTH. If any of the conditions has not been fulfilled or (as the case may be) waived by 5:00 p.m. on 31st
July, 2005 (or such other date as the Company and CTH may agree in writing), the Subscription Agreement
shall terminate and the respective obligations of the parties thereto under the Subscription Agreement
shall forthwith cease and terminate.
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Completion

Completion is to take place on the third business day after the date upon which the conditions
stated in the section headed “Conditions of the Subscription Agreement” above are fulfilled or, as the
case may be, waived, or such other date as the Company and CTH may agree.

" The Group intends to fund the subscription of the Convertible Note by its internal resources and/or
debt financing and/or equity fund raising exercises. As at the Latest Practicable Date, no decision has
been made as to whether or when or the extent to which the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Note are to be exercised by Loyal Concept. The Group does not have present intention to exercise the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note within 12 months after Completion. The Group has no
intention to inject any assets or businesses into the CTH Group after the completion of the Subscription
and after the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note by Loyal Concept.

THE CONVERTIBLE NOTE
Principal terms
Aggregate principal amount: HK$450 million

Initial Conversion Price: 0.44 per CTH Share, subject to adjustments in certain events
including, among other things, share consolidation, share
subdivision, capitalisation issue, capital distribution and rights
issue. If at any time after the first anniversary of the issue date of
the Convertible Note, the average closing price per CTH Share
for 20 consecutive trading days is higher than HK$0.85 (subject
to adjustments in the events of share consolidation or share
subdivision), all the then outstanding Convertible Note will be
deemed to be converted at the then prevailing conversion price.

Interest rate: 0% per annum

Maturity: The fifth anniversary from the date of issue of the Convertible
Note.

Redemption: Unless previously converted and cancelled, CTH will redeem the

Convertible Note on the Maturity Date at the redemption amount
which is 110% of the principal amount of the Convertible Note
outstanding. Before the Maturity Date, CTH or any of its subsidiary
may purchase the Convertible Note at any price as agreed based
on arm’s length negotiation between CTH or such subsidiary and
Loyal Concept. Further announcement will be made by the
Company in the event that the Convertible Note is repurchased.

Transferability: The Convertible Note is freely transferable but may not be
transferred to a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of CTH without the prior written consent of CTH.

Conversion period: Loyal Concept shall have the right to convert, on any business
day commencing from the 15th day after the date of issue of the
Convertible Note up to and including the date which is 15 days
prior to the Maturity Date, the whole or any part (in an amount or
integral multiple of HK$500,000) of the principal amount of the
Convertible Note into CTH Shares at the then prevailing conversion
price.
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Voting: Loyal Concept will not be entitled to receive notice of, attend or
vote at any meeting of CTH by reason only of it being the holder
of the Convertible Note.

Listing: No application will be made for the listing of the Convertible
Note on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange. An
application will be made by CTH for the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the CTH Conversion Shares to be issued as a result of
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Note.

Ranking: The Convertible Note will rank pari passu with all other present
and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of CTH.

Based on the terms of the Convertible Note, the expected yield to maturity of the Convertible Note
is approximately 1.9% per annum.

CTH Conversion Shares

The CTH Conversion Shares to be issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the
Convertible Note will rank pari passu in all respects with all other CTH Shares in issue at the date of
conversion of the Convertible Note.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Company or its subsidiaries and connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) was interested in any CTH Shares. Upon full conversion of the Convertible
Note at the Initial Conversion Price, Loyal Concept will be interested in a total of 1,022,727,272 CTH
Conversion Shares, representing approximately 250.3% of the existing issued share capital of CTH of
408,614,553 CTH Shares and approximately 71.5% of the issued share capital of CTH as enlarged by the
1,022,727,272 CTH Conversion Shares.

Conversion price

The Initial Conversion Price of HK$0.44 per CTH Share was arrived at after arm’s length negotiation
between Loyal Concept, the Other Subscribers and CTH and represents:

. a premium of approximately 8.6% over the closing price of HK$0.405 per CTH Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 24th March, 2005, being the last trading day immediately
before trading in the CTH Shares was suspended pending the release of the CTH
Announcement;

. a premium of approximately 3.8% over the average closing price of HK$0.424 per CTH
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last 10 trading days up to and including 24th
March, 2005;

. a premium of approximately 8.6% over the closing price of HK$0.405 per CTH Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the Latest Practicable Date; and

. a discount of 27.9% to the unaudited adjusted consolidated net asset value of HK$0.61 per
CTH Share on the basis of 408,614,553 CTH Shares in issue as at 19th May, 2005 (as set out
in the CTH Circular) and taking into account (i) the unaudited consolidated net asset value of
the CTH Group of HK$130.0 million as at 30th September, 2004; (ii) the net proceeds from
the issue of the Pacific Wins CTH Convertible Notes which have been fully converted into
CTH Shares, details of which are set out in the announcement of CTH dated 24th March,
2004; (iii) the placing of CTH Shares in December 2004, details of which are set out in the
announcement of CTH dated 28th December, 2004; and (iv) the placing of CTH Shares and
convertible note of CTH in December 2004, details of which are set out in the announcement
of CTH dated 15th December, 2004.

-
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¥

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE OF CTH

Set out below is a table showing (i) the shareholding structure of CTH as at 30th September, 2004;
(ii) the shareholding structure of CTH as at the CTH Announcement; (iii) the shareholding structure of
CTH as at 19th May, 2005 (as set out in the CTH Circular); (iv) CTH’s shareholding structure upon
completion of the Aggregate Subscription and full conversion of the Aggregate Subscription Convertible
Notes at the Initial Conversion Price; and (v) CTH’s shareholding structure upon completion of the
Aggregate Subscription and the CTH Placing and full conversion of the Aggregate Subscription Convertible
Notes and CTH Placing Convertible Notes at the Initial Conversion Price, assuming that (a) all the CTH
Placing Convertible Notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$44 million are successfully placed by
the CTH Placing Agent; and (b) there will be no change to the existing issued share capital of CTH after
the CTH Circular:

Upen completion

of the Aggregate

Subscription and
the CTH Placing and
full conversion of the

Upon completion
of the Aggregate

Subscription Aggregate Subscription

As at 19th May, 2005

and full conversion
of the Aggregate
Subscription Convertible

Convertible Notes and
CTH Placing
Convertible Notes

As at 30th As at the date of the (as set out in Notes af the Initial at the Initial
September, 2004 CTH Announcement the CTH Circular) Conversion Price Conversion Price
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of

CTH Shares % CTH Shares % CTH Shares % CTH Shares % CTH Shares %

Lunghin Enterprise Inc.

(Note 1) 28,558,196 222 28,558,196 79 28,553,196 7.0 28,558,196 1.1 28,558,196 1.1
Subscribers
Four Fund Subscribers
(Note 2) - - - - - - 443181818 172 4431818318 165
Other Fund Subscribers - - - - - - 365,909,092 142 365,909,002 136

Loyal Concept - - - - - - 1022721212 396 1022,721.272 381

Kopola - - - - - - 340,909,090 132 340909090 128
- - - - - - L172721212 842 21177272 8L
Placees of the CTH Placing - - - - - - 100,000,000 37
Public 100,294460 778 332437311 921 380,056,357 93.0 380,056,357 147 380,056,357 142
Total 128,852,656 100.0 360,995,507 100.0 408,614,553 1000 2,581,341,825 (00,0 2,681,341.825  100.0
IeT—— i e— o e " s m— —

Notes:
I. Lunghin Enterprise Inc. is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, whose entire issued share capital

is beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Cho Tseung, an executive director of CTH.

2. Being four of the Fund Subscribers with total subscription amount of HK$195 million which are established and
managed by a common investment manager licensed by the SFC.

In accordance with the terms of the Convertible Note as set out in the paragraph headed “The
Convertible Note” above, Loyal Concept shall have the right tc convert, on any business day commencing
from the 15th day after the date of issue of the Convertible Note up to and including the date which is 15
days prior to the Maturity Date, the whole or any part (in an amount or integral multiple of HK$500,000)
of the principal amount of the Convertible Note into CTH Shares at the then prevailing conversion price.
If at any time after the first anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible Note, the average closing
price per CTH Share for 20 consecutive trading days is higher than HK$0.85.(subject to adjustments in
the events of share consolidation or share subdivision), all the then outstanding Convertible Note will be
deemed to be converted at the then prevailing conversion price.
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Depending on the then shareholding structure of CTH and the extent to which the conversion
rights of the Convertible Note are to be exercised by Loyal Concept, Loyal Concept may become interested
in 30% or more of the enlarged issued share capital of CTH upon conversion of the Convertible Note. In
such circumstances, Loyal Concept will be obliged to make a mandatory offer to the shareholders of
CTH to acquire all the CTH Shares, other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by Loyal
Concept and parties acting in concert with it, in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. Loyal
Concept will comply with the relevant requirements of the Takeovers Code in such event that an obligation
for a mandatory general offer arises.

In the event that Loyal Concept is obliged to make a mandatory offer to the shareholders of CTH
pursuant to the Takeovers Code as mentioned above, further CTH Shares may be acquired by Loyal
Concept in addition to the CTH Conversion Shares acquired upon conversion of the Convertible Note.
Depending on the number of further CTH Shares which may be acquired by Loyal Concept pursuant to
the aforesaid mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH pursuant to the Takeovers Code, the
acquisition of such additional equity interests in CTH, when aggregated with the CTH Conversion Shares
to be issued on exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note in accordance with
Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules, may constitute a very substantial acquisition for the Company under the
Listing Rules.

INFORMATION ON CTH

CTH is an investment holding company and the subsidiaries of which are principally engaged in
(1) property development and investment; (ii) trading of motor cycles and spare parts; and (iii) the sale
and manufacture of “Tung Fong Hung” branded Chinese pharmaceutical and health products, as well as
the production and distribution of western pharmaceutical products.

The following table sets out a summary of the audited consolidated results of the CTH Group for
each of the two years ended 31st March, 2003 and 2004 and unaudited consolidated results for the six
months ended 30th September, 2004 extracted from the relevant annual reports and interim report of
CTH, details of which are set out in Appendix II to this circular:

For the
six months ended For the year ended
30th September, 31st March,
2004 2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(unaudited) (audited) (audited)
Turnover 175,398 63,514 41,276
Gross profit 49,893 2,079 2,534
Loss before taxation 551 37,791 65,332
Loss for the period/year 1,017 29,612 51,556
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The following tablé sets out a summary of the audited consolidated balance sheet of the CTH
Group as at 31st March, 2004 and the unaudited consolidated balance sheet as at 30th September, 2004
extracted from the relevant annual report and interim report of CTH, details of which are set out in
Appendix 1II to this circular:

As at 30th As at 31st
September, 2004 March, 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000

(unaudited) (audited)
Non-current assets 92,784 8,580
Current assets 251,510 223,681
Current liabilities (184,140) (102,085)
Net current assets 67,370 121,596
Non-current liabilities (30,112) -
Capital and reserves 130,042 130,176

REASONS FOR THE SUBSCRIPTION

It is stated in the CTH Announcement and the CTH Circular that the CTH Group is open for
property investment opportunities and has decided to further expand its investment properties portfolio in
high quality residential and commercial buildings in Hong Koag and other areas that the board of CTH
may think fit. The board of CTH intends that all the net proceeds from the issue of the Aggregate
Subscription Convertible Notes and the CTH Placing Convertible Notes of approximately HK$996 million
will be used for expanding the investment properties portfolio of CTH when opportunities arise.

Given the gradual recovery of the economy in Hong Kong and the recent upturn in property prices,
the Directors are of the view that the outlook of the local property market is positive and consider it an
opportune time to invest in the property business. In light of the above intended use of proceeds from the
Subscription and the expansion plan of CTH, the Directors consider that the Subscription represents a
good opportunity for the Group to participate in the property business by leveraging on the extensive
experience of the management of CTH in the property business. The conversion rights attached to the
Convertible Note give the Group flexibility to acquire a controlling stake in CTH should the Directors
consider it appropriate. Should the Company exercise the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Note and become the controlling shareholder of CTH, the Group would be able to benefit from the
growth potential in property business in which the CTH Group is engaged.

Based on the above, the Directors consider that the Subscription is in the interests of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole and the terms of the Subscription Agreement to be fair and reasonable as
far as the Shareholders are concerned.

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE SUBSCRIPTION

The Subscription will not have any material effect on the net assets position and earnings of the
Group.

Set out in Appendix III to this circular is the pro forma financial information of the Enlarged
Group, after taking into account the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note by
Loyal Concept and the further equity interests in CTH which may be acquired by Loyal Concept pursuant
to the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH pursuant to the Takeovers Code as mentioned
in the paragraph headed “Shareholding structure of CTH” in this letter.
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The Company has recently entered into certain transactions (the “Previous Transactions™), details
of which are set out in announcements of the Company dated 19th April, 2005 and 29th April, 2005
respectively. According to the Company’s latest published accounts made up for the six months ended
30th September, 2004 as set out Appendix I to this circular, the Company had total assets of approximately
HK$3,493 million and net assets of approximately HK$1,827 million as at 30th September, 2004. Given
this asset backing, the Company is confident that it will be able to source additional funding in the debt
and/or equity market. The Board is therefore confident that the Group would have the financial capability,
sufficient resources and working capital to complete the Previous Transactions, the Subscription and the
aforesaid further acquisition of equity interests in CTH in the event that the mandatory offer is triggered
through internal resources and/or debt financing and/or equity financing.

PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the trading of computer related products, consumer electronic
products which comprise the manufacturing, distribution and marketing of data storage media (primarily
floppy disks, CD-R, CD-RW and DVD), the distribution and marketing of computer accessories and
storage media drives, scanners, audio and video cassettes, minidisks, household electronic products and
telecommunication accessories and securities trading. The Group also made strategic investments in
information technology, supply of household consumer products and other businesses. The Company
itself is an investment holding company.

Operationally, the Group is in the process of consolidating its Canadian warehouse into its U.S.
operations, which will reduce operating expenses and improve inventory management. This consolidation
will be fully implemented in the third fiscal quarter. The Group is also currently reviewing its supply
chain in Europe to refocus on better execution in the retail channel. Going forward, the Group will be in
a very good position with the retail trade and expect to continue this trend over 2005 as media categories
evolve to new technologies.

Growth in the six months ended 31st March, 2005 was also driven by increased sales of USB flash
drives which started to show signs of strong growth in the first quarter of 2005. The Group’s introduction
of alkaline batteries in both the U.S. and Europe is gaining strong distribution in the retail channel.

As the Group looks to the six months ended 31st March, 2005 and the year ending 31st March,
2006, the Group envisages strong DVD revenue and unit growth along with significant growth within the
USB segment. The Group’s strategy is to position Memorex® as a leader in the USB drive segment
through increased advertising and retail placement. Both of these initiatives should help drive continued
revenue growth in financial year 2006.

IMPLICATIONS OF THE LISTING RULES

The Subscription under the Subscription Agreement constitutes a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Depending on the number of further CTH Shares which may be acquired by
Loyal Concept pursuant to the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH pursuant to the
Takeovers Code as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Shareholding structure of CTH” in this letter, the
acquisition of such additional equity interests in CTH, when aggregated with the CTH Conversion Shares
to be issued on exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note in accordance with
Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules, may constitute a very substantial acquisition for the Company under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Subscription and the transactions contemplated under the Subscription
Agreement (including the possible very substantial acquisition regarding the acquisition of further equity
interests in CTH) are subject to the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.
No Shareholders will be required to abstain from voting on the Subscription and the transactions
contemplated under the Subscription Agreement (including the possible very substantial acquisition
regarding the acquisition of further equity interests in CTH).
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SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice convening the SGM, at which an ordinary resolution will be proposed to the Shareholders
approving the Subscription and the transactions contemplated under the Subscription Agreement (including
the possible very substantial acquisition regarding the acquisition of further equity interests in CTH), is
set out on pages 178 to 179 of this circular.

There is a form of proxy for use at the SGM accompanying this circular. If you are not able to
attend the SGM, you are requested to complete the form of proxy accompanying this circular in accordance
with instructions printed thereon and return it as soon as possible and in any event not later than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the SGM. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude you from attending and voting in person at the SGM or any adjournment of it if you so wish.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider the Subscription and the transactions contemplated under the Subscription
Agreement (including the possible very subscription acquisition regarding the acquisition of further
equity interests in CTH) are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole and
recommend the Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution set out in the notice of SGM
contained in this circular.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the appendices to this circular.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
Hanny Holdings Limited
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman
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APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

1. THREE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Set out below is a summary of the audited consolidated profit and loss account of the Group for
each of the three years ended 31st March, 2002, 2003 and 2004 and its audited consolidated
balance sheet as at 31st March, 2002, 2003 and 2004 as extracted from the annual reports of the

Company:

Results

Turnover

Profit (loss) before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) before minority interests

Minority interests

Profit (loss) for the year

Assets and Liabilities

Non-current assets
Net current assets

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests
Non-current liabilities

_ 14—

Year ended March 31,

2002 2003 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(As restated)
4,373,909 4,162,804 5,009,930
(75,044) (570,474) 121,639
2,686 36,041 27,846
(77,730) (606,515) 93,793
24,725 42,105 80,493
(102,455) (648,620) 13,300
At March 31,
2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(As restated)
1,671,193 1,604,463 1,643,529
801,566 477,410 645,756
2,472,759 2,081,873 2,289,285
2,247,168 1,729,567 1,873,181
214,611 174,598 405,157
10,980 177,708 10,947
2,472,759 2,081,873 2,289,285
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

2, AUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1)

Audited financial statements

Set out below are the audited consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement of the
Group and the balance sheet of the Company together with the relevant notes to the financial
statements as extracted from the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31st

March, 2004:

“Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended March 31, 2004

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Profit before impairment loss on investment
securities
Impairment loss on investment securities

Profit (loss) from operations

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Impairment loss on goodwill arising on
acquisition of an associate

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries and
associates

Amortization of goodwill arising on
acquisition of associates

Allowance for loans to associates

Profit (loss) before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) before minority interests
Minority interests

Profit (loss) for the year
Dividends

Earnings (loss) per share — basic

-15 -

Notes

10

11

14

15

16

2004 2003
HK3$’000 HKS$’000
(As restated)

5,009,930 4,162,804
(3,921,842) (3,248,769)
1,088,088 914,035
117,563 96,980
(688,528) (685,793)
(283,709) (278,968)
{4,598) {38,608)
228,816 7,646
- (323,287)
228,816 (315,641)
(26,440) (31,669)
(73,463) (32,397)

- (104,585)

10,377 25
(17,651) (6,612)
- (79,595)
121,639 (570,474)
27,846 36,041
93,793 (606,515)
80,493 42,105
13,300 (648,620)
11,221 -
HK$0.08 HKS$(4.05)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At March 31, 2004

Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Interests in associates
Investments in securities
Long-term loans receivable
Deferred tax assets

Current Assets
Other asset
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Investments in securities
Short-term loans receivable
Margin loans receivable
Tax recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Margin loans payable

Bills payable

Taxation

Borrowings - due within one year

Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year

Bank overdrafts

Net Current Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Minority Interests

Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings — due after one year
Obligations under finance leases
— due after one year
Amount due to a minority shareholder
Deferred tax liabilities
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Notes

17
18
20
21

34

22
23
24
21

25

26

27

28
29

26

27
30

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
(As restated)

79,503 84,112
428,019 337,873
906,409 271,362
189,220 887,630
4,898 10,188
35,480 13,298
1,643,529 1,604,463
145,085 -
877,409 505,165
738,820 486,609
132,634 209,270
208,538 163,520
32,373 51,095
488 3,810

- 19,226
164,360 224,573
2,299,707 1,663,268
1,272,283 890,572
840 1,609
4,939 2,481
2,496 23,194
349,059 244,473
1,068 1,113
23,266 22,416
1,653,951 1,185,858
645,756 477,410
2,289,285 2,081,873
1,866 1,603
1,871,315 1,727,964
1,873,181 1,729,567
405,157 174,598
7,921 172,995
462 1,557
2,428 2,406
136 750
10,947 177,708
2,289,285 2,081,873
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Balance Sheet
At March 31, 2004

Non-current Assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current Assets
Other receivables
Investments in securities
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities
Other payables

Borrowings — due within one year

Net Current Liabilities

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Non-current Liabilities
Amount due to a subsidiary
Borrowings — due after one year

-17 -

Notes

19

21

26

28
29

19
26

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$'000
2,770,417 2,766,199
1,969 1,971

813 944

65 288

2,847 3,203
21,631 25,139
149,333 -
170,964 25,139
(168,117) (21,936)
2,602,300 2,744,263
1,866 1,603
1,787,391 1,700,185
1,789,257 1,701,788
813,043 877,475
- 165,000

813,043 1,042,475
2,602,300 2,744,263
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the vear ended March 31, 2004

At April 1, 2002
- as originally stated
- prior period
adjustment
{note 2)

- as restated
Currency realignment
not recognized in
the consolidated
income statement

[ssue of shares
Reduction of nominal
value of shares
Transfer from share
premium 10
contributed surplus
Transfer from
contributed surplus
to retained profits
Impairment loss on
goodwill recognized
in the consolidated
income statement
Loss for the year

At March 31, 2003
and April 1, 2003

Currency realignment
not recognized in the
consolidated income
statement

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Share of reserves of
associates

Realized on partial
disposal of
shareholding in
a subsidiary

Realized on disposal of
a subsidiary

Profit for the year

Dividends paid

At March 31, 2004

Attributable to:

The Company and
subsidiaries

Associates

Currency  Capital

Share Share  Capital Contributed translation redemption Other  Retained
capifal premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserves profits Total
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
160,301 1,974,542 (138,749)  (69,936) (18387} 592 - 338805 2,247,168
- - - - - - - 6,616 6,616
160301 1,974,542 (138.749)  (69.936)  (I8,387) 592 - 345421 2,253,784
- - - - 19,793 - - - 19,793
2 23 - - - - - - 25
(158,700) - - 158,700 - - - - -
- (1.974,565) - 1974565 - - - - -
- - - (460,000) - - - 460,000 -
- - 104,585 - - - - - 104585
- - - - - - - (6486200  (648.620)
1,603 - (34,164) 1,603,329 1,406 592 - 156801 1,729.567
- - - - 15,236 - - - 15,236
263 99,934 - - - - - - 100,197
- (713) - - - - - - (13)
- - - - - - 14,448 - 14,448
- - 12,027 - - - - - 12,027
- - 556 - (216) - - - 340
- - - - - - - 13,300 13,300
- - - - - - - (122 1220
1,866 99221 (21,581) 1,603,329 16,426 592 14448 158,880 1,873,181

99,221 {21,581) 1.603,329 12915 592 - 282,851

- - - 351 - 14,448 (123971

99221 (21,381) 1,603,329 16.426 592 14448 158880
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended March 31, 2004

2004 ¢ 2003
HK3'000 HKS$’000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) from operations 228,816 (315,641)
Adjustments for:
Interest income (22,728) (38,646)
Net unrealized holding (gain) loss on other investments (16,829) 26,482
Net gain on disposal of investment securities (9,577) -
Gain on disposal of other asset (5,660) -
Amortization of intangible assets 44,137 14,338
Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories 24,679 12,277
Depreciation and amortization of property,
plant and equipment 19,632 21,271
Allowance for loans receivable 16,653 22,056
Allowance for margin loans receivable 5,300 2,429
Impairment loss on goodwill arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary 4,598 -
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 3,208 36,534
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 696 3,373
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 1,305
Impairment loss on investment securities - 323,287
Write off of long-term loans receivable - 5,706
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 292,925 114,771
Increase in inventories (367,669) (51,963)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (552,508) 290,747
Decrease in other investments 38,877 73,089
Decrease in margin loans receivable 13,422 72,153
Increase in trade and other payables 468,621 103,195
Decrease in margin loans payable (769) (20,502)
Increase in bills payable 2,458 402
Cash (used in) generated from operations (104,643) 581,892
Interest and finance charges paid (14,155) (36,451)
Overseas tax paid {41,262) (19,978)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) 104 (772)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (159,956) 524,691
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2004 2003
Notes HKS$’000 HK$'000
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of short-term loans receivable 288,623 945,376
Proceeds from partial disposal of shareholding
in a subsidiary 274,085 -
Interest received 21,093 33,353
Amounts repaid by associates 19,797 19,006
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 19,226 72,574
Proceeds from disposal of investment securities 9,957 -
Loans repaid by associates 6,496 1,949
Dividend received from an associate 4,257 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 3,127 1,844
Increase in short-term loans receivable (465,317) (1,141,929)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 31 (130,508) ' -
Acquisition of an associate (19,348) (217,195)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,726) (16,457)
Acquisition of patent (8,065) -
Additions to other assets (5,425) -
Disposal of subsidiaries 32 &3} 1,998
Acquisition of investment securities - (6,041)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 267 (305,522)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank loans raised 575,079 858,840
Proceeds from issue of shares 99,484 25
Other loans raised 94,396 326,185
Repayments of bank loans (606,873) (899,972)
Repayments of other loans (56,239) (443,185)
Dividends paid (11,221) -
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (1,137 (3,417
Amount advanced from a minority shareholder - (39)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 93,489 (161,563)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (66,200) 57,606
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 202,157 141,269
EFFECT OF FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 5,137 3,282
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR 141,094 202,157
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash 164,360 224,573
Bank overdrafts (23,266) (22,416)
141,094 202,157
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2004

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are set out in note 41.

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice No. 12 Income Taxes (“SSAP 12 (Revised)”) issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. The principal effect of the implementation of SSAP 12
(Revised) is in relation to deferred tax. SSAP 12 (Revised) requires the adoption of a
balance sheet liability method, whereby deferred tax is recognized in respect of all
temporary differences beiween the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, with limited exceptions. In the absence of any specific transitional
requirements in SSAP 12 (Revised), the revised accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively. Comparative amounts for 2003 have been restated accordingly.

As a result of this change in policy, the balance of retained profits and minority
interests at April 1, 2002 has been increased by HK$6,616,000 and HK$6,218,000
respectively representing the cumulative effect of the change in policy on the results
for the periods prior to April 1, 2002. The change has resulted in an increase in the
profit for the year of HK$8,877,000 for the year ended March 31, 2004 (2003: an
increase in loss for the year of HK$148,000).

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified for the revaluation of certain properties and investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are set
out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to March 31 each year.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the

effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary or an associate at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to April 1, 2001 continues to be held in reserves
and will be charged to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant
subsidiary or associate, or at such time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to April 1, 2001 which was capitalized and
goodwill arising on acquisitions after April 1, 2001 are capitalized and amortized on
a straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is included within the carrying amount of the associate.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the
balance sheet.

Trademark licenses

Trademark licenses are stated at cost less amortization and any identified impairment
loss. Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of the trademark licenses over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.

Patent

The patent is measured initially at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognized when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Sales of investments in securities are recognized on a trade-date basis when contracts
are executed.

Sales of other asset are recognized upon the execution of a binding sale agreement.

Internet service income and royalty income are recognized when services are provided.
Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from properties let under
operating leases, is recognized on a straight line basis over the period of the respective

leases.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
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Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by paragraph 80 of SSAP
17 “Property, plant and equipment” from the requirement to make regular revaluations
of the Group’s land and buildings which had been carried at revalued amounts prior
to September 30, 1995. Accordingly, no further revaluation of land and buildings will
be carried out.

Depreciation and amortization are provided to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, on a straight line
basis, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land Over the period of the leases
Buildings 2.5% - 5%

Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

Moulds 25% - 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% ~ 33%

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in the income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost, less
any identified impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results of its associates for the year. Where the financial year end of an associate
does not co-terminate with the Group’s year end, the financial statements of that
associate draw up to its year end are used to account for the Group’s share of its
result. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the
Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any identified impairment loss.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognized on a trade date basis and are initially measured
at cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment
securities or other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic
purpose, are measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, less any identified

impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included
in the results for the year.
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Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at revalued amount under another accounting standard, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
accounting standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at revalued amount under another accounting standard, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that accounting
standard.

QOther asset
Other asset is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net realizable value represents the estimated
selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.

Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease when the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets concerned to the Group. Assets
held under finance leases are capitalized at their fair values at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of interest charges, is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease. Finance costs, which represent the difference between
the total commitments and the outstanding principal amount at the inception of the
finance leases, are charged to the income statement over the period of the relevant
leases so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balances
of the obligations for each accounting period.
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Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong Dollars are initially recorded at the
rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are
dealt with in the income statement.

In preparing consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
overseas operations which are denominated in currencies other than the Hong Kong
Dollars are translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred
to the Group's currency translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognized
as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be uzilized. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited
in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the period of the relevant leases.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as expenses as
they fall due.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold and
securities traded by the Group to outside customers and is summarized as follows:

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Sales of goods 4,974,981 4,084,798
Securities trading 34,949 78,006
5,009,930 4,162,804
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has determined
that business segments are its primary reperting format and geographical segments
are its secondary reporting format.

Business segments
The Group is currently operating into three business segments, namely trading of

computer related products, consumer electronic products and securities. Segment
information about these businesses is presented below:

2004
Income Statement

Trading of Trading of

computer consumer
related electronic Trading of
products products securities Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover
External sales 3,737,278 1,237,703 34,949 5,009,930
Segment result 206,695 21,881 20,804 249,380
Interest income 22,728
Unallocated corporate
expenses (43,292)
Profit from operations 228,816
Finance costs (26,440)
Share of results of associates (73,463)
Net gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and associates 10,377

Amortization of goodwill
arising on acquisition

of associates (17,651)
Profit before income tax 121,639
Income tax expense 27,846
Profit before minority interests 93,793
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2004
Balance Sheet
Trading of
computer
related
products
HKS$’000
Assets
Segment assets 2,109,537
Interests in associates
Investment securities
Unallocated corporate
assets
Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 1,110,026
Borrowings
Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Other information
Addition of goodwill arising on
acquisition of an associate
Addition of intangible assets other
than goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary
Addition of goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss recognized
Other non-cash expenses
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Trading of
consumer
electronic

products
HK$'000

1,561

Trading of
computer
related
products
HK$’000

198,065

16,946
61,640

17,972

Trading of
securities
HK$'000

132,964

Corporate
HK$'000

208,760

4,598
780
2,129
4,598
24,820

Consolidated
HK$'000

2,244,062
906,409
188,890

603,875

3,943,236

1,110,026
356,980

197,892

1,664,898

Consolidated
HK$'000

208,760

198,065

4,598
17,726
63,769

4,598
42,792
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2003
Income Statement

Trading of Trading of

computer consumer
related electronic Trading of
products products securities Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(As restated)
Turnover
External sales 2,975,181 1,109,617 78,006 4,162,804
Segment result 97,875 20,177 (110,408) 7,644
Interest income 38,646
Unallocated corporate
expenses (38,644)
Profit before impairment
loss on investment securities 7,646
Impairment loss on
investment securities (323,287)
Loss from operations (315,641)
Finance costs (31,669)
Share of results of associates (32,397)

Impairment loss on goodwill
arising on acquisition of

an associate (104,585)
Net gain on disposal of
subsidiaries 25

Amortization of goodwill
arising on acquisition of

an associate ‘ (6,612)
Allowance for loans to

associates (79,595)
Loss before income tax (570,474)
Income tax expense 36,041
Loss before minority interests (606,515)
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Balance Sheet

Trading of
computer
related
products
HK$'000

Assets

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Investment securities

Unallocated corporate
assets

1,395,363

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 883,844
Borrowings
Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Other information

Addition of goodwill

Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss recognized
Other non-cash expenses
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Trading of
consumer
electronic

products
HK$'000

983

Trading of
computer
related
products
HK$°000
(As restated)

199,590
15,810
33,657

76,669

Trading of

Consolidated
HK$'000
(As restated)

1,590,266
271,362
902,980

503,123

3,267,731

883,844
417,468

62,254

1,363,566

Consolidated
HK$ 000
(As restated)

199,590
19,447
35,609

324,592
82,375
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Geographical segments

The Group’s trading of computer related products is mainly located in North America
and Europe. The trading of consumer electronic products is mainly located in North
America and the trading of securities is mainly located in Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sale revenue by geographical
market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

Sales revenue by
geographical market

2004 2003

HK$§000 HK$°000

North America 4,222,099 3,483,037
Europe 564,896 484,362
Hong Kong 35,836 70,618
Africa 51,312 25,917
Japan 38,986 41,617
Others 96,801 57,253
5,009,930 4,162,804

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions
to property, plant and equipment, analyzed by the geographical area in which the
assets are located:

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Carrying amount
of segment assets

2004 2003 2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000

Hong Kong 1,248,216 1,265,517 1,742 4359
North America 1,180,872 905,828 10,944 10,843
Europe 392,483 184,075 4,717 4,080
Taiwan 253,034 291,384 234 124
Others 405,132 269,756 89 41
3,479,737 2,916,560 17,726 19,447

Intangible assets of HK$428,019,000 (2003: HK$337,873,000, as restated) and deferred
tax assets of HK$35,480,000 (2003: HK$13,298,000, as restated) are excluded from
the analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets as there are not practicable to
allocate the amounts to geographical segments.
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6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income includes the following items:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Exchange gain 31,467 18,974
Interest income 22,728 38,646
Net unrealized holding gain on other investments 16,829 -
Net gain on disposal of investment securities 9,577 -
Gain on disposal of other asset 5,660 -
Internet service income 3,363 5,262
Royalty income 2,722 3,063
7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2004 2003
HK$'000 HKS$'000

Impairment loss on goodwill arising on acquisition of
a subsidiary 4,598 -
Net unrealized holding loss on other investments — 26,482
Write off of long-term loan and interest receivable - 10,821
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 1,305
4,598 38,608
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PROFIT (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

Profit (loss) from operations has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Depreciation and amortization:
Amortization of intangible assets
(included in administrative expenses)
Depreciation and amortization on property,
plant and equipment:
~ Owned assets
— Assets held under finance leases

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Allowance for loans receivable

Allowance for margin loans receivable

Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories
Auditors’ remuneration

Net realized (gain) loss on other investments

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable
within five years:
- Bank loans and overdrafts
- Other loans
- Finance leases
Interest on bank loans not wholly repayablz
within five years
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2004 2003
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
170,261 151,729
3,160 3,854
173,421 155,583
44,137 14,338
19,298 20,816
334 455
63,769 35,609
3,208 36,534
16,653 22,056
5,300 2,429
24,679 12,277
9,204 7,003
(3,975) 83,926
696 3,373
2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$’000
12,070 10,458
13,229 20,360
587 244
554 607
26,440 31,669
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10.

11.

12.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE

During the year ended March 31, 2003, the directors of the Company reviewed the
carrying value of goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate, which had been
debited to capital reserve in previous years, with reference to the financial performance
and the business operations of this associate. The associate was mainly engaged in
the marketing of electronic products and other peripherals. In view of the prevailing
market condition, operating results and the discounted cash flow projections of this
associate, an impairment loss of HK$104,585,000 had been identified and recognized
in the consolidated income statement.

NET GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Gain on partial disposal of shareholding in a subsidiary 28,594 ~
Net loss on deemed disposal of shareholding
in associates (16,935) -~
(Loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries (1,282) 25
10,377 25
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$°000
Directors’ fees - -
Other emoluments (executive directors)
Salaries and other benefits 4,952 7.175
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 130 378
5,082 7,553
Compensation for loss of office paid to
a former director by:
The Company - -
The Company’s subsidiary 625 -
5,707 7,553
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Number of directors

2004 2003
The emoluments are within the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 10 10
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 ~
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - 1

No remuneration was paid during the year to non-executive directors or independent
non-executive directors.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group. None of the directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid individuals included one director (2003: two directors), details

of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2003: three) individuals are as follows:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries and other benefits 9,788 8,802
Performance related incentive payments 3,307 1,064
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 381 50
13,476 9916

Their emoluments are within the following bands:

Number of employees

2004 2003

HKS$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - 2
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 -
4 3
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000
(As restated)

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax

(Over)underprovision in prior years (112) 141
Overseas o 46,378 31,773
46,266 31,914

Deferred tax (note 34)

Current year (20,810) 286
Attributable to a change in tax rate 13 -
(20,797) 286

Share of tax on results of associates 2,377 3,841
27,846 36,041
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The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss) before
income tax as follow:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$ 000

Profit (loss) before income tax 121,639 (570,474)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate

of 17.5% (2003: 16%) 21,286 (91,276)
Tax effect of share of results of associates 15,233 9,021
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (2,113) (34,407)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purposes 28,594 60,068
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized 641 9,392
Utilization of tax losses not previously recognized (18,495) (24,706)
Tax effect on deferred tax assets not reccgnized - 8,965
Utilization of deferred tax assets

not previously recognized (11,270) -
Recognition of unused tax loss

which is not recognized

in previous years (10,450) -
(Over)underprovision in prior years (112) 141
Effect of different tax rates of

subsidiaries operating in

other jurisdictions 3,001 98,654
Others 1,518 189
Increase in opening deferred tax

liability resulting from

an increase in tax rate 13 -
Income tax expense for the year 27,846 36,041

No tax is payable on the profit for the year arising in Hong Kong since the assessable
profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2003: 16%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the year. In June 2003, the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate was increased from
16% to 17.5% with effect from 2003/2004 year of assessment. The effect of this
increase has been reflected in the calculation of deferred tax balances as at March 31,
2004.

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at rates prevailing in respective
jurisdictions.
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15.

16.

DIVIDENDS
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Final, paid — HK2 cents per share for 2003 (2002: nil) 3,206 -
Interim, paid ~ HKS cents per share for 2004 (2003: nil) 8,015 -
11,221 ~

The final dividend of HK6 cents per share (2003: HK2 cents per share), in cash with
a scrip option, has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the profit for the
year of HK$13,300,000 (2003: loss of HK$648,620,000, as restated) and on the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year of 164,239,677 shares
(2003: 160,303,174 shares).

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2004
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as the
exercise price of those options is higher than the average market price for shares for
the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended March 31, 2003 had not
assumed the exercise of the Company’s share options because the exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

In respect of adjustments to the comparative figure of basic loss per share arising
from the adoption of SSAP 12 (Revised) for the year ended March 31, 2003, there is
no significant impact on the basic loss per share for the year ended March 31, 2003.
No restatement for basic loss per share has been made accordingly.
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Plant and and Motor
buildings machinery =~ Moulds equipment  vehicles Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'600

The Group
Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2003 48,846 43,569 2,97 84,212 7,802 187,490
Currency realignment 331 - - 3,473 9 3,813
Additions - - - 16,518 1,208 17,726
Disposals (3,155) - - (6,061) (3,047)  (12,263)
At March 31, 2004 46,022 43,509 2,971 98,142 6,062 196,766
Comprising:
At cost 17,815 43,569 2,971 98,142 6,062 168,559
At valuation - 1994 28,207 - - - - 28,207

46,022 43,569 2,971 98,142 6,062 196,766

Depreciation and

amortization
and impairment
At April 1, 2003 9,617 37,867 2,955 48,538 4,401 103,378
Currency realignment 7 - -~ 2,682 4 2,693
Provided for the year 1,012 1,470 7 15,968 1,175 19,632
Eliminated on disposals (2,056) - - (4,456) (1,928) (8,440)
At March 31, 2004 8,580 39,337 2,962 62,732 3,652 117,263
Net book values
At March 31, 2004 37,442 4,232 9 35,410 2410 79,503
At March 31, 2003 39,229 5,702 16 35,674 3,491 84,112
The Group’s land and buildings comprise:
2004 2003
HK$000 HK$’000
Outside Hong Kong:
Under medium-term leases in other regions of
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) 25,050 25978
Freehold in Taiwan 12,392 12,151
Under a medium-term lease in Macau - 1,100
37,442 39,229
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18.

The valuation of land and buildings in 1994 was made by Messrs. American Appraisal
Hong Kong Limited, an independent firm of Chartered Surveyors, on an open market
value basis.

Had the revalued land and buildings been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization, their carrying amount would have been stated at HK$21,157,000
(2003: HK$21,862,000).

Included in the net book value of property, plant and equipment are assets held under
finance leases amounting to HK$1,985,000 (2003: HK$2,660,000).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trademark
Goodwill licenses Patent Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(note a} (note b) {(note c)
The Group
Cost
At April 1, 2003
- as previously reported 354,665 91,318 - 445,983
- adjustment
on adoption of
SSAP 12 (Revised) {1,982) - - (1,982)
— as restated 352,683 91,318 ~ 444,001
Additions 4,598 190,000 8,065 202,663
Eliminated on partial
disposal of
shareholding in
a subsidiary (69,857) - - (69.,857)
At March 31, 2004 287,424 281,318 8,065 576,807
Amortization
At April 1, 2003 85,962 20,166 - 106,128
Provided for the year 32,768 10,899 470 44,137
Impairment loss
recognized in the
consolidated
income statement 4,598 - - 4,598
Eliminated on partial
disposal of
shareholding
in a subsidiary (6,075) - - (6,075)
At March 31, 2004 117,253 31,065 470 148,788
Net book values
At March 31, 2004 170,171 250,253 7,595 428,019
At March 31, 2003 266,721 71,152 - 337,873
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19.

Notes:

a. The amount as at March 31, 2003 represented the goodwill on the acquisition of the businesses of
Memtek Products Division of Tandy Corporation and Memorex Computer Supplies in 1993 and
the acquisition of an additional 14.9% interest in Memorex International Inc., a subsidiary of the
Company in 2003, The goodwill is amortized over an average of seventeen years on a straight
line basis.

During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying value of the goodwill arising on acquisition
of a subsidiary of HK$4,598,000 and identified an impairment loss of HK$4,598,000 which was
charged to the consolidated income statement.

b. The amount as at March 31, 2003 represented the acquisition of the “Memorex” trademark
licenses from Memorex Telex N.V. in 1999. Trademark licenses are amortized over twenty years
on a straight line basis.

During the year, the Group acquired the “Dysan” and “Precision” trademark licenses from an
independent third party for a consideration of HK$190,000,000 with reference to the valuation
performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent valuers. Trademark licenses

are amortized over ten years on a straight line basis.

c. The amount represents the acquisition of a labelmaker patent during the year. The patent is
amortized over ten years on a straight line basis.

In the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss in respect of the carrying value of
goodwill, the trademark licenses or the patent is considered necessary.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2004 2003

HK$°000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares 118,373 118,373
Amounts due from subsidiaries 5,026,854 5,022,636
5,145,227 5,141,009

Less: Allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries (2,374,810) (2,374,810)
2,770,417 2,766,199

Amount due to a subsidiary 813,043 877,475

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the values of the underlying
separable net assets of the subsidiaries when Hanny Magnetics (B.V.I.) Limited
(“Hanny BVI”) together with its subsidiaries were acquired by the Company.

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. Repayment of the amounts will not be demanded within one year of the

balance sheet date and, accordingly, the amounts are classified as non-current.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at March 31, 2004 are set out in note
41.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000
Share of net assets (liabilities) of associates which are:
- listed in Hong Kong (note a) 463,234 -
— listed overseas (note b) 169,770 184,574
— unlisted (15,459) (12,229)
Goodwill on acquisition of associates less amortization
(note c) 256,629 65,520
874,174 237,865
Loan to an associate less allowance (note d) 1,361 7,651
Amounts due from associates (note d) 30,874 25,846
906,409 271,362
Market value of listed shares 320,500 134,561
Notes:
a. At March 31, 2003, an amount of approximately HK$698.4 million included in investments in

securities represented the Group’s 14.55% equity interest in CSHL. In September 2003, the
Group acquired an additional interest of 16.65% in CSHL for a consideration of approximately
HK$19.3 million. Accordingly, the investment in CSHL was increased to 31.20% and it was
reclassified from investments in securities to interests in associates.

CSHL is company listed in Hong Kong and its financial year end date is December 31. Only
published financial information of CSHL. will be available and used by the Group in applying the
equity method. Accordingly, the Group’s share of interest in CSHL at March 31, 2004 is calculated
based on the net assets of CSHL at December 31, 2003 and the result from the date of which
CSHL became an associate of the Group to December 31, 2003.
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The following details have been extracted from the published financial information of CSHL, the

Group’s significant associate:

Financial position:

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities and minority interest

Net assets

Net assets attributable to the Group

Turnover

Loss from ordinary activities before taxation and minority interests

Loss from ordinary activities before taxation and minority interests

attributable to Group

12.31.2003
HK$ 000

1,124,597

1,064,647
(161,090)
(494,774)

1,533,380

463,234

1.1.2003
to 12.31.2003
HK$’000

2,884,493

(169,184)

(56,996)

The following details have been extracted from the financial information of the Group’s significant

associate, PSC Corporation Ltd.:

Financial position:
Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities and minority interest

Net assets

Net assets attributable to the Group

Turnover

Profit (loss) from ordinary activities before taxation and

minority interests

Profit (loss) from ordinary activities before taxation and

minority interests attributable to the Group
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3.31.2004 3.31.2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
473,982 376,171
403,316 513,082
(152,958) (191,929)
(142,831) (124,550)
581,509 572,774
159,624 157,226
4.1.2003 5.1.2002
to 3.31.2004 to 3.31.2003
HKS$°000 HK$°000
664,125 619,467
31,923 (12,432)
8,763 (3.413)
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Goodwill arising on acquisition of associates:

HK$’000

Cost
At April 1, 2003 72,132
Additions 208,760
At March 31, 2004 280,892
Amortization
At April 1, 2003 6,612
Provided for the year 17,651
At March 31, 2004 24,263
Net book value
At March 31, 2004 256,629

A
At March 31, 2003 65,520

|

The amortization period adopted for goodwill for a period of 10 years.

In the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss in respect of the carrying value of the goodwill
is considered necessary.

Loan to an associate is unsecured and has no fixed terms of repayment. Other than an amount of
HK$1,336,000 (2003: HK$7,516,000) which bears interest at prevailing market rates, the remaining
amount is interest free. The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the balances will not be repayable
within one year of the balance sheet date and, accordingly, the amounts are classified as non-
current.

Details of the Group’s principal associates at March 31, 2004 are set out in note 41.
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INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investment securities Other investments Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

The Group
Listed securities
Hong Kong - 698,407 126,114 108,548 126,114 806,955
Overseas - - 850 984 850 984
Unlisted securities
Hong Kong - - 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
Overseas (note) 188,890 204,573 - 78,388 188,890 282,961

188,890 902,980 132,964 193,920 321,854 1,096,900

Market value of
listed securities - 10,839 126,964 109,532 126,964 120,391

Carrying amount
analyzed for
reporting
purposes as:

Non-current 188,890 887,300 330 330 189,220 887,630
Current - 15,680 132,634 193,590 132,634 209,270

188,890 902,980 132,964 193,920 321,854 1,096,900

The Company
Listed securities
overseas, at
market value - - 813 944 813 944

Note: Included in unlisted overseas investment securities is a 8.04% (2003: 8.04%) interest in Fu Yang
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Fu Yang”). Fu Yang is established in Taiwan on April 21, 2002 by the
merger of Indigo Investment Co., Ltd., Solitaire Investment Co., Ltd., Vituoso Investment Co.,
Ltd. and Ultima Investment Co., Ltd. Fu Yang is mainly engaged in the cable broadcasting
business in Taiwan.

In the opinion of the directors, the investments in investment securities are worth at
least their carrying values.
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23.

OTHER ASSET

The amount represents cost incurred in connection with a land development project in
the PRC. The project is a land development of 2 ¥ 5% B & % & located at Doumen
District, Zhuhai City and is to be jointly developed with an independent third party.
The Group is entitled to the exclusive development right to the project and also the
right to obtain the land for the development (the “Other Asset”). The Group is also
entitled to sell the Other Asset to investors for a consideration to be agreed between
themselves.

The consideration of HK$150,000,000 for obtaining the exclusive development right
was paid by the Group during the year whilst RMBS5,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,425,000) was already paid by the Group for obtaining certain
parts of the right for land development and for site formation.

As the directors are of the opinion that the Other Asset is held for sale, the cost
incurred for the Other Asset is included in current asset accordingly.

The directors has assessed the carrying value of the Other Asset with reference to the
valuation performed by Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent valuers, on
an open market value basis as at March 31, 2004 and no impairment loss is identified.

INVENTORIES

The Group
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$'000
Raw materials 6,769 9,459
Work in progress 1,435 2,702
Finished goods 869,205 493,004
877,409 505,165

Included above are raw materials of HK$109,000 (2003: HK$371,000) and finished
goods of HK$269,854,000 (2003: HK$104,422,000) which are carried at net realizable
value.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Included within trade and other receivables is a trade debtor balance of
HK$685,025,000 (2003: HK$397,764,000). The Group allows an average credit period

of one to two months to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors:

The Group
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$000
Not yet due 624,041 354,824
Overdue within one month 52,433 26,561
Overdue between one to two months 2,099 6,916
Overdue more than two months 6,452 9,463
685,025 397,764
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26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included within trade and other payables is a trade creditor balance of HK$827,620,000

(2003: HK$632,561,000).

The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors:

The Group
2004 2003
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Not yet due 445,088 319,505
Overdue within one month 116,373 99,484
Overdue between one to two months 50,321 35,422
Overdue more than two months 215,838 178,150
827,620 632,561
BORROWINGS
The Group The Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Borrowings comprise:
Bank loans 205,641 237,468 - -
Other loans 151,339 180,000 149,333 165,000
356,980 417,468 149,333 165,000
Analyzed as:
Secured 159,583 107,140 - -
Unsecured 197,397 310,328 149,333 165,000
356,980 417,468 149,333 165,000
The above amounts bear interest at prevailing market rates and are repayable as follows:
Within one year or
on demand 349,059 244.473 149,333 -
Between one and
two years 266 165,238 - 165,000
Between two and
five years 940 843 - -
Over five years 6,715 6,914 - -
356,980 417,468 149,333 165,000
Amount due within
one year and shown
under current
liabilities (349,059) (244,473) (149,333) -
Amount due after
one year 7,921 172,995 - 165,000
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Amounts payable
under finance leases:
Within one year 1,117 1,181 1,068 1,113
In the second to fifth
year inclusive 536 1,868 462 1,557
1,653 3,049
Less: Future finance
charges (123) (379)
Present value of lease
obligations 1,530 2,670 1,530 2,670

Less: Amount due for
settlement
within one year
(shown under
current
liabilities)

Amount due for
settlement
after one year

(1,068) (1,113)

462 1,557

The Group has leased certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The
average lease term is 2 years. For the year ended March 31, 2004, the average effective
borrowing rate was 9.32% (2003: 12.51%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract
date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered

into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charge over

the leased assets.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
shares Value
HK$’000
Authorized:
At April 1, 2002 (HK$0.025 each) 26,000,000,000 650,000
Consolidation of shares of 40 into 1 (25,350,000,000) -
Adjustment of nominal value of shares 64,350,000,000 -
Cancellation of shares (45,000,000,000) (450,000)
At March 31, 2003 and 2004 (HK$0.01 each) 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
At April 1, 2002 (HK$0.025 each) 6,412,057,523 160,301
Exercise of warrants 70,595 2
Consolidation and adjustment of
nominal value of shares (6,251,824,916) (158,700)
At March 31, 2003 (HKS$0.01 each) 160,303,202 1,603
Issue of new shares (note a) 21,500,000 215
Exercise of share options (note b) 4,750,000 48
At March 31, 2004 (HKS0.01 each) 186,553,202 1,866
Notes:
a. On January 28, 2004, arrangements were made for a private placement to independent private

investors of 21,500,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company held by ITC Corporation Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, in cash at a price of HK$4.00 per share representing a
discount of approximately 8% to the closing price of HK$4.35 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on January 28, 2004.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same date, ITC Corporation Limited subscribed for
21,500,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of HK$4.00 per share. The
proceeds were used to provide additional working capital for the Company. These new shares
were issued under the general mandate granted to the directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on August 28, 2003 and rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all
respects.

b, During the year, 4,750,000 shares in the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the exercise

of 4,750,000 share options at subscription price of HK$2.9888 per share. The shares issued
during the year rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.
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RESERVES

The Group

The contributed surplus of the Group at March 31, 2004 represented:

(1)

(i1)

(iif)

the credit arising from the transfer of the share premium account of the Group
as at February 20, 1998 and February 19, 2003 to the contributed surplus
account of the Group;

the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the shares of the
Company in 1999 and 2003; and

as reduced by amounts transferred to the deficit account to eliminate the deficit
of the Group as at January 31, 2000, January 31, 2001 and March 20, 2003.

The Company

Capital Retained

Share Contributed redemption profits
premium surplus reserve (deficit) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At April 1, 2002 1,974,542 437 592 (20,069) 1,955,502
Premium arising from issue

of shares 23 - - - 23
Transfer from share

premium to

contributed surplus (1,974,565) 1,974,565 - - -
Transfer from contributed

surplus to deficit - {460,000) - 460,000 -
Reduction of nominal

value of shares - 158,700 - - 158,700
Loss for the year - - - (414,040 (414,040)
At March 31, 2003 and

April 1, 2003 - 1,673,702 592 25,891 1,700,185
Premium arising from ,

issue of shares 99,934 - - - 99,934
Share issue expenses (713) - - - (713)
Loss for the year - - - (794) (794)
Dividends paid - - - (11,221) (11,221)
At March 31, 2004 99,221 1,673,702 592 13,876 1,787,391

The contributed surplus of the Company at March 31, 2004 represented:

¢y

(i1)

the difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of Hanny BVT at
the date on which its shares were acquired by the Company, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued as consideration for the acquisition;

the credit arising from the transfer of the share premium account of the Company

as at February 20, 1998 and February 19, 2003 to the contributed surplus
account of the Company;
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(ii1)  the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the shares of the
Company in 1999 and 2003; and

(iv)  as reduced by amounts transferred to the deficit account to eliminate the deficit
of the Company as at January 31, 2000, January 31, 2001 and March 20, 2003.

Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

1. it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or
2. the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders were as follows:

2004 2003

HK$°000 HK3$'000

Contributed surplus 1,673,702 1,673,702
Retained profits 13,876 25,891
1,687,578 1,699,593

AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER
The amount is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. Repayment

of the amount will not be demanded within one year of the balance sheet date and,
accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current.
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ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Zhuhai Hanny Property
Investment Limited (“Zhuhai Hanny”) for a consideration of HK$150 million.

The acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$4,598,000.

2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$’000

Net assets acquired
Other asset 150,000 -
Other payable (4,598) -
145,402 -
Goodwill 4,598 —
Total consideration 150,000 -

Satisfied by:

Cash 130,508 -
Deferred consideration (note 33(a)) 19,492 -
150,000 -
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Net assets disposed of

Investment in securities

Amounts due from group companies
Bank balances and cash

Amounts due to group companies
Amounts due to associates

Tax payable

Attributable capital reserve
Currency translation reserve realized

(Loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:

Cash
Other payables

Net cash (outflow) inflow arising from
disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash disposed of

2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$'000
78,388 -
157,353 15,000
5 2
(8,853) -
(1,433) -
(22,531) (13,027)
202,929 1,975
556 -
(216) -
203,269 1,975
(1,282) 25
201,987 2,000
- 2,000
201,987 -
201,987 2,000
- 2,000
(5) 2)

(5) 1,998

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year did not contribute significantly to the
turnover and the results of the Group. The cash flow contributed or utilized by the

subsidiaries disposed of during the year was not significant.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended March 31, 2004, the major non-cash transactions were as
follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(2)

(h)

The Group acquired Zhuhai Hanny for a consideration of HK$150,000,000.
The remaining consideration of HK$19,492,000 was unsettled as at March 31,
2004.

The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries of HK$201,987,000 of which
HK$124,387,000 was set off by other payables of the same amount under a
deed of assignment entered into between the Group and a relevant party. The
remaining amount of HK$77,600,000 was satisfied by another payable of the
same amount.

The Group acquired trademark licences for a consideration of HK$190,000,000
which was partly satisfied by short-term loans receivable and other receivables
of HK$40,699,000 and HK$81,871,000, respectively under various deeds of
novation and agreements entered into between the Group and relevant parties,
and was partly satisfied by cash of HK$20,000,000. The remaining consideration
of HK$47,430,000 was unsettled as at March 31, 2004.

The Group restructured certain of its short-term loans receivable of
HK$42,165,000 and other receivables of HK$19,360,000 satisfied by the amount
of other loans of HK$43,275,000 and other payables of HK$18,250,000,
respectively under various deeds of novation entered into between the Group
and relevant parties.

The repayment of other receivables of HK$38,710,000 was satisfied by the
other loans of HK$23,543,000 and interest payables of HK$15,167,000 under
an agreement between the Group and relevant parties.

The repayment of a short-term loan receivable of HK$22,866,000, an interest
receivable of HK$1,290,000 and settlement of a payable of HK$24,000 was
satisfied by a consideration for an acquisition of an investment of
HK$24,180,000.

Increase in the amount due from an associate of HK$19,024,000 as a result of
the acquisition of an associate and was subsequently set off by a short-term
loan receivable of the same amount under a deed of novation signed by the
Group and a relevant party.

The Group disposed of certain amount of other asset for a consideration of
HK$16,000,000 which was satisfied by a short-term loan receivable of the
same amount under a deed of novation signed by the Group and a relevant

party.
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During the year ended March 31, 2003, the major non-cash transactions were as
follows:

(a)  The Group entered into finance lease arrangement in respect of property, plant
and equipment with a capital value at the inception of the leases HK$2,990,000.

(b)  The Group acquired additional shareholding in a subsidiary for a consideration
of HK$278,320,000 which was set off by the assignment of short-term loans
receivable of HK$260,578,000. The remaining consideration of HK$17,742.000
was unsettled as at March 31, 2003.

DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognized and movements
thereon during the current and prior years:

The Group
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
At April 1, 2002
- as previously reported - - - -
- adjustment on
adoption of
SSAP12 (Revised) 1,532 (15,264) 898 (12,834)
— as restated 1,532 (15,264) 898 (12,834)
Charge (credit) to the
consolidated income
statement for the year
{note 14) 551 491) 226 286
At March 31, 2003 and
April 1, 2003 2,083 (15,755) 1,124 (12,548)
Currency realignment (57) (1,922) (20) (1,999)

Credit to the consolidated

income statements for

the year (note 14) (1,362) (2,724) (16,724)* (20,8100
Effect of change in tax rate

~ charge (credit) to the

consolidated

income statement

(note 14) 80 (67) - 13
At March 31, 2004 744 (20,468) (15,620) (35,344)
* The deferred tax credit is mainly attributable to the movements of temporary differences arising

from the carrying amounts and tax bases of major balance sheet items such as receivables,
inventories and accruals of a subsidiary in the United States.
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For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK3$°000

Deferred tax assets (35,480) (13,298)
Deferred tax liabilities 136 750

(35,344) (12,548)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$363,848,000 (2003:
HK$470,299,000) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognized in respect of HK$69,488,000 (2003: HK$45,357,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax has been recognized in respect of the remaining HK$294,360,000
(2003: HK$424,942,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company

At balance sheet date, the Company has unused tax losses of HK$49,958,000 (2003:
HK$49,488,000) available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax has been
recognized in respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group The Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK3$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
Amounts utilized
in respect of
guarantees given to
banks and other
financial institutions
for facilities
granted to:
subsidiaries - - 57,933 164,369
outsiders - 11,674 - 11,674
- 11,674 57,933 176,043

The Group was involved in two patent infringement lawsuits in the United States.
The damages arising from the lawsuits range from approximately US$285,000
(equivalent to HK$2,213,000) to US$855,000 (equivalent to HK$6,639,000). As the
outcome of the lawsuits is not certain, the Group has made an accrual of US$302,000
(equivalent to HK$2,345,000) for these cases at the year end March 31, 2004 to cover
the possible damages as estimated by management.
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group
2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$'000

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
during the year:

Land and buildings 27,134 24,209
Property, plant and equipment 8,615 2,959
35,749 27,168

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2004 2003
Property, Property,
Land and plant and Land and plant and
buildings equipment buildings equipment
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’ 000
Operating leases which
expire:
Within one year 25,096 22,678 19,403 2,594
In the second to fifth
year inclusive 79,900 41,721 50,733 3,018
Over five years 53,162 705 34 437 -
158,158 65,104 104,573 5,612

Leases are negotiated for a range of one to ten years and rentals are fixed over the
terms of the leases.

The Company had no operating lease commitments at the balance sheet date.

The Group as lessor

The Group
2004 2003
HK$000 HK$°000

Rental income earned under operating leases
during the year:

Land and buildings 6,568 4,754
Property, plant and equipment 5,000 -
11,568 4,754
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At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

2004 2003
Property, Property,
Land and plant and Land and plant and
buildings equipment buildings equipment
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Operating leases which
expire:

Within one year 4,747 20,000 2,662 —

In the second to
fifth year inclusive 18,109 35,000 9,780 -
Over five years 13,914 - 12,057 -
36,770 55,000 24,499 -

37. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on August 21, 2001 (the “2001
Share Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to the
employees of the Group. Under the 2001 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees including the directors (but
excluding independent non-executive directors) of the Company and the directors of
any of the subsidiaries of the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting of the Company on
March 17, 2003, the Company has terminated the 2001 Share Option Scheme and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”). Under the
2003 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant options
to directors and employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters and service providers of any members of the Group who the
board of directors considers have contributed or will contribute or can contribute to
the Group. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Group and its shares for the
benefits of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and to be exercised under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time, the total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the options may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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At March 31, 2004, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the 2003 and 2001 Share Option Scheme
was 21,800,000 (2003: 16,000,000), representing 11.69% (2003: 9.98%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date of grant, upon payment
of HK$1 per option. Options may be exercised at any time from the date on which the
option is accepted to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of
the closing price of the Company shares on the date of grant or the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
or the nominal value of the share of the Company.

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options held by employees
(including directors) of the Company and movements in such holdings during the
year:

2003 Share Option Scheme

Number of share options

Exercise granted during the year and
Date of grant Exercisable period price outstanding at 3.31.2004
HKS$
Directors
2.23.2004 2.23.2004 to 2.22.2006 3.415 6,400,000
Employees
2.23.2004 2.23.2004 to 2.22.2006 3415 ' 6,400,000
12,800,000

2001 Share Option Scheme

Number of share options

Cancelled/
Qutstanding Exercised lapsed  Outstanding
Date of Exercise at during during at

grant Exercisable period price 4.1.2003 the year the year 3.31.2004
: HKS$

Directors
8.31.2001  8.31.2001 to 8.30.2006 2.9888 11,500,000 (1,750,000) (750,000) 9,000,000
Employees

8.31.2001  8.31.2001 to 8.30.2006 29888 4,500,000 (3,000,000)  (1,500,000) -

16,000,000 (4,750,000)  (2,250,000) 9,000,000
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38.

The share options were exercised on January 15, 2004. The closing price of the
Company’s share immediately before the date of exercise was of HK$2.80.

Number of share options

Adjustment

due to

consolidation
Outstanding of the  Outstanding
Date of Exercise at Company’s at
grant Exercisable period price 4.1.2002 shares 3.31.2003

HKS$

Directors
8.31.2001  8.31.2001 to 8.30.2006 2.9888 460,000,000  (448,500,000) 11,500,000
Employees

8.31.2001  8.31.2001 to 8.30.2006 2.9888 180,000,000  (175,500,000) 4,500,000

640,000,000  (624,000,000) 16,000,000

Total consideration received during the year from the directors and employees for
taking up the options granted is HK$13 (2003: Nil).

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the Company’s or the
Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are exercised, and no charge is
recognized in the consolidated income statement in respect of the value of options
granted in the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded by Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium account. Options which
lapsed or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for qualifying
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The Group also operates various retirement benefit schemes for qualifying employees
of its overseas subsidiaries, including subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, United
States of America and Singapore. The assets of the retirement benefit schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under control of trustees. The
Group contributes 4% to 10% of the relevant payroll costs to the schemes, which
contribution is matched by employees.
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39,

40.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the following assets were pledged by the Group and the
Company to secure banking and other financing facilities:

The Group The Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Trade and other
receivables 217,420 174,431 - -
Listed securities of
an associate 75,199 59,148 - -
Inventories 93,180 39,162 - -
Land and buildings 12,392 30,818 - -
Investments
in securities 813 944 813 944
Bank deposits - 19,226 - -
399,004 323,729 813 944

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with the following related
parties, together with balances with them as at the balance sheet date, details of
which are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$'000
Substantial shareholder and its associates:
Interest paid and payable by the Group (note a) 12,263 9,857
Interest received and receivable by the Group (note a) 3,015 4,789
Management fee income (note d) 1,182 5,256
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (note d) 13 3,000
Balances due by the Group at end of the year (note a) 168,368 168,339
Balances due to the Group at end of the year (note a) 149,333 71,793
Loans advanced by the Group during the year (note a) 140,541 224,875
Loans (repaid by) advanced to the Group during the year (note a) (15,667) 172,000
Associates:
Loans (repaid to) advanced by the Group during the year (note a) (41,173) 6,400
Management fee income (note d) 6,677 9,336
Interest received and receivable by the Group (note a) 1,507 639
Rental expenses (note c¢) 1,347 2,524
Purchase of finished goods (note b) - 76,894
Sales of finished goods (note b) - 3,566

Details of balances with associates at the balance sheet date are set out in note 20.
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Notes:

a. The loans advanced to/by and the balances due by/to the Group are unsecured, bear interest at
prevailing market rates and repayable in accordance with the respective loan agreements, if any.

b. The transactions were carried out at cost plus a percentage profit mark-up.

c. The transactions were carried out at terms by reference to market prices of similar transactions.

d. The transactions were determined based on terms mutually agreed by the parties concerned.

In addition, certain banking and other facilities of the Group were secured by personal
guarantee from a director of the Company, to the extent of HK$6,441,000 (2003:
HK$6,306,000).

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant transactions with related
parties during the year or no significant balances with them at the balance sheet date.
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at March 31, 2004 are as follows:

Issued Percentage of
and fully issued share
Place of paid share capital/registered Equity
incorporation capital or capital held by interest
or registration/ contributed sub- held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company  sidiaries  the Group Principal activities
% % %
Cyber Business Singapore §$4,444.445 - 54 54 Development of
Network (Singapore) information
Pte Ltd technology and
g-business consulting
Hanny Magnetics The British HK$40,000,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
(B.V.1) Limited Virgin Istands ordinary shares
("B.V.LY) HK$8,000,000 -

preference shares

Hanny Magnetics Hong Kong HKS1.100,000,200 - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited ordinary shares and trading in and
HK$6,000,000 - marketing of computer
5% non-voting media products and
deferred shares related peripherals
{note a) and accessories
Hanny Magnetics PRC HK$686,072,148 - 100 100 Manufacturing of
(Zhuhai) Limited magnetic media
(note b) products
Memorex Canada Lid. ~ Canada CAD2 - 67.08 43.60  Trading in and distribution

of computer media
products and audio
and video products

Memorex International  B.V.L/ US$1,000,000 - 67.08 43.60  Investment holding
lnc. United States and holding of
of America trademarks licenses
(USA™M
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Tssued Percentage of
and fully issued share
Place of paid share capital/registered Equity
incorporation capital or capital held by interest
or registration/ contributed sub- held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company  sidiaries  the Group  Principal activities
% % %
Memorex Products United Kingdom GBP2 - 67.08 4360  Trading in and distribution
Europe Limited of computer media
products and audio
and video products
Memorex Products, USA. U5$79,001,000 - 6708 4360 Trading in and distribution
Inc. of computer media
products and audio
and video products
Memorex Holdings Bermuda US$100,000 - 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
Zhuhai Hanny BVI Uss$t - 100 100 Holding of land
Property Investment development project
Limited held for resale
Rich Life Holdings Singapore $§2 - 100 100 Investment holding
Pre Limited
Well Orient Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 100 Investment holding
Ultimate Strategy B.VIL USst - 100 100 lavestment holding
Limited
Notes:
a. The holders of the 5% non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to receive notice of or to attend

or vote at any general meetings of the company. The non-voting deferred shares practically carry
no rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

b. The company is registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.
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Details of the Group’s principal associates which were all held indirectly by the
Company at March 31, 2004 are as follows:

Name of associate

China Strategic
Holdings Limited

PSC Corporation Ltd.
(formerly known as
“Provisions Suppliers
Corporation Limited™)

Form of
business
structure

Corporate

Corporate

Proportion of

Place of equity interest
incorporation/ attributable
operation to the Group

%
Hong Kong 29.36
Singapore 27.45

Principal activities

Investment holding

Supply of household
consumer product

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To
give details of other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.”
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(ii) Management discussion and analysis
(a) For the year ended 31st March, 2004:

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the Group’s results and
financials extracted from the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2004:

“Results And Financial Review
Results

For the year ended March 31, 2004, the Group’s audited consolidated profit before
minority interests was HK$93.8 million (2003: loss of HK$606.5 million, as restated),
which comprised profit from operations of HK$228.8 million (2003: loss of HK$315.6
million), finance costs of HK$26.4 million (2003: HK$31.7 million), net gain on
disposal of subsidiaries and associates of HK$10.4 million (2003: Nil), amortization
of goodwill arising on acquisition of associates of HK$17.7 million (2003: HK$6.6
million), share of net losses of associates of HK$73.5 million (2003: HK$32.4 million)
and taxation of HK$27.8 million (2003: HK$36.0 million, as restated). Impairment
loss on goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate of HK$104.6 million and
allowance for loan to associates of HK$79.6 million included in last year did not
recur for the year ended March 31, 2004.

Segment Results

For trading of computer related products, segment turnover amounted to HK$3,737.3
million, increased by HK$762.1 million (25.6%) and segment result recorded HK$206.7
million, increased by HK$108.8 miliion (111.2%).

For trading of consumer electronic products, segment turnover amounted to
HK$1,237.7 million, increased by HK$128.1 million (11.5%) and segment result
recorded HK$21.9 million, increased by HK$1.7 million (8.4%).

For trading of securities, segment turnover amounted to HK$34.9 million, decreased
by HK$43.1 million (55.2%) and segment result turned around to profit of HK$20.8
million from loss of HK$110.4 million.

This year, the Group still enjoyed significant growth without lowering gross profit
margin. This sales growth was due to our persistent efforts to control cost on inventory
pricing, our strong and extensive business network worldwide and promotional efforts
made. In the wake of the gradual economic recovery from this year, the Group results
turned around into profits.

Liquidity

Net bank and cash balances at March 31, 2004 decreased to HK$141.1 million (2003:
HK$221.4 million which accounted for 9.8% (2003: 15.9%, as restated) of the net
tangible asset value of the Group. The cash was mainly used for daily operations and
purchase of inventories in response to the improved sales performance during the
year. The current ratio of the Group at March 31, 2004 was 1.39 (2003: 1.40).
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Financial Review

The net current assets of the Group at March 31, 2004 increased by HK$168.4 million
(35.3%) to HK$645.8 million (2003: HK$477.4 million).

Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in inventory level of the
subsidiaries in the United States and United Kingdom, from HK$505.2 million as at
March 31, 2003 to HK$877.4 million as at March 31, 2004, as the management
foresees an increasing sales trend in the coming years. In addition, market prices of
products such as DVD and CDR boosted up owing to the decrease in supply. Therefore,
the Company made bulk purchase so as to bargain for favourable prices.

Trade and other receivables increased from HK$486.6 million as at March 31, 2003
to HK$738.8 million as at March 31, 2004. Debtors turnover day increased from 35
days in 2003 to 50 days in current year. Owing to the increasing demand of DVD,
turnover of such product increased at the end of the year leading to the increase in
trade receivable balance at year end.

Trade and other payables increased from HK$890.6 million as at March 31, 2003 to
HK$1,272.3 million as at March 31, 2004. Creditors turnover day remained steady
from 75 days in 2003 to 78 days in current year. The Company was able to maintain a
stable credit period by having established a long-term relationship with its major
suppliers and making bulk purchases during the year.

At March 31, 2004, total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$384.2 million
(2003: HK$445.0 million), of which HK$10.8 million (2003: HK$177.0 million)
were not repayable within one year. The borrowings included bank borrowings of
HK$205.7 million (2003: HK$237.5 million), other loans of HK$151.3 million (2003:
HK$180.0 million), overdrafts of HK$23.3 million (2003: HK$22.4 million),
obligations under finance leases of HK$1.5 million (2003: HK$2.7 million) and amount
due to a minority shareholder of HK$2.4 million (2003: HK$2.4 million). The drop in
borrowings was due to the repayment of bank and other loans during the year to
lower the finance costs.

[nterests in associates

At March 31, 2004, interests in associates amounted to HK$906.4 million (2003:
HK$271.4 million), represented share of net assets of HK$617.5 million (2003:
HK$172.3 million), goodwill on acquisition of an associate of HK$256.6 million
(2003: HK$65.5 million), loans to associates of HK$1.4 million (2003: HK$7.7 million)
and amounts due therefrom of HK$30.9 million (2003: HK$25.9 million). The
substantial increase in balance was mainly due to the further acquisition of an associate
which was classified as investment in securities as at March 31, 2003, resulting in the
increase in share of net assets and goodwill.

Pledge of assets
At March 31, 2004, certain assets of the Group amounted to HK$399.0 million (2003:

HK$323.7 million) were pledged to banks and financial institution for loans’ facilities
granted to the Group.
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Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (borrowings/shareholders’ funds) at March 31, 2004 was slightly
reduced to 20.5% (2003: 25.7%, as restated).

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars. The risk of foreign exchange fluctuation
had not been significant to the Group. Interest rates of import loans are mainly
referenced to LIBOR or HIBOR plus whereas that of bank and other loans are Prime
plus. At the balance sheet date, the Group did not enter into any interest rate speculative
and hedging contracts. However, the recent weakening of the United States Dollars
against other foreign currencies (especially Canadian Dollars and Great British Pounds)
would bring about certain exchange gains to the Canadian and European subsidiaries
so far. Because of the possible rebound of the United States Dollars, the Group will
consider entering into hedging contracts to eliminate exposure to downside risks,
whenever the Group and the concerned foreign subsidiaries think fit.

Contingent liabilities

At March 31, 2004, the Group has no contingent liabilities in relation to guarantees
given to banks and other financial institutions for facilities granted to an outsider. At
March 31, 2003, the extent of such facilities was HK$11.7 million.

Employees and remuneration policies

At March 31, 2004, there were approximately 700 staff (2003: 800) employed by the
Group. The remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of performance of
individual employees and the prevailing salaries’ trends in the various regions. They
are subject to be reviewed every year. The Group also provided employees training
programs, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance and discretionary
bonus. Share options were awarded to employees on merit basis and some share
options were granted during the year.

Business and Corporate Developments
Acquisition of shares in China Strategic Holdings Limited (“CSHL”)

At March 31, 2003, an amount of approximately HK$698.4 million included in
investments in securities represented the Group’s 14.55% equity interest in CSHL
which is a listed company in Hong Kong. In September 2003, the Group acquired an
additional interest of 16.65% in CSHL for a consideration of approximately HK$19.3
million. Accordingly, the investment in CSHL was increased to 31.20% and it was
reclassified from investments in securities to interests in associates. Details shall
refer to the circular of the Company dated July 29, 2003. As at the date of this report,
the Group’s shareholding in CSHL was 29.36%.
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Disposal of Shares in Memorex Holdings Limited (“Memorex Holdings”)

On October 25, 2003, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Global Media Limited (the “Purchaser”), a subsidiary of Investor
Capital Partners — Asia Fund. Investor Capital Partners — Asia Fund is a private
equity fund advised by Investor Asia Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Investor
AB, which in turn is listed on the Stockholm Stock Exchange and is Sweden’s largest
investment holding company with a market capitalization of over US$6 billion. Pursuant
to the Agreement, the Purchaser agreed to acquire and the Group agreed to dispose of
35% of the issued share capital in Memorex Holdings (which, following a
reorganization, would represent an attributable interest of approximately 23.5% in
Memorex International Inc., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group), for an
aggregate cash consideration of approximately US$39.9 million (equivalent to
HK$311.2 million).

In addition, the Purchaser has a call option whereby it may purchase an additional
20% interest in Memorex Holdings from the Group, exercisable in whole or in part at
any time within three years from the date of the completion, at an exercise price
equal to the aggregate of: (i) US$26.9 million (equivalent to HK$209.8 million); and
(ii) the amount which represents 20% of the consolidated retained profits of Memorex
Holdings which may be accumulated from the date of the completion to the last date
of the quarter preceding the exercise of the call option.

In the 30 day period after the third anniversary of the date of the completion, the
Purchaser has a partial exit right whereby it may require the Group to purchase
17.5% of the issued share capital of Memorex Holdings, at the same price per share
at which the Purchaser acquired its 35% interest in Memorex Holdings at the date of
the completion.

Details of these transactions are set out in the circular of the Company dated November
18, 2003.

Acquisition of Dysan and Precision trademarks

In November 2003, the Group completed the purchase of the trademarks DYSAN and
PRECISION at a consideration of HK$190 million. The acquisition of these
brandnames enables the Group to further build on its intellectual property portfolio.
Leveraging our established sales, marketing and distribution network for the Memorex®
brand, the Group intends to expand its product offerings for Dysan and Precision
branded products to target the different markets and end-users.

Acquisition of a land development project known as B /5 5 B i 3 [F

In December 2003, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group entered into an
agreement for acquisition of the entire interest in a company which had a co-operation
agreement entered into an independent third party for the joint development of certain
land located at Doumen District, Zhuhai City of the People’s Republic of China
(kMg sR BLE FE ). As at March 31, 2004, a total of approximately HK$155.4
million was paid for obtaining certain parts of the land use right for land development,
site formation and the exclusive development right to the Bk /& #f B & ¥ [ .
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(b)

Placing and Subscription of Shares

On January 28, 2004, ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, entered into a placing and subscription agreement with the placing
agent and the Company pursuant to which ITC agreed to place 21,500,000 shares at
the price of HK$4.00 per share to not less than six placees who were independent
third parties procured by the placing agent and ITC would subscribe for 21,500,000
new shares at the same price of HK$4.00 per share. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement of January 28, 2004 for details of such placing and subscription.”

For the year ended 31st March, 2003:

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the Group’s results and
financials extracted from the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2003:

“Results and Financial Review
Results

For the year ended March 31, 2003, the Group’s audited consolidated loss before
minority interests was HK$606.2 million (2002: HK$77.7 million), which was mainly
composed of net gain from trading of computer related and consumer electronic
products before other operating expenses of HK$118.2 million (2002: HK$117.2
million), realized and unrealized holding loss on other investments of HK$110.4
million (2002: HK$120.5 million), impairment loss on investment securities and
goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate of HK$427.9 million (2002: HK$15.7
million), finance costs of HK$31.7 million (2002: HK$58.1 million), net loss from
gain on disposal of subsidiaries and associates and loss on allowance for loans to
associates of HK$79.6 million (2002: gain of HK$5.6 million), share of net losses of
associates of HK$32.4 million (2002: HK$3.5 million), amortization of goodwill
arising on acquisition of an associate of HK$6.6 million (2002: Nil) and taxation of
HK$35.8 million (2002: HK$2.7 million).

Turnover from trading of computer and consumer related products amounted to
HK$4,084.8 million, increased by approximately 10.1% whereas that from securities
was HK$78.0 million, decreased by 88.2%. The former growth raised gross profit of
products trading by 30.4% but the loss of security trading dragged down the overall
increase in gross profit to only 12.3%.

In respect of Memorex® trading business, it still enjoyed moderate growth despite the
global deflation trend. This sales growth was due to our tight cost control on inventory
pricing and promotional efforts made. On the other hand, the continuous slump of
stock market further deteriorated the value of the Group’s securities’ portfolio, causing
a tremendous loss on realized and unrealized securities and impairment loss on other
unlisted securities.

Liquidity

Net cash balances at March 31, 2003 stood at HK$221.4 million (2002: HK$233.1
million) accounted for 16.8% (2002: 11.1%) of the net tangible asset value of the
Group. The current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) of the Group at March 31,
2003 was 1.40 (2002: 1.56). Such decline was mainly attributed to the fund used for
acquisition of an associate during the year.
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At March 31, 2003, total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$445.0 million
(2002: HK$656.8 million), of which HK$177.0 million (2002: HK$11.0 million)
were not repayable within one year. The borrowings included bank borrowings of
HK$237.5 million (2002: HK$278.2 million), other loans of HK$180.0 million (2002:
HK$297.0 million), overdrafts of HK$22.4 mililion (2002: HK$76.1 million),
obligations under finance leases of HK$2.7 million (2002: HK$3.1 million) and amount
due to a minority shareholder of HK$2.4 million (2002: HK$2.4 million). The
significant drop in borrowings was due to the repayment of other loans during the
year to lower the finance costs.

Pledge of assets

At March 31, 2003, certain assets of the Group amounted to HK$323.7 million (2002:
HK$306.2 million) were pledged to banks and financial institution for loans’ facilities
granted to the Group.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (borrowings/shareholders’ funds) at March 31, 2003 was slightly
reduced to 25.8% (2002: 29.2%).

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and U.S. Dollars. Yet some balances are recorded in British
Pound or Euro Dollars. With the persistent depreciation of U.S. Dollars, certain
exchange difference was resulted from translation. The Group will monitor more
closely on such exchange rate fluctuations and take appropriate steps to cover its
foreign currency exposures.

Interest rates of import loans are mainly referenced to LIBOR or HIBOR plus whereas
that of bank and other loans are Prime plus. At the balance sheet date, the Group did
not enter into any interest rate speculative and hedging contracts.

Contingent liabilities

The Group’s total contingent liabilities at March 31, 2003 was HK$11.7 million
(2002: HK$9.4 million), in relation to guarantees given to a bank for facilities to a
subsidiary. In addition, there were no margin clients’ securities (2002: HK$516.8
million) pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities for a subsidiary.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at March 31, 2003, there were approximately 800 staff (2002: 1,000) employed by
the Group. The remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of performance of
individual employees and the prevailing salaries’ trends in the various regions. They
are subject to be reviewed every year. The Group also provided employees training
programs, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance and discretionary
bonus. Share options were awarded to employees on merit basis and no share options
were granted during the year.
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Business And Operations Review
Trading operations

During the year, Memorex® made significant achievements throughout the U.S., Europe
and Canada despite the unfavorable global trading climate.

In the U.S., Memorex® once again maintained its leading market position in optical
media for CD-R and successfully achieved the number one position for DVD. The
Company shipped over 600 million CD-Rs last year to the U.S. customers. With the
launch of new products such as a complete line of DVD recordable drives and USB
flash drives this year, the Group anticipates strong growth in revenue during the
coming year. Besides improving turnover, the U.S. operations also made efforts to
improve customer service. To cater to the needs of its customers, it opened a third
distribution center in Memphis, Tennessee to expand its logistics network. In addition,
it plans to relocate the distribution center in Los Angeles to a new larger facility in
year 2004.

The results in Europe are encouraging. During the year, our European operations
continued to focus on gaining market shares. In the Dysan® business segment, turnover
increased by 78% over the previous year. Part of this increase was due to a tripling in
sales volumes for CD-R media. The Group expects a 60% growth in the Dysan®
business segment next year as it continues to develop its core markets in Eastern
Europe, Russia and South Africa and is developing new business through specialist
consumable companies.

For the Memorex® business segment, the highlight for the year included gaining
market shares in excess of 20% in Sweden, Turkey and [reland, making Memorex®
one of the top European brands in computer related products. During the year, the
Group decided to consolidate its operations by withdrawing from the hardware market,
which is characterized by volatile pricing and unpredictable margins. This strategic
decision resulted in a more stable and controlled business for the Group. In addition,
the German office was closed to streamline our cost base.

The brand position in Europe has been further strengthened by focusing on new
channels such as independent specialists, such as photo and travel outlets, IT specialists
and mass merchants, In addition, a range of customer specific promotional activities
was introduced which have been very well received. Implementation of these strategies
means that Memorex® Europe moves forward into the next year assured of even
greater success with strong and improved margins and profitability.

In Canada, sales of Memorex® products increased by 20% from the previous year.
The Group maintained its leading position in sales of video tape, audio tape and
floppy diskettes. Furthermore, sales of Memorex® CD-R media reached number 2 in
Canada last year. During the year, the Group appointed a very strong supplier for the
new battery line and envisages that the sales will increase dramatically in the coming
years.
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Acquisitions And Dispositions
Acquisition of shares in China Strategic Holdings Limited

On July 8, 2003, the respective boards of directors of the Company, Paul Y. — ITC
Construction Holdings Limited (“Paul Y. — ITC”), ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC"”)
and China Strategic Holdings Limited (“CSHL”) jointly announced that Well Orient
Limited and Calisan Development Limited each being an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and Paul Y. ~ ITC respectively (collectively the “Offerors”™),
through Kingsway SW Securities Limited (“Kingsway”), will make a voluntary
conditional cash offer (“Offer”) at the price of HK$0.10 for each share of CSHL
{*“China Strategic Share”) and HK$0.001 for each warrant of CSHL (“China Strategic
Warrant”), other than the China Strategic Shares and the China Strategic Warrants
presently owned by the Offerors and parties acting in concert with the Offerors, and
to cancel all outstanding share options granted by CSHL under the share option
scheme adopted on July 20, 1992 (“China Strategic Option™) at HK$0.001 per China
Strategic Option.

The China Strategic Shares and China Strategic Warrants to be acquired by Kingsway,
on behalf of the Offerors, during the Offer will be distributed to the Offerors in equal
proportion. The Offer is conditional upon the Offerors having received acceptances in
respect of voting rights attached to China Strategic Shares which, together with any
voting rights acquired or agreed to be acquired before or during the Offer, will result
in the Offerors and any parties acting in concert with them in aggregate holding more
than 50% of the voting rights attaching to the China Strategic Shares.

After the purchase on July 9, 2003, the Offerors and their concert parties are interested
in 291,675,000 China Strategic Shares, representing approximately 35.16% of the
issued share capital of CSHL, thus triggering a mandatory offer during the offer
period of a voluntary offer under Rule 26 of The Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers.

The Offerors have notified CSHL that, to make the offer price for each China Strategic
Share under the Offer more attractive to the shareholders of CSHL, the offer price for
each China Strategic Share under the Offer is to be increased from HK$0.1 to
HK$0.139, representing an increase of 39%. The Offer will be adjusted accordingly.
Save for the above, no other changes to the Offer are currently being made.

The Offerors have also informed CSHL that Kingsway, on behalf of the Offerors, will
stand in the market to acquire other China Strategic Shares at a price of no more than

HK$0.139 per China Strategic Share until the end of offer period.

Please refer to the joint announcements published on July 9, 2003 and July 22, 2003
respectively for details.
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Disposal of shares in Leadership Publishing Group Limited ( “Leadership
Publishing”, formerly known as Sing Pao Media Group Limited)

On November 23, 2002, Genius Ideas Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) with other vendors entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Sun Media Group Holdings Limited (“Sun Media”) (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) whereby Genius Ideas Limited agreed to sell 79,470,000 shares
and warrants in the aggregate amount of HK$16,329,000 in Leadership Publishing to
Sun Media. On completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Genius Ideas Limited
has entered into the following agreements:—

1) a deed of settlement with Leadership Publishing, Sing Pao Newspaper Company
Limited and other vendors under which Genius Ideas Limited agreed to waive
approximately HK$10,821,000 so as to reduce the total indebtedness to
HK$14,694,000 (the “Reduced Loan”). The Reduced Loan together with interest
thereon, shall only be due and repayment on the date (“Payment Date”) falling
on the expiry of 30 calendar months after the year end of any financial year of
Leadership Publishing after the completion in respect of which Leadership
Publishing has generated profits after taxation in its audited accounts, provided
the relevant Payment Date shall not fall after the twentieth anniversary of the
date of completion; and

(ii)  adeed of assignment with Leadership Publishing, Sing Pao Newspaper Company
Limited and Sun Media (or its nominee) to give effect to the assignment of
HK$9,796,000 being part of the Reduced Loan to Sun Media (or its nominee).
The consideration of such assignment will be satisfied by the issue and allotment
of 97,960,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the capital of Sun
Media at the expiry of 2 calendar years from the date of completion of the Sale
and Purchase Agreement at an issue price of HK$0.10 per share (subject to
adjustment).

Capital Reorganization

In March 2003, the Company completed capital reorganization. Upon such
reorganization, the par value of each issued and unissued shares of the Company was
effectively reduced to HK$0.01 per share. The paid up share capital was reduced
from HK$160,303,202.95 to HK$1,603,032.02 and the authorized share capital was
reduced from HK$650 million to HK$200 million by cancellation of 45,000 million
unissued reorganized shares. Please refer to the circular of the Company dated February
21, 2003 for details.

Outlook

The results of our core business for fiscal year 2002/2003 continued to be encouraging
amidst the current economic environment. The economies worldwide and locally
have experienced a number of turbulent events in recent years. These events have
gradually culminated to cause the unfavorable trading climates we are facing today.
The Asian financial crisis in 1997 was followed by a global decline in financial stock
markets as result of the crash of certain speculative high technology players. Soon,
the growth and continuous spread of terrorism led to the destructive 911 attack in the
U.S. in 2001. The recent U.S. invasion against [raq and the outbreak of infectious
diseases such as birds’ flu and SARS also caused uneasiness in financial markets
around the world. These factors, coupled with heightened financial and securities
reporting requirements created to combat corporate misconduct in the U.S. (as a
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(c)

result of corporate scandals from Enron and Worldcom etc.), have caused difficult
and challenging business environments for companies worldwide. Under such
circumstances, the Group, without exception, has been adjusting on certain investments
in securities in line with the significant decline in fair value.

Despite these unfavorable circumstances, the Group is very proud of its core Memorex®
trading business, which, through the implementation of sound strategies, has been
able to weather the economic storms. The Group witnessed continuous and satisfactory
growth in both market share and revenue this year. Notwithstanding this growth, the
Group recognizes that to overcome the hurdles before us, the Group will need to
adjust its management and business policies. For its investment portfolio, the Group
intends to divest those investments with negative to zero cash flows as far as practicable
and look for investments with stable growth and cash flows, similar to Provisions
Suppliers Corporation Limited which the Group acquired in 2002.

Looking forward, the Company envisages continuous profit contribution to the Group
from its core business and will keep pursuing its dominant dual business strategy
towards geographic expansion of Asian markets and innovation in products.
Notwithstanding the worldwide economic uncertainties, the Company is confident
that our business will turn around from the dark time to a gleaming future with our
solid and profit-making core business and adoption of new business plans.”

For the year ended 31st March, 2002:

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the Group’s results and
financials extracted from the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2002:

“Results And Financial Review
Results

In the year ended March 31, 2002, the Group’s audited consolidated loss before
minority interests was HK$77.7 million (2001: HK$597.0 million), which was mainly
composed of net profit from operations before other operating expenses of HK$165.9
million (2001: HK$73.5 million), net gain on disposal of certain interests in subsidiaries
and associates of HK$5.6 million (2001: HK$245.1 million), unrealized holding loss
on other investments and impairment loss on investment securities and goodwill of
HK$184.9 million (2001: HK$751.2 million), finance costs of HK$58.1 million (2001:
HKS$111.4 million), share of net losses of associates of HK$3.5 million (2001: HK$30.1
million) and taxation of HK$2.7 million (2001: HK$22.9 million).

Turnover from trading computer and consumer related products as well as securities
increased by approximately 10.1% and [93.5% respectively. Such growth raised gross
profit of products trading by around 17.8% and turned the loss of securities trading
into gain, contributing to the increase of overall gross profit by around 26.5%. The
considerable increase, which was brought about by tighter cost control and shift of
more profitable products sales, was a significant achievement amid sluggish economy
in recent years.

In respect of the net realized gain on securities trading, it was primarily due to a
single disposal of 4,556,976 common shares in the capital of Oxford Properties Group
Inc. (“Oxford”) in October 2001. Despite this, the Group has made great provisions
for the unrealized holding loss on other investments and impairment 1oss on investment
securities under the persistent poor investment environment, eroding the profit from
products trading. Yet, with the emerging sign of economy recovery from the early
2002, the Group has great potential of realizing profit from sales of securities in
future.
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Liquidity

Net cash balances at March 31, 2002 stood at HK$233.1 million (2001: HK$546.2
million), accounted for 11.1% (2001: 27.3%) of the net tangible asset value of the
Group. The decline in cash was corresponded to the increase in inventory level,
thence preparing both the upbeat of business demand and expansion of scale of
operations in the coming year.

As at March 31, 2002, total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$656.8 million
(2001: HK$1,405.0 million), of which HK$11.0 million (2001: HK$121.9 million)
were not repayable within one year. The borrowings included bank borrowings of
HK$278.2 million (2001: HK$334.5 million), other loans of HK$297.0 million (2001:
HK$625.8 million), overdrafts of HK$76.1 million (2001: HK$49.8 million),
obligations under finance leases of HK$3.1 million (2001: HK$6.3 million) and amount
due to a minority shareholder of HK$2.4 million (2001: HK$2.7 million). The
significant drop in borrowings was mainly due to the repayment of convertible note
of HK$385.9 million and other loans during the year in order to minimize the finance
costs.

The reduction in total borrowings by utilizing cash reserves not needed for other uses
was a conscious effort by the Group to reduce both its indebtedness and its interest
expenses. Other than achieved a saving in interest expenses of HK$53.2 million, the
current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) of the Group at March 31, 2002 was
improved to 156% (2001: 132%).

Pledge of assets

As at March 31, 2002, certain assets of the Group amounted to HK$306.2 million
(2001: HK$1,275.3 million) were pledged to banks and financial institutions for
loans’ facilities.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (borrowings/shareholders’ funds) at March 31, 2002 was significantly
reduced to 29.2% (2001: 64.8%), due to the repayment of debts after realization of
other investments. .

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars. The risk of foreign exchange fluctuation
had not been significant to the Group. Interest rates of the borrowings are mainly
referenced to LIBOR or HIBOR plus for import loans and Prime plus for bank and
other loans. At the balance sheet date, the Group did not enter into any interest rate
speculative and hedging contracts. However, the Group has been monitoring closely
on exchange rate fluctuations, and is taking appropriate steps to cover especially its
foreign currency exposures in accounts payable, accounts receivable and purchases of
inventories, amidst the recent weakening of United States Dollars against other major
foreign currencies.
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Contingent liabilities

The Group’s total contingent liabilities at March 31, 2002 was HK$9.4 million (2001:
HK$15.7 million) in relation to guarantees given to a bank for facilities to an investee
company. In addition, at March 31, 2002, certain of the margin clients’ securities
with an aggregate market value of HK$516,779,000 (2001: HK$372,254,000) were
pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities for a subsidiary.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at March 31, 2002, there were approximately 1,000 staff (2001: 1,100) employed
by the Group. The remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of performance
of individual employees and the prevailing salaries’ trends in various regions. They
are subject to be reviewed every year. The Group also provided employees training
programs, provident fund scheme, medical insurance and discretionary bonus. Share
options are awarded to employees on merit basis and 640,000,000 share options were
granted during the year.

Business and Operations Review
Trading operations

During the year, substantial progress was made across multiple fronts as the Group’s
strategic priorities on its primary business continued to gain momentum. Many
Memorex® branded products have successfully maintained their leading market
positioning.

In Europe, Memorex® has made remarkable achievements last year. Memorex® is on
its path of continuous growth in turnover, customer base, product segments and
profitability. With the broadening of geographic markets in Austria, Switzerland,
Benelux and Eastern Europe, the European operations achieved a total turnover of
US$74.1 million, representing almost a 100% increase over turnover from the previous
year.

Recognized as an IT Media specialist, Memorex® succeeded in gaining a No. 2 position
in the European media market for the last quarter of 2001. Memorex® is also on its
way to grow and to achieve No. | positioning in the European CD-R market for the
next year. With the launch of the 40 Maxx CD-RW drive, the BBQ 200 and the DVD
+ RW drive within the first quarter of 2002, the hardware side is contributing not
only with high turning volumes but also with acceptable margins.

The results in Canada last year were also impressive. Despite keen competition in the
optical media industry, Memorex® Canada was able to gain a significant increase in
its market share for CD-R media and has a profitable year.

The Group’s sale of blank video tape, blank audio tape and 3.5 floppy disc ranked
No. 1 and the sale of CD-R ranked No. 3 in Canada last year. This clearly demonstrates
the popularity of Memorex® products and that Memorex® has well-established goodwill
for its brand name. Memorex® Canada is also expecting more than 10% growth in
market sales next year.
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The United States operations enjoyed healthy sales during the year. With the strong
customer base, Memorex® continues to be the leading brand of optical media in the
United States and maintains better than 30% share of CD-R media and nearly 50%
share of DVD media.

During 2001, the United States operations doubled its CD-R unit sales from the
previous year by selling over 400 million CD-Rs in the United States market. Demand
for other products in the Memorex® product family also remained strong. Memorex®
products are now sold in all ten of the top ten retailers in the United States.

Memorex® also strengthened its operational capability to support future growth by
implementing a state of the art Enterprise Resource Planning System (SAP/R3) last
year. This infrastructure integrates and automates the business process along the
Group’s value chain and thus allows the Group to meet the growing demands of its
retailers as well as the continued expansion into new product categories.

Besides the existing broad product range, Memorex® continues to be a market innovator
by developing new, promising product groups for consumers. A complete product
line of batteries and rechargeable batteries as well as the first Memorex® consumer
electronic devices will be launched during the second and third quarter of year 2003.
These new products will penetrate the markets in Europe, Canada and the United
States. With the growing popularity of DVD drives, Memorex® will also strive to
attain a strong market share in this product segment. The enlarged product variety is
expected to generate additional revenue for the Group and enhance its market
compatibility.

Acquisitions and Dispositions
Tender of Shares in Oxford Properties Group Inc.

On August 20, 2001, the Company, together with its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Gold Colt Enterprises Limited and Kurrana Limited (collectively referred
to as the “Vendors”) entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with BPC Properties
Ltd. (the “Offeror”) and others, pursuant to which the Offeror agreed, subject to
certain conditions, to make an offer (the “Offer”) to all the shareholders of Oxford
Properties Group Inc. (“Oxford™) to acquire all the shares in the capital of Oxford
held by them at an offer price of CAD$23.75 per common share. The Vendors agreed
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement to tender 4,556,976 common shares in the
capital of Oxford in connection with the -Offeror’s Offer.

The Offeror is owned by BPC Real Estate Holdings Trust and Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System (“OMERS?™), one of the largest pension plans in Canada.
On October 17, 2001, Oxford and OMERS announced that the Offeror had taken up
all the Oxford shares tendered pursuant to the Offer. In total, approximately 98.6% of
the outstanding Oxford shares not previously owned by OMERS and the Offeror were
taken up. As the Offer was accepted by holders of more than 90% of the Oxford
shares that were subject to the Offer, the Offeror proceeded to exercise its statutory
right to acquire the remaining Oxford shares. In connection with the Offer, the Group
received approximately CAD$108.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$537.9
million).

Further details of the Offer have been disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated August 23, 2001 and the Company’s circular dated September 13, 2001.
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Acquisition of an interest in Provisions Suppliers Corporation Limited

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated March 19, 2002, the Group, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired approximately 27.45% interests in Provisions
Suppliers Corporation Limited (“PSC”) for a total consideration of $$52,884,679.

PSC is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The principal
activities of PSC are those relating to the supply of household consumer products.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are those relating to investment holding,
supply of agency products to supermarkets, hotels, institutions and provision shops;
marketing and distribution of chemical products; supply of provisions and household
products and etc.

PSC also manages a well-established network of franchise stores. PSC possesses
various brand names that the Group sees as potentially invaluable when it wishes to
further its business. The Group believes that with its track records in brand name
management, it is able to assist PSC in the latter’s brand name management business
(e.g. sub-licensing and franchising) which has immense potential. Additionally, the
Group believes that a closer business relationship between the two groups would have
tremendous synergistic effects on rationalizing and expanding their distribution
networks in different countries and in the diversification of their products. The Group
also sees the shareholding in PSC as an opportunity for it to invest in a company
which has a good record of steady income and dividend payments.

Outlook

Fiscal year 2001/2002 was characterized by drive and achievements for the core
business of the Group despite adverse economic conditions around the world. The
Group witnessed continuous growth of Memorex® products in both market share and
revenue. We expect the Group will keep pursuing its dominant business strategies
towards geographic expansion of markets and innovation in products.

The Group’s business is further diversified by the Company’s acquisition of PSC in
the first quarter of 2002. Such investment is expected to contribute to the increase of
the Group’s revenue.

Due to the disposal of 4,556,976 common shares in the capital of Oxford during the
year, the Company received the proceeds of approximately CAD$108.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$537.9 million). Apart from repayment of borrowings,
the Group intends to use the remaining proceeds for re-financing of future strategic
acquisitions.

The terrorist attacks in the United States in September 2001 led to economic shock
and global decline in financial markets. Many investors were affected by this market
disruption and inevitably, the Group incurred losses in share investment for the past
year. For the coming years, the Company envisages further growth in its core business.
The Group will also continue to explore potential investment and expansion
opportunities to strengthen and diversify the Group’s business and hence maximize
shareholders’ value.”
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3. UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

()

Unaudited interim financial statements

The following are the condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group together
with the relevant notes to the accounts extracted from the interim report of the Company for

the six months ended 30th September, 2004.

“Condensed Consolidated Income Statement
For the six months ended September 30, 2004

Notes

Turnover 3
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expense

Profit from operations 4
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Amortization of goodwill arising on
acquisition of associates
Net loss on deemed disposals of
shareholdings in associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense 5

(Loss) profit before minority interests
Minority interests

(Loss) profit for the period

Dividend 6

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic 7
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Six months ended
September 30,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$°000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
2,722,355 2,392,667
(2,157,771) (1,890,090)
564,584 502,577
43,682 44,256
(334,310) (309,430)
(151,275) (139,199)
(4,948) -
117,733 98,204
(9,340) (13,800)
(29,128) (15,856)
(14,045) (3,607)
(11,400) -
53,820 64,941
(68,990) (32,580)
(15,170) 32,361
(9,862) (22,299)
(25,032) 10,062
11,193 3,206
HK(13.4) cents HK®6.3 cents
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
At September 30, 2004
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September 30, March 31,
2004 2004
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 74,713 79,503
Intangible assets 402,495 428,019
Interests in associates 847,695 906,409
Investments in securities 189,225 189,220
Long-term loan receivable - 4,898
Deferred tax assets 12,590 35,480
1,526,718 1,643,529
Current Assets
Other asset 145,085 145,085
Inventories 672,762 877,409
Trade and other receivables 9 719,328 738,820
Investments in securities 130,170 132,634
Short-term loans receivable 10 230,857 208,538
Other current assets 34,440 32,861
Bank balances and cash 33,748 164,360
1,966,390 2,299,707
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 920,712 1,272,283
Borrowings — due within one year 12 270,618 350,127
Taxation 21,969 2,496
Other current liabilities 4,300 5,779
Bank overdrafts 24,541 23,266
1,242,140 1,653,951
Net Current Assets 724,250 645,756
2,250,968 2,289,285
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 1,866 1,866
Reserves 1,825,356 1,871,315
1,827,222 1,873,181
Minority Interests 413,290 405,157
Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings — due after one year 12 8,001 8,383
Amount due to a minority shareholder 2,395 2,428
Deferred tax liabilities 60 136
10,456 10,947
2,250,968 2,289,285
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the six months ended September 30, 2004

Currency  Capital
Share Share  Capital Contributed translation redemption Other  Retained
capital  premium reserve  surplus reserve  reserves  reserves profits Total
HK3'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000

At March 31, 2003

(Audited) 1,603 - (34.164) 1,603,329 1,406 592 - 156,801 1,729,567
Currency realignment - - - - 5935 - - - 5,935
Share of reserves of

associates - - - - 1,150 - - - 1,150

Net gain not recognized
in the condensed
consolidated

income statement - - - - 7,085 - - - 7,085
Profit for the period - - - - - - - 10,062 10,062
Dividend - - - - - - - (3,206) (3,206)

At September 30, 2003
and October 1, 2003

(Unaudited) 1,603 - (34,164) 1,603,329 8.491 592 - 163,657 1,743,508
Currency realignment - - - - 5.806 - - - 5,806
Share of reserves of

associates - - - - 2345 - 14,448 - 16,793

Net gain not recognized
in the consolidated

income statement - - - - 8,151 - 14,448 - 22,599
Issue of shares 263 99,934 - - - - - - 100,197
Share issue expenses - (7113 - - - - - - (713)
Realized on partial

disposal of

shareholding in

a subsidiary - - 12,027 - - - - - 12,027
Realized on disposal of

a subsidiary - - 556 - (216) - - - 340
Profit for the period - - - - - - - 3,238 3,238
Dividend - - - - - - - (8,015) (8,015)
At March 31, 2004 and

April 1, 2004 ,

{Audited) 1.866 99,221 (21,581) 1,603,329 16,426 592 14,448 158.880 1,873,181
Currency realignment - - - - (6,516) - - - (6,516)
Share of reserves of

associates - - - - (3,215) - (3) - (3,218)
Net loss not recognized

in the condensed

consolidated income

statement - - - - {9,731) - (3) - 9,734)
Loss for the period - - - - - - - (25,032)  (25,032)
Dividend - - - - - - - (11,193)  (114,193)
At September 30, 2004

(Unaudited) 1,866 99,221 (21,581) 1,603,329 6,695 592 14,445 122,655 1,827,222
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the six months ended September 30, 2004

Net cash (used in) generated from operating activities
Tax paid
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts
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Six months ended
September 30,

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK3°000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(8,516) 81,151
(25,416) (24,680)
(17,839) (5,361)
(80,126) (63,646)
(131,897) (12,536)
141,094 202,157
10 752

9,207 190,373
33,748 212,704
(24,541) (22,331)
9,207 190,373
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
For the six months ended September 30, 2004

(1) BASIS OF PREPARATION
The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and with
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No.25 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

(2) PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation of certain properties and

investments in securities.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those followed in the preparation
of the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2004,

(3) SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business Segments
For management purposes, the Group is currently organized into three operating
divisions, namely computer related products, consumer electronic products and
securities. These divisions are the bases on which the Group reports its primary
segment information.
Principal activities are as follows:
Computer related products
Trading of computer related products and provision of handling services.
Consumer electronic products
Trading of consumer electronic products.

Securities

Trading of securities and financial instruments.
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Turnover

Segment result

Interest income

Allowances for
short-term loans
receivable

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Profit from operations

Turnover

Segment result

Interest income
Gain on disposal of

investment securities

Allowances for

- short-term loans and

interest receivable
Unallocated corporate
expenses

Profit from operations

Six months ended September 30, 2004

Computer Consumer
related electronic
products products Securities  Consolidated
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000
1,807,432 913,616 1,307 2,722,355
96,648 14,824 10,409 121,881
9,405
(3,469)
(10,084)
117,733

Six months ended September 30, 2003

Computer Consumer
related electronic
products products Securities  Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
1,616,303 746,958 29,406 2,392,667
69,938 13,598 17,188 100,724
11,588
9,577
(10,683)
(13,002)
98,204
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(4)

()

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Six months ended
September 30,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 7,108 7,087
Amortization of intangible assets (included in
administrative expenses) 25,533 20,254
Depreciation and amortization of property,
plant and equipment 9,032 9,532
Exchange losses 838 3,681
Gain on disposal of investment securities - (9,577)
Gain on trading of financial instruments (15,100) -
Interest income " (9,405) (11,588)
Net realized gain on other investments (257) (2,145
Net unrealized holding loss (gain)
on other investments 4,948 (15,043)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Six months ended
September 30,

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current tax

Overseas 44,812 31,387

Deferred tax
Current period charge (credit) 22,858 (308)
Attributable to a change in tax rate in Hong Kong - 70
22,858 (238)
Share of tax on results of associates 1,320 1,431
68,990 32,580

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

The deferred tax charge for the current period included a reversal of a deferred tax
asset amounting to approximately HK$19.9 million of an overseas subsidiary due to a
change in market conditions, thus resulting in the unpredictability of future profit
streams of this subsidiary.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax or overseas taxation has been made for the
period in respect of certain companies of the Group because these companies either
incurred tax losses for the period or had their estimated assessable profits for the
period wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward.

- 87 -




APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

(6)

7

(8)

9)

DIVIDEND

On July 23, 2004, a dividend of HK6 cents per share was declared to shareholders as
a final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2004, amounting to HK$11,193,000.

The directors do not recommend the payment of an interim dividend for the six
months ended September 30, 2004 (Six months ended September 30, 2003: HKS
cents).

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share is based on the loss for the
period of HK$25,032,000 (Six months ended September 30, 2003: profit of
HK$10,062,000) and on the number of shares in issue during the period of 186,553,000
shares (Six months ended September 30, 2003: weighted average number of
160,303,000 shares).

The computation of diluted loss per share for the six months ended September 30,
2004 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options because
the exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the six months ended September
30, 2003 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as
the exercise prices of those options were higher than the average market price of the
Company’s shares for the period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the period, the Group spent approximately HK$5.2 million on purchase of
furniture, fixtures and equipment. )

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included within trade and other receivables is trade debtors balance of HK$639.7
million (March 31, 2004: HK$685.0 million). The Group allows a credit period of 0
to 90 days to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors at the reporting date:

September 30, March 31,

2004 2004

HK$’000 HK$'000

Not yet due 516,105 624,041
Overdue within one month 88,593 52,433
Overdue between one to two months 13,730 2,099
Overdue more than two months 21,228 6,452
639,656 685,025
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(10) SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE
The amount includes a loan receivable of HK$152.9 million (March 31, 2004:
HK$167.3 million) due from a related company.
(11) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Included within trade and other payables is trade creditors balance of HK$509.1
million (March 31, 2004: HK$827.6 million).
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at the reporting date:
September 30, March 31,
2004 ‘ 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
Not yet due 373,569 445,088
Overdue within one month 84,648 116,373
Overdue between one to two months 12,761 50,321
Overdue more than two months 38,164 215,838
509,142 827,620
(12) BORROWINGS
During the period, the Group obtained additional bank loans of approximately
HK$457.5 million which bear interest at prevailing market rates and are repayable
within one year. The borrowings were used for general working capital purposes. The
Group also repaid bank loans of approximately HK$537.3 million.
Borrowings within one year include a loan payable of principal balance of HK$149.3
million (March 31, 2004: HK$149.3 million) due to a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
(13) PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the following assets were pledged by the Group to secure
banking and other financing facilities:

September 30, March 31,

2004 2004

HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade and other receivables 220,146 217,420
Inventories 90,854 93,180
Listed securities of an associate 81,147 75,199
Land and buildings 12,403 12,392
Investments in securities 608 813
405,158 399,004
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(14)

1s)

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
During the period, the Group had the following significant related party transactions:

Six months ended
September 30,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
Substantial shareholder and its associates:
Interest paid and payable by the Group (note a) 5,245 6,031
Interest received and receivable by the Group (note a) 5,640 1,365
Management fee income (note b) - 207
Associates:
Interest received and receivable by the Group (note a) - 47 1,106
Management fee income (note b) 1,489 3,166
Rental expenses (note c) 712 682

Details of balances with related parties at the balance sheet date are set out in notes
10 and 12.

Notes:

a. The loans advanced to/by and the balances due by/to the Group are unsecured, bear interest at
prevailing market rates and repayable in accordance with the respective loan agreements, if any.

b. The transactions were determined based on terms mutually agreed by the parties concerned.

c. The transactions were carried out at term by reference to market prices of similar transactions.
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On November 23, 2004, the Company entered into a placing and subscription agreement
with [TC Corporation Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and a
placing agent and pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place 37,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a price of HK$3.22 per share. Details are
set out in the announcement dated November 23, 2004 of the Company.”
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(ii)

Management discussion and analysis

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the Group’s results and financials
extracted from the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30th September,
2004:

“Results And Financial Review
Results

For the six months ended September 30, 2004, the Group’s unaudited consolidated loss
before minority interests was HK$15.1 million (9/30/2003: profit of HK$32.4 million),
which comprised profit from operations of HK$117.7 million (9/30/2003: HK$98.2 million),
finance costs of HK$9.3 million (9/30/2003: HK$13.8 million), share of net losses of
associates of HK$29.1 million (9/30/2003: HK$15.8 million), amortization of goodwill arising
on acquisition of associates of HK$14.0 million (9/30/2003: HK$3.6 million), net loss on
deemed disposals of shareholdings in associates of HK$11.4 million (9/30/2003: HK$Nil)
and taxation of HK$69.0 million (9/30/2003: HK$32.6 million).

Profit from operations of HK$117.7 million (9/30/2003: HK$98.2 million) comprised EBITDA
(Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization) of HK$152.2 million (9/30/2003:
HK$128.0 million), depreciation of HK$9.0 million (9/30/2003: HK$9.5 million),
amortization of intangible assets of HK$25.5 million (9/30/2003: HK$20.3 million). The
increase in EBITDA was attributable to the trading of computer related products and consumer
electronic products.

Segment results

For the six months ended September 30, 2004, the Group recorded a profit from operation
of HK$117.7 million which represented a 19.8% growth from HK$98.2 million, the profit
of last corresponding period.

For trading of computer related products, segment turnover amounted to HK$1,807.4 million,
which increased by HK$191.1 million (11.8%). Segment profit amounted to HK$96.6 million,
which increased by HK$26.7 million (38.2%).

For trading of consumer electronic products, segment turnover amounted to HK$913.6 million,
which increased by HK$166.7 million (22.3%). Segment profit amounted to HK$14.8 million,
which increased by HK$1.2 million (8.8%).

For trading of securities, segment turnover amounted to HK$1.3 million, which decreased
by HKS$28.1 million (95.6%). Segment profit amounted to HK$10.4 million, which decreased
by HK$6.7 million (39.1%).

Liquidity

Net bank and cash balances at September 30, 2004 decreased significantly to HK$9.2 million
(3/31/2004: HK$141.1 million) which accounted for 0.6% (3/31/2004: 9.8%) of the net
tangible asset value of the Group. The substantially reduced cash balance, which was brought
about by the repayment of borrowings, saved the finance costs by HK$4.5 million. The
current ratio of the Group at September 30, 2004 was 1.58 (3/31/2004: 1.39).
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Financial review

The net current assets of the Group at September 30, 2004 increased by HK$78.4 million
(12.1%) to HK$724.2 million (3/31/2004: HK$645.8 million). Such increase was mainly
attributable to the repayment of borrowings of HK$79.5 million during the period.

In March 2004, in view of the increasing sales trend and boosting market prices of products
such as DVD and CDR owing to the decrease in supply, the Group made bulk purchase so
as to bargain for favourable prices. As a result, the inventory level of the Group significantly
increased at March 31, 2004, and is now returning to the normal level to HK$672.8 million
as at September 30, 2004 (3/31/2004: HK$877.4 million).

Trade and other receivables decreased by HK$19.5 million (2.6%) to HK$719.3 miilion as
at September 30, 2004 (3/31/2004: HK$738.8 million). Debtors turnover improved slightly
from 50 days last year to 44 days in current period.

Trade and other payables decreased by HK$351.6 million (27.6%) to HK$920.7 million as
at September 30, 2004 (3/31/2004: HK$1,272.3 million). Creditors turnover day decreased
from 78 days last year to 44 days in current period. It was mainly due to the settlement of
large amount of long overdue trade payables during the period.

At September 30, 2004, total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$305.5 million
(3/31/2004: HKS$384.2 million), of which HK$10.4 million (3/31/2004: HK$10.8 million)
were not repayable within one year. The borrowings included bank borrowings of HK$126.0
million (3/31/2004: HK$205.7 million), other loans of HK$151.3 million (3/31/2004:
HK$151.3 million), overdrafts of HK$24.5 million (3/31/2004: HK$23.3 million), obligations
under finance leases of HK$1.3 million (3/31/2004: HK$1.5 million) and amount due to a
minority shareholder of HK$2.4 million (3/31/2004: HK$2.4 million). The drop in borrowings
was due to the repayment of bank and other loans during the period to reduce the finance
costs.

Interests in associates

At September 30, 2004, interests in associates was amounted to HK$847.7 million (3/31/2004:
HK$906.4 million), which decreased by HK$58.7 million. The decrease in balance was
mainly due to the share of losses of HK$29.1 million and the deemed disposals of associates
during the period, resulting in an aggregate loss of HK$11.4 million.

Pledge of assets

At September 30, 2004, certain assets of the Group amounted to HK$405.2 million
(3/31/2004: HK$399.0 million) were pledged to banks and financial institutions for loans’
facilities granted to the Group.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (borrowings/shareholders’ funds) at September 30, 2004 was 16.7%
(3/31/2004: 20.5%).

92 _




APPENDIX I ' FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars and United States Dollars. The risk of foreign exchange fluctuation had not
been significant to the Group. Interest rates of import loans are mainly referenced to LIBOR
or HIBOR plus whereas that of bank and other loans are Prime plus. At the balance sheet
date, the Group did not enter into any interest rate speculative and hedging contracts.
However, the recent weakening of the United States Dollars against other foreign currencies
(especially Canadian Dollars and Great British Pounds) would bring about certain exchange
gains to the Canadian and European subsidiaries so far. Because of the possible rebound of
the United States Dollars, the Group will consider entering into hedging contracts to eliminate
exposure to downside risks, whenever the Group and the concerned foreign subsidiaries
think fit.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities and capital commitments at the balance
sheet date (3/31/2004: HKS$Nil).

Employees and remuneration policies

At September 30, 2004, there were approximately 600 staff (3/31/2004: 800) employed by
the Group. The remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of performance of individual
employees and the prevailing salaries’ trends in various regions. They are subject to be
reviewed every year. The Group also provided employees training programs, mandatory
provident fund scheme, medical insurance and discretionary bonus. Share options are awarded
to employees on merit basis and no share options were granted during the six months
period. :

Trading Operations Review
The Group achieved satisfactory results in its core business for the past six months.
North America

Sales of both CD and DVD media remained strong in the first half of the fiscal year. The
Group is aggressively expanding its presence by adding distribution through new retail
outlets such as Staples, Office Depot and MediaMKT. The Group expects to see a substantial
increase in DVD volumes in the second half of the year accompanied by more stable
pricing. Stronger revenue growth is projected as a results of these factors.

In the United States, according to industry trade publications, Memorex® continues to be the
American market leader in DVD sales with a 28.3% share and CD sales with a 22.6% share.
DVD revenues were weaker than expected due to a decline in market prices without a
significant increase in volume, However, we expect to see a substantial increase in DVD
volumes in the second half of the year accompanied by more stable pricing resulting in
stronger revenue growth.
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In Canada, Memorex® media has gained a very strong market position. There are only a
handful of major outlets that cover the country from coast to coast and the Group’s products
can be found in Best Buy Co. Inc. (“Best Buy”), Future Shop Ltd. (“Future Shop™) and
Walmart Stores Inc. (“Walmart”), the top three retailers in the market. The growth of these
retailers has continued to soar and the Group has also enjoyed major market share growth
with them. Our distribution network to the smaller retailers is growing. The Group’s products
currently represent a significant part of Best Buy/ Future Shop’s CDR business and DVD
business. The future growth potential is very positive and with the surge in higher speed
DVD media and DVD 120 video products, other distribution opportunities are expected to
become available.

The CDR market in Canada for domestic brands has been falling due to the copyright levy
imposed on the product. Competition for CDR sales has become extremely fierce due to the
steady influx of other non domestic brands that are being blatantly sold. This has caused
great concern in the market as second tier retailers use these non domestic brands to undercut
the majors. The Group expects that some of the bigger retailers will add non name brands to
their shelves to stay competitive. Obviously, the effect on domestic brands like Memorex®
will be a reduction in sales. Although this segment has fallen quickly, the Group believes
that since CDR is a mature category, the overall impact of this change will be offset by
rising DVD sales expected in the future.

Europe

In Europe, Memorex® achieved a number three market share position with 6.9% in DVD and
a number four market share position in CDR with 5.0%. The Group has continued the
successful strategy of supplying key retailers on a direct basis and has more than doubled
the number of customers now supplied directly. Even though the DVD market suffered
severe price erosion during this period and market growth was not as predicted, Memorex®
still increased unit sales by 25% and turnover by 10% in comparison to the corresponding
period in last year. Operating costs have been controlled and are running at the same level
as the previous year.

Asia

In Asia, the Group recorded a small profit in the first half of the fiscal year. Japan market
situation is so tough especially on the electronics business and hence sales have been a bit
under than expected. Nevertheless, with tighten control on costs and better sourcing, we
were able to maintain our profitability as planned. Due to the on-going increase on media
costs, sales did not increase substantially for the past six months but with better marketing
strategy, we expect sales can pick up again in 2005. Singapore has been growing steadily
but we expected that its business will even be better for the second half of the year. For
other regions, we have signed the distributorship agreements with several reputable distributors
in respect with Taiwan and New Zealand in 2004, and are now in progress to appoint a
Korean distributor and with that Memorex®'s Asia business will further be strengthened. In
general, Asia business is growing steadily for the past six months but expected to grow
rapidly in 2005 with all distributors appointed for targeted regions.

Placing And Subscription Of Shares

On November 23, 2004, ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, entered into a placing and subscription agreement with the placing agent and the
Company pursuant to which [TC agreed to place 37,000,000 shares at the price of HK$3.22
per share to not less than six placees who were independent third parties procured by the
placing agent and ITC would subscribe for 37,000,000 new shares at the same price of
HK$3.22 per share. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated November 23, 2004
for details of such placing and subscription.
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Outlook

Operationally, the Group is in the process of consolidating its Canadian warehouse into its
U.S. operations, which will reduce operating expenses and improve inventory management.
This consolidation will be fully implemented in the third fiscal quarter. The Group is also
currently reviewing its supply chain in Europe to refocus on better execution in the retail
channel. Going forward, the Group will be in a very good position with the retail trade and
expect to continue this trend over the next year as media categories evolve to new
technologies.

Growth in the second half of financial year 2005 will also be driven by increased sales of
USB flash drives which started to show signs of strong growth in late second quarter. Our
introduction of alkaline batteries in both the U.S. and Europe is gaining strong distribution
in the retail channel.

As the Group looks to the second half of financial year 2005 and financial year 2006, the
Group envisages strong DVD revenue and unit growth along with significant growth within
the USB segment. Qur strategy is to position Memorex® as a leader in the USB drive
segment through increased advertising and retail placement. Both of these initiatives should
help drive continued revenue growth in financial year 2006.”
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4. STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

At the close of business on 31st March, 2005, being the latest practicable date for this statement of
indebtedness prior to the printing of this circular, the Group had secured borrowings of approximately
HK$136 million comprising bank loans of approximately HK$9 million, trust receipt loans of
approximately HK$73 million, share margin financing loans of approximately HK$7 million and
bank overdrafts of approximately HK$47 million, unsecured other borrowings of approximately
HK$151 million and obligation under finance lease of approximately HK$0.5 million.

The secured borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s assets of approximately
HK$228 million.

Save as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Group did not have outstanding at the
close of business on 31st March, 2005 any loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans or other similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances or
acceptable credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance lease commitments, guarantees or other
material contingent liabilities.

The Directors confirmed that there had been no material change in the indebtedness position and
contingent liabilities of the Group since 31st March, 2005.

5. WORKING CAPITAL

Taking into account the Group’s internal resources and present available banking facilities and in
the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its requirement for the next 12 months.

6. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE
The Directors are not aware of any material adverse change in the financial or trading position of

the Group since 31st March, 2004 (being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of
the Company were made up) up to and including the Latest Practicable Date.
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1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Set out below is the summary of the financial information of the CTH Group extracted from the
relevant annual reports of CTH:

Year ended 31st March,

2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RESULTS
Turnover 44,625 41,276 63,514
Loss before taxation (60,791) (65,332) (37,791
Taxation (7,614) - -
Loss before minority interests (68,405) (65,332) (37,791)
Minority interests (9,386) (13,776) (8,179)
Loss for the year (59,019) (51,556) (29,612)
At 31st March,
2002 2003 2004
. HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
NET ASSETS
Total assets 362,440 348,878 232,261
Total liabilities (194,244) (193,078) (102,085)
Minority interests 2,717 1,812 -
Shareholders’ funds 170,913 157,612 130,176
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(i)

AUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Audited financial statements

Set out below is the audited consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement of the CTH Group and the
balance sheet of CTH together with the relevant notes to the financial statements as extracted from
the annual report of CTH for the year ended 31st March, 2004:

“Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2004

Turnover
Cost of sales
Allowance for properties held for sale

Gross profit
Other operating income
Unrealised holding gain (loss) on
other investments
Doubtful debts recovered (provided)
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Deficit arising on revaluation of investment
properties
Loss on disposal of investments in securities
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of properties under development

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of discontinuing operations
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss before minority interests
Minority interests

Loss for the year

Loss per share (basic)
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2004 2003

Notes HK$’000 HK3$’000
4 63,514 41,276
(55,429) (38,742)

(6,006) -

2,079 2,534

7,267 7,359

1,640 (19,583)

20 (6,556)

- (85)

(11,383) (15,328)

(8,800) (1,500)

(13,059) (542)

- (25,421)

5 (22,236) (59,122)
6 (15,585) (5,156)
8 - (713)
23 30 341)
(37,791) (65,332)

9 - -
(37,791) (65,332)

(8,179) (13,776)

(29,612) (51,556)

10 (25 cents) (45 cents)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31st March, 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 11 8,200 17,000
Property, plant and equipment 4 12 380 2,360
8,580 19,360
Current assets
Properties held for sale 14 116,846 168,306
Investments in securities 15 16,388 33,013
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 16 10,311 8,087
Bank balances and cash 80,136 120,112
223,681 329,518
Current liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges 17 7,641 14,625
Bank and other borrowings due within one year 18 94,444 178,453
102,085 193,078
Net current assets 121,596 136,440
Total assets less current liabilities 130,176 155,800
Minority interests 19 - (1,812)
130,176 157,612
Capital and reserves
Share capital 20 1,277 234,375
Reserves 128,899 (76,763)
130,176 157,612
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Balance Sheet
At 31st March, 2004

2004 2003
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 4 4
Interests in subsidiaries 13 65,535 156,211
65,539 156,215
Current assets
Prepayment 1,393 23
Bank balances and cash 383 15
1,776 38
Current liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges 717 348
Unsecured other borrowings — due within one year 600 -
1,317 348
Net current assets (liabilities) 459 (310)
65,998 155,905
Capital and reserves
Share capital 20 1,277 234,375
Reserves 22 64,721 (78,470)
65,998 155,905
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2004

Accumu-

Capital lated

Share Share redemption Other Special (deficit)
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profit Total

HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
{Note) {Note)

At Ist April, 2002 195,375 335,744 646 - (8.908)  (351,944) 170,913
Issue of shares 39,000 - - - - - 39,000
Expenses incurred in connection
with issue of shares - (745) - - - - (745)
Loss for the year - - - - - (51,556) (51,556}
At 31st March, 2003 234,375 334,999 646 - (8908)  (403.500) 157,612
Capital reorganisation
- capital reduction (Nete 20(1a)) (233,203) - - 233,203 - - -
- cancellation of share premium
{Note 20(1d)) - (334999) - 334,999 - - -
- set-off against accumulated deficit
(Note 20(1)) - - - (535.894) - 535,894 -
Exercise of share options 105 2071 - - - - 2,176
Loss for the year - - - - - (29,612) (29,612)
At 315t March, 2004 1,277 2,071 646 32,308 {8,008) 102,782 130,176
Note:

Other reserve of the Group represents net balance from capital reduction, cancellation of share premium and set-off
against the accumulated deficit pursuant to the capital reorganisation on 15th April, 2003.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries

acquired and the nominal amount of the share capital of the Company issued as consideration under the group reorganisation
in 1994.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2004 2003
Note HK$’000 HK$°000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations (22,236) (59,122)
Adjustments for:

Allowance for properties held for sale 6,006 -

Interest income (5,720) (6,099)

Dividend income from unlisted investments in

securities - (244)

Depreciation and amortisation 183 288

Doubtful debts (recovered) provided 20 6,556

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,053) (16)

Deficit arising on revaluation of investment properties 8,800 1,500

Gain on disposal of investment securities - (197)

Loss on disposal of other investments 13,059 542

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

properties under development - 25,421

Unrealised holding (gain) loss on other investments - (1,640) 19,583

Release of negative goodwill (747) -
Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital (3,368) (11,788)
Decrease in properties held for sale 41,144 20,300
Increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments (884) (1,304)
(Decrease) increase in creditors and accrued charges (5,431) 5,039
Cash generated from operations : 31,461 12,247
Interest paid (16,899) (9,947)
Loan arrangement fees paid (1,800) -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 12,762 2,300
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2004 2003
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of investments in securities 10,376 18,087
Interest received 5,720 6,099
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,850 818
Disposal of subsidiaries/business
(net of cash and cash equivalents disposed of) 23 10 2,137
Acquisition of investments in securities (5,170) (57,873)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits - 5,000
Dividends received from unlisted investments in securities - 244
Expenditure on properties under development - (39,873)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - (1,039)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 13,786 (66,400)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings raised 59,016 32,952
New loans from minority shareholders of a subsidiary 15,309 14,681
Proceeds from issue of shares 2,176 39,000
Repayment of bank and other borrowings (143,025) (38,113)
Expenses paid in connection with issue of shares - (745)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (66,524) 47,775
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {39,976) (16,325)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT IST APRIL 120,112 136,437
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31ST MARCH
represented bank balances and cash 80,136 120,112
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31st March, 2004

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 31.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the revised Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) 12 “Income Taxes”, which is one of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
(“HKSA”). The terms of HKFRS is inclusive of SSAPs and Interpretations approved by the
HKSA. The principal effect of the implementation of SSAP12 (Revised) is in relation to
deferred taxation. SSAP 12 (Revised) requires the adoption of a balance sheet liability
method, whereby deferred taxation is recognised in respect of all temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, with limited exceptions.
In the absence of any specific transitional requirements in SSAP 12 (Revised), the new
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. The adoption of this revised SSAP has
had no material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods. Accordingly,
no prior period adjustment has been required.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
for the revaluation of investment properties and certain investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the

identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition over the cost of
acquisition.
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Negative goodwill is presented separately in the balance sheet as a deduction from assets.
To the extent that such negative goodwill is attributable to losses or expenses anticipated at
the date of acquisition, it is released to income in the period in which those losses or
expenses arise. The remaining negative goodwill is recognised as income on a straight-line
basis over the remaining average useful life of the identifiable acquired depreciable assets.
To the extent that such negative goodwill exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired
identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognised in income immediately.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any
identified impairment loss.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has been passed.

When a property is developed for sale, income is recognised only when the property or any
portion of it contracted for sale is completed and the appropriate building occupation permit
has been granted by the relevant authority.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the interest rate applicable.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance, from properties under operating leases,
is recognised on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Profits and losses arising on trading in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has
been established.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential,
any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value based on independent professional
valuation at the balance sheet date. Any surplus or deficit arising on the revaluation of
investment properties is credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve
unless the balance on this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, in which case the excess
of the deficit over the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve is charged to
the income statement. Where a deficit has previously been charged to the income statement
and a surplus subsequently arises, the surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged.

On the disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve attributable to that property is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the term of the relevant
lease is twenty years or less.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off items of property, plant and
equipment, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Buildings 4% or over the remaining terms of
the relevant lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and machinery 10% - 20%

Motor vehicles 10% - 20%

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the income statement.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at
cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment securities
and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long term strategic purpose,
are measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that

is other than temporary.

Other investments are carried at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in net
profit or loss for the year.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to estimated sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
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Loan arrangement fees represent expenses incurred in obtaining short-term unsecure loan
facilities. Such expenses are deferred and amortised to the income statement over the
repayment term of the loan on a straight line basis to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in such currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in the profit or loss for the year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is
disposed of.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxation
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresecable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Operating leases

Rentals payables/receivables under operating leases are charged/credited to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Retirement benefit costs

The pension costs charged to the income statement represent the contributions payable in
the current year to the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and defined contribution
retirement scheme.

4. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net amounts received and receivable from third
parties and is summarised as follows:

2004 2003

HK$°000 HK3°000

Sale of properties 47,276 21,825

Trading of motorcycles 15,864 11,562

Rental income 374 809
Trading of air conditioning equipment and

provision of engineering related services - 7,080

63,514 41,276

The outgoings arising from rental income was negligible in both years.

5. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK§’000
Loss from operations has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration:
— current year 653 404
— underprovision in the previous year 249 379
902 783
Depreciation and amortisation 183 288
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of forfeited
contributions of HK$77,000 (2003: HK$83,000) 23 77
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration 3,933 6,270
3,956 6,347
Dividend income from unlisted investments in securities - (244)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,053) (16)
Gain on disposal of investment securities - (197
Interest income (5,720) (6,099)
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6. FINANCE COSTS

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest on:
— bank and other borrowings wholly repayable
within five years 15,105 9,849
— bank borrowings not wholly repayable
within five years - 98
Loan arrangement fees 480 -
15,585 9.947
Less: Amount capitalised to properties under development - (4,791
15,585 5,156

7. DIRECTors> EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

A. Directors’ emoluments

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000
Fees:

Executive directors - -
Independent non-executive directors 20 -
20 -

Other emoluments paid to executive directors:
Salaries and other benefits 2,574 3,038
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 39 49
2,613 3,087
2,633 3,087

The directors’ emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of directors
2004 2003

Nil — HK$1,000,000 7
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 1
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Highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three (2003: five)
were directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in (A) above. During
the year ended 31st March, 2003, two of the five directors were appointed or resigned
and their emoluments of HK$556,000 which were arisen in the position of employees
and before appointment or after resignation as directors, were excluded from (A)
above.

The emoluments of the remaining two individuals (2003: two directors who were in
the position of employees) were as follows:

2004 2003

HK$000 HK$'000

Salaries and other benefits 486 533
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 22 23
508 556

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors and employees, as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during the year.

8. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

In August 2002, the Group ceased its operations in the trading of air conditioning equipment
and provision of engineering related services in the People’s Republic of China, other than
Hong Kong (the “PRC”) after the disposal of a subsidiary, King-Tech Engineering Company
Limited (“King-Tech Engineering”).

The results of the discontinuing operations were as follows:

Period ended

31st July,

2002

HK$°000

Turnover 7,080
Cost of sales (5,301)
Gross profit 1,779
Other operating income 59
Distribution costs (85)
Administrative expenses (1,841)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (5,280)
Loss before minority interest (5,368)
Minority interest -
Loss for the period up to date of discontinuance (5,368)
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During the year ended 31st March, 2003, King-Tech Engineering contributed HK$1,462,000
to the Group’s net operating cash outflows and received HK$750,000 in respect of investing
activities,

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of King-Tech Engineering at the date of
disposal were as follows:

2003
HK$°000

Total assets 11,808
Total liabilities (9,595)

Loss on disposal of discontinuing operations of HK$713,000 arose on the disposal of King-
Tech Engineering, being the proceeds of disposal less the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s
net assets. '

TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the Group as the Company and
its subsidiaries had no assessable profit for the year.

The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate was increased from 16% to 17.5% with effect from the
2003/2004 year of assessment.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as
follows:

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$°000
Loss before taxation (37,791) (65,332)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 17.5% (2003: 16%) (6,613) (10,453)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 673 1,451
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1,406) (998)
Tax effect of deferred tax assets not recognised 7,379 48,968
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (33) (4)
Utilisation of deductible expenses not claimed previously - (38,964)

Tax effect for the year — -

At 31st March, 2004, the Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of HK$538,966,000 (2003: HK$495,631,000) and deductible temporary differences associated
with investment properties and property, plant and equipment of HK$25,504,000 (2003:
HK$21,994,000). The Company has unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses
of HK$7,154,000 (2003: HK$4,769,000).

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of tax losses and deductible temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
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10.

11.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the following data:

2004 2003

Loss for the year HK$29,612,000 HK$51,556,000
Weighted average number of shares for the

purpose of basic loss per share 118,228,175 113,341,081

For the purpose of calculating basic loss per share, the weighted average number of shares
for the year ended 31st March, 2003 had been adjusted to reflect the capital reorganisation
in April, 2003 as referred to in note 20.

No diluted loss per share has been presented because the exercise of the share options
would result in a decrease of net loss per share.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

THE GROUP
HK$'000

VALUATION
At 1st April, 2003 17,000
Deficit arising on revaluation (8,800)
At 31st March, 2004 8,200

The investment properties of the Group were leased out for rental purposes under operating
leases and were revalued at 31st March, 2004 by an independent firm of professional valuers,
chartered surveyors, on an open market value existing use basis. The resulting deficit arising
on revaluation of HK$8,800,000 has been charged to the consolidated income statement.

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and held under medium term
leases.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

THE GROUP

COST

At 1st April, 2003
Disposal of a subsidiary
Disposals

At 31st March, 2004

DEPRECIATION,

- AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1st April, 2003

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposal
of a subsidiary

Eliminated on disposals

At 31st March, 2004

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2004

At 31st March, 2003

THE COMPANY
COST

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and and Motor

buildings machinery vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
3,295 1,403 384 5,082
(2,037) - - (2,037)
(1,258) (686) (146) (2,090)

- 717 238 955

2,065 553 104 2,722

2 114 67 183
(2,037) - - (2,037)
(30) (207) (56) (293)

- 460 115 575

- 257 123 380

1,230 850 280 2,360
Furniture,

fixtures and

machinery

HK3$’000

At Ist April, 2003 and 31st Marchz 2004

DEPRECIATION
At 1st April, 2003
Provided for the year
At 31st March, 2004

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2004

At 31st March, 2003

6
2
2
4
—

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were situated in the PRC and were held under medium

term land use rights.
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13.

14.

15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost 183,277 183,277
Amounts due from subsidiaries 607,354 609,104
790,631 792,381

Less: Impairment losses (725,096) (636,170)
65,535 156,211

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book values of the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries attributable to the Company as at the date on which the Company
became the holding company of the Group under the group reorganisation in 1994, less
dividends distributed from pre-reorganisation reserves of the subsidiaries.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the Company will not demand repayment
within twelve months from the balance sheet date and the amounts are therefore shown as
non-current.

An impairment loss of HK$88,926,000 (2003: HK$51,730,000) has been recognised in
respect of the investment in and advances to subsidiaries to their recoverable amounts.

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31st March, 2004 are set out in note 31.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 31st March, 2004, the properties held for sales are carried at net realisable value. At 31st
March, 2003, the properties held for sale were carried at the carrying value transferred from

properties under development.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

THE GROUP
Other investments
2004 2003
HK$°000 HK3’000
Equity securities:
Listed in Hong Kong, at market value 16,388 33,013
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16.

17.

18.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
The Group allows credit period ranging from 0 to 30 days to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors at the balance sheet date:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$’000
0 — 60 days 4,799 429
61 — 90 days - 9
Over 90 days - 43
4,799 481
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 5,512 7,606
10,311 8,087

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet date:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK3$°000
0 - 60 days 488 1,630
61 — 90 days - 495
QOver 90 days 1,283 1,173
1,771 3,298
Other creditors and accrued expenses 5,870 11,327
7,641 14,625

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK3$'000 HK$'000
Bank loans, secured 87,844 168,688
Other borrowings, unsecured 6,600 9,765
94,444 178,453

Included in other borrowings were HK$6,000,000 and HK$600,000 which bear interest at
Hong Kong prime rate plus 2% per annum and at 12% per annum, respectively.
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19.

20.

MINORITY INTERESTS

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HKS$000 HK$’000
Loans from minority shareholders of a subsidiary - 109,758
Share of net liabilities attributable to
minority shareholders of subsidiaries - (111,570)
- (1,812)

The loans were unsecured, interest free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

At 31st March, 2003, the minority shareholders of the subsidiary had agreed to provide
adequate funds to the subsidiary, on a pro rata basis, to meet in full its liabilities as they fall
due and not to demand the repayment of the loans due to them until the subsidiary is in a
financial position to do so. The minority shareholders had also agreed that any losses of the
subsidiary attributable to them could be offset against the loans due to them. Accordingly,
the amounts due from the minority sharcholders in respect of their share of net liabilities
had been recognised and offset against amounts due to them.

SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Amount
HK$'000
Authorised:
At 1st April, 2002 and 31st March, 2003,
at HK$0.10 each 4,000,000,000 400,000
Capital reorganisation
~ Share sub-division (Note 1b) 796,000,000,000 -
— Share consolidation (Note Ic) (760,000,000,000) -
At 31st March, 2004, at HK$0.01 each A 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid:
At Ist April, 2002, at HK$0.10 each 1,953,753,121 195,375
Placement of shares 390,000,000 39,000
At 31st March, 2003, at HK$0.10 each 2,343,753,121 234,375
Capital reorganisation
— Capital reduction (Note la) - (233,203)
— Share consolidation (Note Ic) (2,226,565,465) -
Exercise of share options (Note 2) 10,510,000 105
At 31st March, 2004, at HK$0.01 each 127,697,656 1,277
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21,

Notes:

(H Pursuant to an announcement dated 6th March, 2003 (the “Announcement”) and resolutions passed on
14th April, 2003, a capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation™) was passed and with effect from
15th April, 2003 which involved:

(a) (i) the nominal value of all issued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “Share(s)”") was reduced by HK$0.0995 each by cancelling an equivalent
amount of paid-up capital of the Share so that the nominal value of each such Share was
reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.0005. Accordingly, based upon 2,343,753,121 Shares in
issue as at the date of the Announcement, the issued share capital of the Company of
HK$234.375,000 would be reduced by HK$233,203,000 to HK$1,172,000 (the “Capital
Reduction™); and

(i) the credit arising from such reduction had been credited to the contributed surplus account
of the Company;

(b) every unissued Share of HK$0.10 was sub-divided into 200 unissued shares of HK$0.0005 each;

(c) every 20 issued and unissued shares of HK$0.0005 each in the capital of the Company were
consolidated into one new ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
following the Capital Reorganisation (the “Consolidated Share(s)™). On such basis and after the
Capital Reduction, there were 117,187,656 Consolidated Shares in issue (the “Share
Consolidation™); and

(d) the share premium as at 31st January, 2003 in the share premium account of the Company was
cancelled and the credit arising therefrom was credited to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

Part of the credit transferred to the contributed surplus account of the Company mentioned in (a)(ii} and
(d) above had been used to set off against the deficit of the Company as at 31st January, 2003. According
to the unaudited management accounts of the Company as at 31st January, 2003, the deficit of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$535.9 million.

(2) On 23rd February, 2004, 24th February, 2004 and 5th March, 2004, the Company issued 3,510,000,
5,845.000 and 1,155,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, respectively, for consideration of HK$0.207
per share upon exercise of share options granted to certain employees and consultants. The new shares
rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTIONS
Scheme adopted on 28th February, 1994 (the “1994 Scheme”)

The 1994 Scheme was adopted on 28th February, 1994 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees and will expire on 27th February, 2004.
Under the 1994 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant share options to
eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Share options granted should be accepted within 14 days from the date of grant, upon
payment of HKS$1 per each grant of share options. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of
shares; and (ii) 80% of the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

At 31st March, 2004, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 1994 Scheme was 27,300, representing approximately 0.02%
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the 1994 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.
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No option may be granted to any one person which if exercised in full would result in the
total number of shares already issued and issuable to him under all the options previously
granted to him and the said option exceeding 25% of the number of shares issued and
issuable under all the options which may be granted under the 1994 Scheme at the time it 1s
proposed to grant the said option to that person.

Share options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 1994 Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the option is granted and prior to the expiry of ten years
from that date, provided that, in the five years from the date of grant, the exercise of the
option shall be restricted to a cumulative total of 20% of the entitlement to the option in
each year. The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years
after it has been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of 1994 Scheme.

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 26th August, 2002, the 1994 Scheme was terminated.
Scheme adopted on 26th August, 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”)

Following the termination of the 1994 Scheme in August 2002, the 2002 Scheme was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 26th August, 2002 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible persons and will expire on 25th August, 2012. Under the
2002 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant share options to the
following eligible persons to subscribe for shares in the Company:

(1)  employees including executive directors of the Company, its subsidiaries and any
companies in which the Company holds any equity interest; or

(ii)  non-executive directors of the Company, its subsidiaries and any companies in which
the Company holds any equity interest; or

(i1ii) suppliers or customers; or
(iv) consultants, advisers or agents.

Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days of the date of grant, upon payment
of HK$1 per each grant of share options. The exercise price is determined at the highest of:
(i) the closing price of the shares on the date of grant of the share option; or (ii) the average
closing price of shares on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant or
(iii) the nominal value of shares on the date of grant.

Share options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the option is granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of
ten years from that date.
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At 31st March, 2004, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme was 1,155,000, representing approximately 0.
9% of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which share options under the 2002 Scheme may be granted when aggregated
with the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under all
the other schemes (the “Scheme Limit”) is 10% of shares in issue on the adoption date of
the 2002 Scheme. The Scheme Limit may be refreshed by a resolution in shareholders’
meeting such that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other schemes shall not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of such shareholder’s approval. However, the Scheme
Limit and any increase in the Scheme Limit shall not result in the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
and other schemes exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No person shall be
granted a share option, within 12-month period of the date of grant, exceeds 1% of the
shares in issue as at the date of grant.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share options held by employees
(including directors) and movements in such holdings during the year:

Qutstanding Adjustment Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding

at during during during during at

Option type 1.4.2003 the year the year the year the year  31.3.2004
{Note)

1994 Scheme 11,889,000 (11,294,550) - (567,150) 27.300

2002 Scheme - - 11,665,000 (10,510,000) - 1155000

11,889,000 (11,294,550) 11,665,000 (10,510,000)  (567,150) 1,182,300

Outstanding Adjustment Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding

at during during during during at
Option type 1.4.2002 the year the year the year the year  31.3.2003
1994 Scheme 43,169,000 - — - (31,280,000) 11,869,000

The market price of the shares ranged from HK$0.40 to HK$0.43 on the exercise dates of
the options.

Details of the 1994 Scheme held by the directors included in the above table are as follows:

Outstanding  Adjustment Cancelled Outstanding

at during during at

Year 1st April the year the year 31st March
(Note)

2004 4,580,000 {4,351,000) {229,000) -

2003 19,580,000 - (8,800,000) 10,780,000

There was no option granted to directors under the 2002 Scheme.

- 119 -




APPENDIX 1I FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE CTH GROUP

Details of the share options outstanding at 31st March, 2004 are as follows:

Number of shares
to be issued
upon exercise of

Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price the share options
HKS (Note)
{Note)

1994 Scheme
19.6.1997 19th June, 1997 to 18th June, 2007 21.84 4,800
2.2.1998 2nd February, 1998 to 1st February, 2008 2.00 2,000
17.11.1999 17th November, 1999 to 16th November, 2009 2.34 10,500
14.3.2000 14th March, 2000 to 13th March, 2010 6.60 10,000
27,300

2002 Scheme
7.1.2004 9th January, 2004 to 8th January, 2014 0.207 1,155,000
1,182,300

Nore:  With effect from {5th April, 2003, every 20 issued and unissued shares of HK$0.0005 each in the capital
of the Company was consolidated into one new ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company following the Capital Reorganisation. Accordingly, the exercise price and the number of share
options were adjusted.

Total consideration received during the year from employees and consultants for taking up
the options granted is amounted to HK$10 (2003: Nil).

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the Company’s or the
Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised
in the income statement in respect of the value of options granted in the year. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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22.

RESERVES
Capital
Share  redemption Contributed
premium reserve surplus Deficit Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
(note)
THE COMPANY
At Ist April, 2002 335,744 646 173,869 (534,711) (24,452)
Expenses incurred in connection
with issue of shares (745) - - - (745)
Loss for the year - - - (53.273) (53,273)
At 31st March, 2003 334,999 646 173,869 (587,984) (78,470)
Capital reorganisation
- Capital reduction
(Note 20{1a)) - - 233,203 - 233,203
— Cancellation of share
premium
{Note 20(1d)) (334,999) - 334999 - -
~ Set-off against the deficit
(Note 20(1)) - - (535,894) 535,894 -
Exercise of share options 2,071 - - - 2,071
Loss for the year - - - (92,083) 192,083)
At 31st March, 2004 2,071 646 206,177 (144,173) 64,721
Note: The contributed surplus of the Company represents:
(i) the difference between the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company at

the date of the group reorganisation in 1994 less any dividends distributed from the pre-
reorganisation reserves and the nominal amount of the Company’s share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition; and

(i) net balance from capital reduction, cancellation of share premium and set-off against the deficit
pursuant to the capital reorganisation on 15th April, 2003.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is also available for distribution to
shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus, if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less than the aggregate
of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st March, 2004 was HK$62,004,000 (2003: Nil).
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23.

24.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$°000
Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment - 45
Investment property - 6,000
Inventories - 2,288
Debtors, deposits and prepayments - 8,614
Bank balances and cash - 865
Creditors and accrued charges 20) (9,207)
Amounts due to customers for contract work -~ (455)
Secured bank borrowings - (4,094)
(20) 4,056
Loss on disposal of discontinuing operations - (713)
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries 30 341
Total consideration 10 3,002
Satisfied by:
Cash 10 3,002
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration 10 3,002
Bank balances and cash disposed of - (865)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal 10 2,137

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year have no contribution (2003: HK$7,331,000) to
the Group’s turnover and had a loss of HK$39,000 (2003: HK$5,246,000) included in the
Group’s results from operations.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 24th December, 2003, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Asia
Progress and Handsworth and loans of HK$27,803,000, HK$83,337,000 and HK$14,000,000
owing by Asia Progress, Handsworth and Master Super Development Limited (“Master
Super”), respectively, to Mr. Wong Chun Hong (“Mr. Wong”), the sole beneficial shareholder
of Asia Progress and Handsworth and a director of Master Super, for total cash consideration
of HK$5. Details of the above are disclosed in note 28. This acquisition has been accounted
for by the acquisition method of accounting. The amount of negative goodwill arising as a
result of the acquisition was HK$5,057,000.
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25,

26.

2004 2003
HKS$'000 HK$000
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
Investments in securities - 12,712
Other borrowings - (12,712)
Minority interest (124,879) -
Total consideration (124,879) -
SATISFIED BY
Cash - -
Legal and professional fees 261 -
Waiver of loans from former minority shareholder (125,140) -
(124,879) -

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st March, 2004 contributed HK$11,158,000
to the Group’s turnover and a profit of HK$1,895,000 to the Group’s results from operations.

During the year ended 31st March, 2003, the subsidiary was acquired at cash consideration
of HK$2 and did not have significant contribution to the Group’s loss from operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March, 2004, the Group had given an indemnity to the purchaser relating to
unrecorded taxation liabilities, if any, and warranties relating to the affairs and businesses
of a subsidiary disposed of in the previous year. The maximum aggregate liability of the
Group in respect of all claims for breach of the warranties shall, when taken together with
the aggregate liability of the Group in respect of all claims under the indemnity, not exceed
the sum of HK$60,000,000 (2003: HK$60,000,000). All related claims may be brought
against the Group up to the expiry of 10 years from 31st March, 1998.

At 31st March, 2004, the Company had outstanding corporate guarantees amounting to
approximately HK$114,000,000 (2003: HK$118,400,000) issued in favour of banks to secure
general banking facilities granted by the banks to its subsidiaries and had given guarantees
to security companies in respect of the obligations of security accounts opened in the
security companies by its subsidiaries.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases for premises during the year was
HK$294,000 (2003: HK$505,000).
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27.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK3'000 HK$°000
Within one year - 294
In the second to fifth year inclusive - 374
- 668

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office
premises. As at 31st March, 2003, leases were negotiated and fixed for a term of three
years.

The Company had no commitments under operating leases for both years.
The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$374,000 (2003: HK$809,000).

The investment property is expected to generate rental yields of 4.56% (2003: 3.28%) on an
ongoing basis.

At 31st March, 2004, the Group had contracted with tenants for the future minimum lease
payments amounting to HK$90,000 (2003: HK$152,000) which falls due within one year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 31st March, 2004, the Group’s bank and other borrowings were secured by the following:

(a) legal charges over the properties held for sale of the Group with a carrying value of
HK$116,846,000 (2003: HK$168,306,000);

(b) legal charges over the investment properties of a subsidiary, Fountain Property Limited,
with a carrying value of HK$8,200,000 (2003: Nil);

(c) a share charge of a subsidiary, Master Super;

(d) afloating charge on all the assets, including but not limited to the uncalled capital, of
Master Super;

(e) assignments of the right, title, interest and benefits in and under all the existing and
future building contracts in respect of the Group’s properties held for sale in Hong
Kong;

(f)  the benefit under all insurance policies of the Group’s properties held for sale in
Hong Kong;

(g) the future sales proceeds, rentals and other earnings generated from the Group’s
properties held for sale; and

(h)  subordination of shareholders’ loans of Master Super.

In addition to (a) & (b) indicated above, at 31st March, 2003, the Group’s other borrowings
were also secured by other investments with a carrying value of HK$9,765,000.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) On 11th November, 2003, Cheung Tai Hong Holdings (Property) Limited (“CTH
Property”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into agreements with
Mr. Wong in respect of the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of and loans
to Asia Progress (the “Asia Progress Agreement”) and Handsworth (the “Handsworth
Agreement”) (the “Acquisitions™). The Asia Progress Agreement and the Handsworth
Agreement were completed on 24th December, 2003 (the “Completion Date™).

Pursuant to the Asia Progress Agreement, CTH Property had acquired the entire
issued share capital of Asia Progress from Mr. Wong at a consideration of HK$1 and
accepted the assignment of the shareholder’s loan owing by Asia Progress to Mr.
Wong as at the Completion Date of HK$27,803,000 at a consideration of HKS$1. In
addition, Mr. Wong had granted, before the Completion Date, an unsecured loan to
Master Super, in a sum of HK$14,000,000 and upon the Completion Date, assigned
the said loan to CTH Property at a consideration of HK$1. Pursuant to the Handsworth
Agreement, CTH Property had acquired the entire issued share capital of Handsworth
from Mr. Wong at a consideration of HK$1 and accepted the assignment of the
shareholder’s loan owing by Handsworth to Mr. Wong at the Completion Date of
HK$83,337,000 at a consideration of HK$1. The sole investment of each of Asia
Progress and Handsworth was the 10% and 30% shareholding interest in Master
Super, respectively. After completion of the Asia Progress Agreement and Handsworth
Agreement, Asia Progress, Handsworth and Master Super become wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CTH Property. The Acquisitions were approved by shareholders at a
special general meeting on 12th December, 2003.

(b) During the year ended 31st March, 2003, Master Super, obtained additional
shareholders’ loans of HK$36,700,000 from the Group and two shareholder companies,
Asia Progress and Handsworth, controlled by Mr. Wong. At 31st March, 2003, the
outstanding balance of the loans from the Group and the shareholder companies
amounted to approximately HK$164,636,000 and HK$109,758,000, respectively.

The loans were unsecured, interest free, repayable on demand and made on a pro rata
basis with reference to the equity holding in Master Super. Details of the balance of
the loans advanced by the above shareholder companies as at 31st March, 2003 are
set out in note 19.

In addition, Mr. Wong and the Company had given guarantees amounting to
HK$112,000,000 (2003: HK$194,000,000) in favour of a bank to secure banking
facilities granted to Master Super. The guarantees were given on a pro rata basis with
reference to the equity holding in Master Super without consideration.

(c) During the year ended 31st March, 2003, the Group received a sum of HK$560,000
for sharing of administrative expenses from Top Universal Management Limited (“Top
Universal”), a company in which Mr. Ding Chung Keung, Vincent and Ms. Lin Fung
Yi, directors of the Company, were also directors. Mr. Tse Cho Tseung, director of
the Company, was ex-director of and had beneficial interests in Top Universal. Top
Universal was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Estate Limited, a listed company
on the Stock Exchange. The amount was negotiated by reference to prevailing market
rates.
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29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for eligible employees.
The assets of the scheme are separately held in funds under the control of trustees.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement represents contributions payable to
the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there are employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the balance sheet dates, the Group had no significant forfeited contributions, which arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefits scheme and which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group in future years.

With effect from 1st December, 2000, the Group has also joined a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the income statement
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to 31st March, 2004, the Group has the following significant post balance sheet
events:

(a)  Pursuant to the announcement on 24th March, 2004, Cheung Tai Hong (B.V.1.) Limited
(“CTH (B.V.1.)"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and China Strategic
Holdings Limited (“China Strategic™), its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which CTH (B.V.1.) had
agreed to acquire from China Strategic the entire equity interest in Tung Fong Hung
Investment Limited (“Tung Fong Hung”) for a total consideration of HK$42 million.
Tung Fong Hung and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of Tung Fong Hung branded Chinese pharmaceutical and health products and
foodstuffs. The said consideration was settled as to HK$6.5 million by the issue of a
promissory note by the Company and as to HK$35.5 million in cash.

On the same date, the Company, CTH (B.V.L.) and Chelson Limited (“Chelson”), a
third party, entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which CTH
(B.V.1.) had acquired from Chelson its entire holding of 50% equity interest in Pacific
Wins Development Ltd. (“Pacific Wins”) for a total consideration of HK$28 million.
The said consideration was settled as to HK$6.5 million by a promissory note issued
by the Company, as to HK$15 million by a convertible note issued by the Company
and as to HK$6.5 million in cash. The remaining 50% equity interest in Pacific Wins
is held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tung Fong Hung. Pacific Wins and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production, sales and distribution of western
pharmaceutical products through Jean-Marie Pharmacal Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Pacific Wins.
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31.

The above transactions were completed on 6th May, 2004. Upon the completion date,
Tung Fong Hung and Pacific Wins become wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

(b)  Pursuant to the provisional sale and purchase agreement dated 12th July, 2004, the
Group disposed of its investment properties to an independent third party at a
consideration of HK$5,000,000.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March, 2004 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Asia Progress

CTH (B.V.L)

Cheung Tai Hong
(China) Limited

Cheung Tai Hong
Holdings (Foods)
Limited

CTH Property

Cheung Tai Hong
Holdings (REA)
Limited

Cheung Tai Hong
Holdings (Technology)
Limited

Cheung Tai Hong,
Limited

Fountain Property
Limited

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
operations share capital
British Virgin US$!1

Islands ordinary share

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

US§$50,000

ordinary shares

HK$2
ordinary shares

HKS$2
ordinary shares

HK$10,000,000
ordinary shares

HK$2
ordinary shares

HKS$2
ordinary shares

HK$2,000
ordinary shares

HK$500,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(note)

HK$2
ordinary shares
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Percentage
of issued share
capital held by
the Company
Directly Indirectly
% %
- 100
100 -
.- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Principal
activities

Investment holding

Investment holding

Property holding

Inactive

Investment holding

Inactive

Investment holding

Investment holding

Property investment
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32.

Percentage
Place of Issued and of issued share
incorporation/ fully paid capital held by
Name of subsidiary operations share capital the Company Principal
Directly Indirectly activities
% %
Handsworth British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands ordinary share
King-Tech International Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited ordinary shares
Cheung Tai Hong Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Trading of
Holdings (Motor ordinary shares motorcycles
Vehicle) Limited and spare parts
Master Super Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Property holding
ordinary shares and sale
Mega Wealth Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Inactive
ordinary shares
Ponwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Inactive
ordinary shares
Profit View Limited British Virgin USs$i - 100 [nvestment holding
Islands ordinary share
Sound Advice British Virgin US$100 - 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited Islands ordinary shares
Sunray Power Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding

Islands

ordinary share

Note: The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies nor to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the balance sheet date or at
any time during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into two operating divisions.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property
Motorcycles

— property investment and development
- trading of motorcycles and spare parts

In August 2002, the business of trading of air conditioning equipment and provision of
engineering related services was disposed of and discontinued.
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Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

2004

Continuing operations

Motorcycles
HK$’000

Property
HK$'000

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended
31st March, 2004

Turnover 15,864 47,650

Segment results 664 {9,641)

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 20

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss before minority interests
Minority interests

Loss for the year

BALANCE SHEET
At 31st March, 2004

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

1,977 132,995

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

1,157 6,295

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Depreciation and amortisation - 2
Allowance for properties

held for sale -
Deficit arising on revaluation of

investment properties - 8,800
Release of negative goodwill - 747
Doubtful debt provided (recovered) - 37

6,006
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Unallocated
HK$’000

10

181

(5;)

Consolidated
HK$'000

63,514

(8,977)

(13,259)
(22,236)
(15,585)

30

(37.791)

(37,791)
(8,179)

(29,612)

134,972
97,289

232,261

7,452
94,633

102,085

183
6,006
8,800

747
(20)
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2003

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended
31st March, 2003

Turnover

Segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of discontinuing
operations

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss before minority interests
Minority interests

Loss for the year

BALANCE SHEET
At 31st March, 2003

ASSETS

Segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets
LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Discontinuing

Continuing operations operations
Air

conditioning

Motorcycles Property equipment
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
11,562 22,634 7,080
(225) (32,097) (5,368)

- - (713)

- (341 -

529 195,194 -

44 14,150 -
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Consolidated
HK$'000

41,276

(37,690)
(21,432)

(59,122)
(5,156)

(713)
(341)

(65,332)

(65,332)
(13,776)

(51,556)

195,723
153,155

348,878

14,194
178,884

193,078
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Continuing operations

Discontinuing

operations

Motorcycles
HKS$’000

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions -
Depreciation and amortisation -
Impairment loss recognised

in respect of properties

under development -
Deficit arising on revaluation

of investment properties -
Doubtful debt provided -

Geographical segments

Air

conditioning
Property  equipment
HK$'000 HK3'000

89
22
25,421

1,500

OGN W

5,280

Unallocated Consolidated
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000

947 1,039
260 288
- 25,421

- 1,500
1,276 6,556

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
administrative function was carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC. In August 2002, the
manufacturing function was disposed of and discontinued.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by geographical market,

irrespective of the origin of the goods:

Sales revenue by
geographical market

Loss from operations

2004 2003 2004 2003

HK$°000 HK3'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Hong Kong 63,514 34,196 (11,131) (31,913)
PRC - 7,080 1,548 (5,338)
63,514 41,276 (9,583) (37,251)

Corporate expenses (12,653) (21,871
Loss from operations (22,236) (59,122)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to
property, plant and equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are

located:
Carrying amount of Additions to property,
segment assets plant and equipment
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Hong Kong 232,261 347,648 - 1,039
PRC - 1,230 - -
232,261 348,878 - 1,039
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(il) Management discussion and analysis
(a) For the year ended 31st March, 2004

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the CTH Group’s results
and financials extracted from the annual report of CTH for the year ended 31st
March, 2004:

“Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31st March, 2004 was approximately
HK$63,514,000, representing a significant increase of 54% from that of last year.
The improvement in turnover was mainly attributable to the increase in sales proceeds
from the Group’s property development project at Sheung Wan, namely Talon Tower.
During the year, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$29,612,000.
This represents a reduced loss of 43% from last year. The significant improvement in
the Group’s result was mainly due to the appreciation in value of the properties of the
Group due to the recent recovery of the property market. The sales of motorcycles
also made a satisfactory contribution to the Group.

Property Development

Talon Tower is a 26-storey commercial and residential building. With the recent recovery
of the property market and the active sale and marketing effort, satisfactory sales was
recorded in the first quarter of 2004. Nearly half of the units were sold now.

Sales of approximately HK$47,276,000 were achieved during the year. The proceeds
from the sales had been wholly used to repay its bank loan. Since the completion of
construction, no finance cost had been capitalized. Excluding the allowance made for
devaluation, property sales yielded an approximate gross profit of HK$5,973,000.

To take advantage of the improved sentiment in the property market since late 2003,
the Group acquired the remaining 40% interest in Talon Tower in December, 2003.
The acquisition enables better efficiency in the sale team, there had been marked
improvement in sale performance thereafter. The proceeds from sales helped to reduce
the bank borrowing and thus improve the gearing position of the Group.

Trading of Motorcycles

The Group continues to be the distributor of Suzuki motorcycles in Hong Kong and
Macau. The turnover for the year was approximately HK$15,864,000 which showed
an increase of 37% as compared with that of last year, as a result of the popularity of
scooter in the region. The business made a contribution to the Group of approximately
HK$664,000 during the year.

Financial Review

As at 31st March, 2004, the net asset value of the Group was HK$130,176,000, which
showed a decrease of 17% over that of last year. The drop was attributable to the net
loss reported for the year. The Group maintained a bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$80,136,000, while bank and other borrowings had decreased from
HK$178,453,000 to HK$94,444,000. These bank and other borrowings comprised
mainly the project loans relating to Talon Tower, which amounted to HK$86,771,000
at the year end date and were bearing interest with reference to Hong Kong interbank
offer rate. In view of the low interest environment, the Group made no hedge against
interest rate fluctuation. The gearing ratio of the Group (the ratio of total liabilities
over total assets) was 43% (2003: 55%).
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(b)

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the Board considered the Group was not subject to any material exchange
rate exposure.

On 15th April, 2003, the Group underwent a capital reorganisation (“Capital
Reorganisation”) involving capital reduction, share sub-division, share consolidation
and share premium cancellation that led to the nominal value of the shares of the
Company being reduced to HK$0.01 each.

Rewards for Employees

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group employed 10 persons in Hong Kong and 1 person
in the PRC. The total personnel expenses amounted to approximately HK$3,956,000
(2003: HK$6,347,000). Employees are remunerated according to qualifications and
experience, job nature and performance, as well as market conditions. The Group
also provides other benefits such as medical and dental insurance cover and provident
fund scheme to the employees. During the year, the Group issued 10,510,000 new
shares to employees and consultants at HK$0.207 per share pursuant to the 2002
Option Scheme, raising HK$2,176,000. The proceeds were used as working capital.
There was no share option granted to any director during the year.

Prospects

Since late 2003, property buyers have been restoring confidence in the property market
following the economic recovery in Hong Kong led by the Government’s active policies
in the individual travel permit by PRC tourists and the CEPA. The Board is confident
that the property development will bring better return to the Group. In addition, with
the proceeds from sales of units in Talon Tower, the bank loans are further reduced.
This creates strength to the Group for other investment opportunities.

In May, 2004, the Group acquired 100% interest in Tung Fong Hung Group (“TFH”).
TFH is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of “Tung Fong Hung” branded
Chinese pharmaceutical and healith products in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan,
Canada, Macau and Singapore. It is also engaged in the production and distribution
of western pharmaceutical products in Hong Kong. The Board perceives the investment
will bring in favourable benefits to the Group as Tung Fong Hung will continue to
grow with profitable returns in pace with the increase in health awareness of the
public and the surge in the number of incoming PRC visitors.”

For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the CTH Group’s results
and financials extracted from the annual report of CTH for the year ended 31st
March, 2003:

“Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year was approximately HK$41,276,000, representing a
decrease of 8% over the same period of last year. Turnover was mainly derived from
the sale of properties and trading of motorcycles and spare parts. During the year, the
Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$51,556,000, an improvement of 13%
compared with last year’s result. The loss for the year is mainly due to deficit arising
on revaluation of investment properties of HK$1,500,000 and the impairment loss
arising on the properties under development of approximately HK$25,421,000 and
unrealised holding loss on other investments of approximately HK$19,583,000.
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Property Development

The Group owns 60% interest in a property development project in Sheung Wan,
namely Talon Tower. The superstructure construction for the project was completed
and the sales activity has begun since November 2002. As at 31st March, 2003,
approximately HK$21,825,000 of sales was achieved. The proceeds from the sale
have been used to repay its bank loan so that the Group’s gearing position can be
improved. However, in view of the sluggish property market in Hong Kong, the
Group had provided an impairment loss of approximately HK$25,421,000 in respect
of the Talon Tower during the year.

Trading of Motorcycles

The Group continues to be the distributor of Suzuki motorcycles in Hong Kong and
Macau. The turnover for the year was approximately HK$11,562,000 which has
increased by 16% as compared with last year. The business incurred a loss of
approximately HK$225,000 during the year.

Electrical and Mechanical Engineering and Distribution

Due to the unsatisfactory performance in electrical and mechanical engineering and
distribution, the Group disposed of the business to an independent third party in
August 2002 at a loss of approximately HK$713,000.

Financial Review

The net asset value of the Group as at 31st March, 2003 was HK$157,612,000, which
was a decrease of 8% over last year end date. It was mainly attributed by the
impairment loss arising on the properties under development of approximately
HK$25.421,000, deficit on revaluation of investment properties of HK$1,500,000 and
unrealised holding loss on other investments of approximately HK$19,583,000
respectively. The Group maintained a high cash balance of approximately
HK$120,112,000. On the other hand, the secured bank and other borrowings of the
Group, which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and were bearing interest with
reference to prime rate, had increased slightly from HK$174,996,000 to
approximately HK$178,453,000 as at 31st March, 2003. Secured loans for Talon
Tower of approximately HK$168,688,000 was matured in December 2002, and the
lending bank had conditionally agreed to extend the repayment date. In view of the
relative low interest rate, the Group made no hedge for those floating prime rate
based borrowings. The gearing ratio (the ratio of total liabilities over total assets) was
55% (2002: 53%).

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
the Board considered the Group is not subject to any material exchange rate exposure.

On 28th May, 2002, the Group entered into a conditional placing agreement with a
placing agent, whereby the placing agent agreed to place, on a fully underwritten
basis, 390,000,000 new shares at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share. The
net proceeds from the placing was approximately HK$38,000,000, out of
which HK$20,000,000 would be used to finance the development of the Group’s
property in Hong Kong and the balance of approximately HK$18,000,000 would be
used as general working capital. The placing was completed on 12th June, 2002.
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(c)

On 6th March, 2003, the Group proposed a capital reorganisation (the “Capital
Reorganisation™) involving capital reduction, share sub-division, share consolidation
and share premium cancellation. Details were set out in the circular sent to the
shareholders on 21st March, 2003. The Capital Reorganisation was approved in a
shareholders’ meeting and became effective on 15th April, 2003.

Rewards For Employees

As at 31st March, 2003, the Group employed 11 persons in Hong Kong. The total
personnel expenses amounted to approximately HK$6,347,000 (2002: HK$15,697,000).
Employees are remunerated according to qualifications and experience, job nature
and performance, as well as market conditions. The Group also provides other benefits
such as medical and dental insurance cover and retirement benefits schemes to the
employees. There was no share option granted to any director and employee during
the year.

Prospects

The Group continues to suffer loss from property development business as a result of
persistent downturn in the overall business environment and high unemployment rate,
coupled with the outbreak of atypical pneumonia since February 2003. In view of the
adverse situation, the directors will take a prudent approach in directing the business.
Stringent cost saving measures are implemented during the year and thereby reducing
the expenditure of the Group to a lower level. Continuous efforts have been made to
seek business opportunities that will yield positive returns.”

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the CTH Group’s results
and financials extracted from the annual report of CTH for the year ended 31st
March, 2002:

“Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year was HK$44,625,000, representing a decrease of
9% over the same period of last year. Turnover was mainly derived from the trading
of air-conditioning and mechanical equipment and provision of engineering related
services, this business showed a slight improvement over the same period of last year,
drop in turnover was reported by the Group’s other businesses, leading to a drop in
the total turnover. During the year, the Group recorded a loss of HK$359,019,000, an
improvement of 62% compared with last year’s result. The loss for the year is mainly
due to the loss on disposal of several subsidiaries of HK$11,373,000, deficit arising
on revaluation of investment properties of HK$2,500,000 and the impairment loss
arising on the properties under development of HK$21,843,000.

This is a year of re-engineering of business activities of the Group. In October 2001,
Lunghin Enterprise Inc. (“Lunghin”), of which the new chairman of the Group Mr.
Tse Cho Tseung is the sole shareholder, acquired 448,503,921 shares in the Company
and thus becomes a substantial shareholder of the Company. Continuous efforts have
been made to dispose of non-core business with less controllable interest and
investments or assets with less productivity to the Group in order to lower its leverage
and to conserve cash for future development.
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Property Development
Beijing Project

The Group’s 100% shareholding of Long River Development Limited (“Long River”)
as a 80% stakeholder of a development project in Beijing (“Beijing Project”) has
resulted to a pre-tax loss of HK$17,614,000 for the current year. Due to the substantial
capital requirement for the continuation of the Beijing Project and to avoid having to
sustain further losses from the project, the Group has disposed of its interest in the
entire project at a cash proceed of HK$15,000,000 in October 2001.

Sheung Wan Project

The Group owns 60% interest in a property development project in Sheung Wan
(“Sheung Wan Project”), which is to be offered for sale soon under the name Talon
Tower. The superstructure construction for the project has been completed and the
occupation permit is expected to be ready by September 2002. The Group expects to
offer the units for pre-sale in the coming months and the proceeds will be used to
repay its bank loan so that the Group’s liquidity position can be improved.

Information Technology

Following the operation stoppage of Value-Net Limited (“Value-Net”) of which the
Group holds an aggregate 30% interest and the subsequent legal action against Mr.
Cheng Yuk Kuen (“Mr. Cheng”), the high court, in March 2002, has ordered that
judgment be entered against Mr. Cheng to pay the Group the sum of HK$89,910,000
for his breaching of the sales and purchases agreements entered into between Mr.
Cheng and the Group. The Group will continue its best endeavors to recover the
amount from Mr. Cheng.

Electrical and Mechanical Engineering and Distribution

This year’s performance of the segment, where nearly all the business activities are
conducted in PRC, was severely affected by a trade dispute between the PRC and
Japan in which one-forth of the year has been subjected to a 100% punitive import
tariffs of Japan made air-conditioning products.

Pharmaceutical Plant

An operation loss of HK$823,000 was recorded from a turnover of HK$3,459,000 by
Beijing Health Medical Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Drug”). In view of the
uncertain prospect of Beijing Drug following the planned demolition and relocation
of the current production facilities as stipulated by Beijing government, the Group
has disposed of its entire interest in Beijing Drug in November 2001 at a cash proceed
of HK$1,500,000 and ceased its business in the pharmaceutical industry.

Department Store

The Group holds 48.73% interest in an associate, Shenzhen Rainbow Shopping Co.
(“Shenzhen Rainbow”) which has contributed an after tax profit of HK$5,135,000
this year. However, due to the highly fluctuated nature of profitability from the
retailing business in Shenzhen, the Group has disposed of its entire 48.73%
shareholding in Shenzhen Rainbow at a cash proceed of HK$18,000,000 in November
2001 to improve the Group’s liquidity position.
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Financial Review

The net asset value of the Group as at 31st March, 2002 was HK$170,913,000, which
was a decrease of 26% over last year end date. It was mainly attributed by the
disposal of various properties and projects during the year, and the Group has thus
maintained a high cash liquidity of HK$141,437,000. Since the operating activities of
the Group have yet to generate net cash inflow and the property development in
Sheung Wan (in which the Group owns as to 60% interest and undertakes the borrowing
risk in same proportion) has been consuming the cash reserve, the secured land and
construction loans have increased to HK$170,813,000 as at 31st March, 2002. The
construction loan will be going up gradually with a cap of HK$44,000,000 despite
the land loan of HK$150,000,000 already utilized. The secured loan is denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and is bearing interest with reference to prime rate. The Group
has obtained consent from the lending bank that the repayment date be extended to
December 2002. In view of the relative low interest rate, the Group made no hedge
for those floating prime rate based borrowings. Besides, the Group has pledged an
investment property for a loan of HK$4,183,000 as at 31st March, 2002, in which the
loan is bearing interest with reference to prime rate or HIBOR rate, whichever is
higher. The gearing ratio (the ratio of total liabilities over total assets) was 53%
(2001: 43%).

On 28th May, 2002, the Group entered into a conditional placing agreement with the
placing agent, whereby the placing agent agreed to place, on a fully underwritten
basis, 390,000,000 new shares at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share. The
net proceeds from the placing was approximately HK$38,000,000. The Company
intends to use the estimated net proceeds of the placing as to approximately
HK$20,000,000 for the development of Sheung Wan Project and as to the balance of
approximately HK$18,000,000 for the Group’s general working capital. The placing
was completed on 12th June, 2002.

The Group has limited exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuation as most of the
transactions, including borrowings, are conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and to a lesser-extent, Japanese Yen. The exchange rate of Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollars is stable during the year and Japanese Yen sales are mostly backed by Japanese
purchases, so exchange risk is minimal. Save as aforementioned, the Group has no
other material foreign exchange commitment and risk.

Reéwards For Employees

As at 31st March, 2002, the Group employed about 20 persons in Hong Kong and 16
persons in the PRC. The total personnel expenses amounted to HK$15,376,000.

Employees are remunerated according to qualifications and experience, job nature
and performance, as well as market conditions. The Group also provides other benefits
such as medical and dental insurance cover and provident fund scheme to the employees
in Hong Kong. There was no share option granted to any director and employee
during the year. In order to comply with the new Listing Rules, a special general
meeting will be held on 26th August, 2002 to seek for the shareholders’ approval for
the adoption of a new share option scheme.
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Prospects

The Group continues to suffer from loss making operations in most businesses as a
result of persistent downturn in the overall business environment, the situation will
not be substantially alleviated until the completion of a satisfactory sale of the Sheung
Wan project in the coming months. Continuous efforts have been made to seek business
opportunities that will yield positive returns.”
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3. UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(i) Unaudited interim financial statements
Set out below is the unaudited financial statements together with the relevant notes to the
financial statements as extracted from the interim report of CTH for the six months ended

30th September, 2004:

“Condensed Consolidated Income Statement
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Six months ended

30.9.2004 30.9.2003
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000

Turnover 3 175,398 29,465

Cost of sales (125,505) (28,283)
Allowance for properties held for sale - (6,0006)
Gross profit (loss) 49,893 (4,824)
Investment income 34 2,930

Other operating income 255 1,506

Distribution costs (24,733) -

Administrative expenses (13,651) (5,336)
Gain (loss) on disposal of investments in securities 53 (7,509)
Amortisation of goodwill arising on

acquisition of subsidiaries (478) -

Loss on disposal of investment properties (3,217) -
Unrealised holding (loss) gain of other investments (4,696) 1,675

Profit (loss) from operations 4 3,460 (11,558)
Finance costs 5 (4,011 (9,576)
Profit on disposal of a subsidiary - 20

Loss before taxation (55D (21,114)
Taxation 6 (466) -

Loss before minority interests (1,017) (21,114)
Minority interests - 6,453

Loss for the period (1,017) (14,661)
Loss per share (basic) 8 (0.8 cents) (12.5 cents)
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 30th September, 2004

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Interest in an associate

Current assets
Properties held for sale
Inventories
Investments in securities
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges
Tax payable
Obligations under finance lease
— due within one year
Bank and other borrowings due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance lease
— due after one year
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves
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10
11
12

13

14

15

15

17

30.9.2004 31.3.2004
(unaudited) (Audited)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
- 8.200

69,054 380
1,261 -
22,458 -
11 -
92,784 8,580
71,990 116,846
67,034 -
10,330 16,388
35,201 10,311
2,930 -
64,025 80,136
251,510 223,681
64,479 7,641
179 -

33 -
119,449 94,444
184,140 102,085
67,370 121,596
160,154 130,176
112 -
30,000 -
30,112 -
130,042 130,176
1,288 1,277
128,754 128,899
130,042 130,176
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Capital Accumulated
Share Share redemption Other  Special Translation  {losses)
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

At Ist April, 2003 234375 334999 046 - (8,908) - (4035000 157612
Capital reorganisation

- capital reduction {233,209 - - 13303 - - - -

- cancellation of share premium - (334,999) - 334999 - - - -

- set-off against accumulated losses - - - (535894 - - 535394 -
Loss for the period - - - - - - (14661)  (14,661)
At 30th September, 2003 1,172 - 646 32,308 (8,908) - 1733 142951
Exercise of share options 105 2,01 - - - - - 2,176
Loss for the perind - - - - - - (1495 (14951)
At 31st March, 2004 1277 2,071 646 32,308 (8,908) - 102782 130,176
Exchange differences arising on

translation of operations outside

Hong Kong and gain rot

recognised in the condensed

income statement - - - - - 643 - 643
Exercise of share options 11 m - - - - - 233
Loss for the period - - - - - - {1,017) (L,017)
At 30th September, 2004 1,288 2,298 bdb 32,308 (8,908) 645 101,765 130,042
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Six months ended

30.9.2004 30.9.2003
(unaudited) (unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$°000
Net cash from operating activities 59,743 12,891
Tax paid 273) -
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (17,720) 9,518
Net cash used in financing activities (59,004) (15,683)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (17,254) 6,726
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 80,136 120,112
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 527 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 63,409 126,838
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash 64,025 126,838
Bank overdrafts (616) -
63,409 126,838
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Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
applicable disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and with Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice 25 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The condensed financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified for the revaluation of certain investments in securities.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those followed in the preparation
of the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2004,
except that the Group has adopted certain new accounting policies following its
acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed in note 18, as described below.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Intangible assets

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development expenditure is
recognised only if it is anticipated that the development costs incurred on a clearly-
defined project will be recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant

asset is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In May 2004, the business of manufacturing, distribution and retailing of medicine
and health food was acquired upon acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed in note 18.

- 143 -




APPENDIX II

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE CTH GROUP

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit (loss) from operations by business

segment, the primary segment, is as follows:

Six months ended 30th September, 2004

Medicine
and
health food Motorcycles Property  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
REVENUE
External sales 107,080 7,673 60,645 175,398
SEGMENT RESULTS 601 253 9,611 10,465
Unallocated corporate
expenses (7,005)
Profit from operations 3,460
Finance costs (4,011)
Loss before taxation (551)
Taxation (466)
Loss before minority
interests (1,017)
Minority interests -
Loss for the period (1,017
Six months ended 30th September, 2003
Motorcycles Property  Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
REVENUE
External sales 9,860 19,605 29,465
SEGMENT RESULTS 557 (5,57%) (5,018)
Unallocated corporate expenses (6,540)
Loss from operations (11,558)
Finance costs (9,576)
Profit on disposal of a subsidiary 20
Loss before taxation (21,114)
Taxation -
Loss before minority interests (21,114)
Minority interests 6,453

Loss for the period
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4. PROFIT (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

Six months ended

30.9.2004 30.9.2003
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Profit (loss) from operations for the period has
been arrived at after charging (crediting):
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,221 100
Amortisation of intangible assets included in
administrative expenses 4 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and 53 (1,473)
equipment
Bad debts recovered (1) (21)

s. FINANCE COSTS

Six months ended

30.9.2004 30.9.2003
HK$'000 HK$000
Interest on:

Bank and other borrowings wholly repayable
within five years 2,719 9,576
Promissory notes 290 -
Convertible note 122 -
Loan arrangement fees 880 -
4,011 9,576

6. TAXATION

The taxation for the current period represents provision for income tax in the People’s
Republic of China.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group had no assessable
profit for the period.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

7. DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid during the period (six months ended 30th September, 2003:
Nil). The directors do not recommend the payment of an interim dividend.
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10.

11.

LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the following data:

Six months ended
30.9.2004 30.9.2003

HK$000 HK$'000
Loss for the period 1,017 14,661
Number of Number of
shares shares

Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of
basic loss per share 128,739,049 117,187,656

No diluted loss per share has been presented because the exercise of the share options
and the conversion of the convertible note would result in a decrease in net loss per
share.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the current period, the Group disposed of all its investment properties with a
carrying amount of HK$8,200,000 for net proceeds of HK$4,983,000, resulting in a
loss on disposal of HK$3,217,000. The legal charges over the investment properties
were released upon the disposal.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the current period, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at a cost
of HK$72,906,000 of which HK$71,549,000 was arising upon the acquisition of
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 18 and disposed of property, plant and equipment
with a carrying value of HK$129,000. In addition, depreciation of HK$4,221,000 (six
months ended 30th September, 2003: HK$100,000) was charged to the condensed
income statement for the period in respect of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment.

Certain equipment of the Group with an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$12,331,000 were pledged to a bank as security for the credit facilities granted to the
Group.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During the period, intangible assets of HK$1,265,000 was purchased upon acquisition
of subsidiaries as disclosed in note 18. The intangible assets represent pharmaceutical
product development costs. In addition, amortisation of HK$4.000 was charged for
the period in respect of the Group’s intangible assets. The amortisation period adopted
for the intangible assets ranges from 5 to 20 years.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

GOODWILL
Goodwill of approximately HK$22,936,000 arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries
as set out in note 18. Amortisation of goodwill of approximately HK$478,000 was

charged for the current period. The amortisation period adopted for the goodwill is 20
years.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
The Group allows credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors at the reporting date:

30.9.2004 31.2.2004

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 - 30 days 17,757 4,799
31 - 90 days 3,445 -
Over 90 days 1,660 -
22,862 4,799

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 12,339 5,512
35,201 10,311

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at the reporting date:

30.9.2004 31.3.2004

HK$’000 HK$°000

0 - 30 days 24,968 488
31 - 90 days 16,865 -
Over 90 days 3,676 1,283
45,509 1,771

Other creditors and accrued expenses 18,970 5,870
64,479 7,641

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

At 30th September, 2004, the Group had bank and other borrowings of HK$82,697,000
arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries. The consideration for the acquisition was
partially satisfied by the issue of promissory notes of HK$13 million and 2%
redeemable convertible note due in 2006 in a principle amount of HK$15 million as
disclosed in note 18. The promissory notes are unsecured, bear interest at 5.5% per
annum and are to be matured on 6th May, 2005. The convertible note can be converted
into 33,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.45
per share, subject to adjustments.

In addition, the Group raised and repaid bank and other borrowings of HK$57,152,000
and HK$112,844,000, respectively.
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16.

17.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liability (asset) provided for and movements
thereon during the current and prior reporting periods:

Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
At 1st April, 2003, 30th September, 2003

and 1st April, 2004 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 3,263 (3,263) -
(Credit) charge to income for the period (385) 385 -
At 30th September, 2004 2,878 (2,878) -

At 30th September, 2004, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$698,699,000 (at
31st March, 2004: HK$538,966,000) available for offset against future profits and
deductible temporary differences associated with property, plant and equipment of
HK$595,000. (at 31st March, 2004: associated with investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of HK$25,504,000). A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$16,445,000 (at 31st March, 2004: Nil) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses of

- HK$682,254,000 (at 31st March, 2004: HK$538,966,000) and the deductible temporary

differences due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Amount
HKS$’000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Authorised:
At 1st April, 2004 and 30th September, 2004 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1st April, 2004 127,697,656 1,277
Exercise of share options 1,155,000 11
At 30 September, 2004 128,852,656 1,288
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18.

19.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

In May 2004, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Tung Fong
Hung Investment Limited and the remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Facific
Wins Development Ltd. not being held by Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited for
considerations of HK$42 million and HK$28 million, respectively. The transactions
have been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

The effect of the acquisition is summarised as follows:

HK$’000
Net assets acquired 51,199
Goodwill arising on acquisition 22,936
Total consideration 74,135
Satisfied by

Cash 42,000
Promissory notes 13,000
Convertible note 15,000
70,000
Legal and professional fees 4,135
74,135

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration (42,000)
Legal and professional fees (4,13%5)
Bank balances and cash acquired 23,274
(22,861)

The subsidiaries acquired during the period contributed approximately HK$107,080,000
to the Group’s turnover and a profit of approximately HK$601,000 to the Group’s
protit from operations.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

Six months ended

30.9.2004 30.9.2003
HK$’ 000 HK3'000
Property rentals paid by the Group during
the period in respect of:
Minimum lease payments 7,812 134
Contingent rents 1,421 -
9,233 134
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20.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

30.9.2004 31.3.2004

HK$ 000 HK$’000

Within one year 17,220 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive 20,683 -
37,903 -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its
office premises, factory premises and outlets. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of three years and rentals are either fixed or, in addition to the fixed rentals,
contingent rental based on a fixed percentage of the monthly gross turnover of the
outlets.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Subsequent to 30th September, 2004, the Company entered into a conditional share
placing agreement and a conditional convertible note placing agreement in relation to
the appointment of a placing agent for the placing of 150,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at HK$0.4 and the
placing of HK$100 million 2% 3-year convertible notes at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.42 per share. The net estimated proceeds of HK$155 million from the shares
and convertible notes issue is intended to be used for the repayment of certain short-
term borrowings of approximately HK$35 million, the expansion of the Group’s
investment properties portfolio of approximately HK$90 million and the additional
general working capital of the Group of approximately HK$30 million.”
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(ii)

Management discussion and analysis

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the CTH Group’s results and
financials extracted from the interim report of CTH for the six months ended 30th September,
2004:

“Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the six months ended 30th September, 2004 was approximately
HK$175,398.000, representing a significant increase of nearly 500% of that of last year.
Alongside, the Group has managed to reduce the loss for the period to HK$1,017,000 (six
months ended 30th September, 2003: HK$14,661,000). The increase in turnover and improved
bottom line was contributed by the operating result of the newly acquired medicine and
health food business in May, 2004 and a general result of picking up of consumers’ confidence
in the property market in Hong Kong following the economic recovery.

Property Development

The Group was gradually making sales of its 13 residential units and a commercial unit at
Talon Tower at Connaught Road West and recorded a turnover of HK$60,546,000 with a
gross profit of HK$13,878,000 during the period. Profitability improvement is steadily seen
in the property sales caused by the rising market prices. At the end of the period, there
remain unsold units of 27 residential units and 2 commercial units.

Medicine Retailing And Manufacturing

Since the acquisition of the interest in the Chinese medicine retailer, “Tung Fong Hung”,
and the western pharmaceutical manufacturer, Jean-Marie Pharmacal Company Limited
(“Jean-Marie”), the Group has diversified its operation into the medicine and health food
business and has become a famous medicine brand owner and retailer in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China, Canada, Taiwan and Macau. The division currently operates a total number
of 69 retail outlets in these regions with a turnover of HK$107,080,000 since its inception.
Taking advantage of the progressively recovering economy in Hong Kong and the continuing
strong economic growth in the Mainland China in particular, the business achieved a rebound
in sales from last year, consisting of a respective growth of 23% and 31% in sales in these
two regions.

The western pharmaceutical manufacturer, Jean-Marie is putting efforts in expanding its
distribution network and enhancing production efficiency. Sales to the local government are
a new stream of business since Jean-Marie was licensed with the GMP (Good Manufacturing
Practice) standard. The Group is also devoting resources to obtain licenses of its products in
Hong Kong and potential markets to prepare for a sale break through. As Jean-Marie is still
in transit in turning around, it sustained an operating loss during the period. This is, however,
compensated by the profit of the Chinese medicine operation leading to a small profit of
HK$601,000 during the period.
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Financial Review

As at 30th September, 2004, the net asset value of the Group was HK$130,042,000, which
showed a decrease of 0.1% from that of last year caused by the loss reported for the period.
The Group maintained bank and cash balances of approximately HK$64,025,000, and the
bank and other borrowings of HK$149,449,000. The bank borrowings of HK$70,451,000
comprised mainly a project loan relating to the construction of the property units at Talon
Tower, a term loan for financing the construction of the plant in Tai Po for western
pharmaceutical production, and documentary credits for trade settlements to suppliers. Other
borrowings of HK$78,998,000 comprised a HK$15 million convertible note and HK$13
million promissory notes payable to vendors for outstanding consideration for the acquisition
of the medicine and health food business. As effected by acquisition of the medicine and
health food business that is operating on a comparatively higher gearing level, the gearing
ratio of the Group (the ratio of total liabilities over total assets) increased to 62% (31st
March, 2004: 44%). Given the improving profitability of the Group foreseen in the coming
year, the directors believe that the leverage position will be reduced.

Most of these borrowings were interest bearing with reference to Hong Kong inter-bank
offer rate or prime rate. The management believes that interest remains to be low in the
capital market and therefore no hedge was made against interest rate fluctuation. Most of
the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the Board
thus considered that the Group was not subject to any material exchange rate exposure.

Rewards For Employees

As a result of the acquisition of the medicine and health food business, the number of
employees increased to 502 (30th September, 2003: 8) persons as at 30th September, 2004.
The total personnel expenses amounted to approximately HK$18,805,000 (six months ended
30th September, 2003: HK$2,053,000). Employees are remunerated according to
qualifications and experience, job nature and performance, with pay scale aligned with
market conditions. The Group also provides other benefits such as medical, dental insurance
cover and retirement schemes to the employees.

Prospects

Driven by the envisaged continuing growing numbers of travelers and the continuing recovery
of local consumption sentiment, the retail environment in Hong Kong will be characterized
by steady growth in the coming years. Should environmental factors be consistent, the same
uprising trend is also expected in the property sector that will lead to further improvement
in the Group’s performance in the coming years.

The Group is keen to collaborate with well-established medicine and health food distributors
through which distribution networks are expanded. During the period, we streamlined the
retail management by transferring the retail operation in Singapore to a subsidiary of PSC
Corporation Limited, a renowned consumer product distributor and a listed company in
Singapore, that becomes our licensed operator of “Tung Fong Hung” medical stores in
Singapore and other countries in the South East Asia. The company is also appointed the
sole distributor of our products in that territories. In addition, active work programs are
currently in place with a business partner in the Mainland China for the licensing and
distribution of products of Jean-Marie and Tung Fong Hung there. The directors are entrusted
with a stronger operating base to leap forward to a better year in 2005.

Subsequent to the interim reporting date on 15th December, 2004, the Company entered
into two conditional agreements for the placing of new shares and convertible notes (the
“Placing”) raising a gross proceed of HK$160 million. The directors believe that the Placing
will strengthen the Group’s financial position and provide sufficient resources for its future
business development.”
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INTRODUCTION TO THE PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE ENLARGED
GROUP

Pro forma financial information for the purpose of major transaction

For the purpose of the major transaction in relation to the Subscription, the unaudited pro forma
statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets of the Group was prepared to illustrate the effect of
Subscription only, details of which are set out under section (IV)(A) below.

Pro forma financial information for the purpose of possible very substantial acquisition

Subject to the terms of the Convertible Note and depending on the then shareholding structure of
CTH and the extent to which the conversion rights of the Convertible Note are to be exercised by Loyal
Concept, Loyal Concept may become interested in 30% or more of the enlarged issued share capital of
CTH upon conversion of the Convertible Note. In such circumstances, Loyal Concept will be obliged to
make a mandatory offer to the shareholders of CTH to acquire all the CTH Shares, other than those
already owned or agreed to be acquired by Loyal Concept and parties acting in concert with it, in
accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.

In the event that Loyal Concept is obliged to make a mandatory offer to the shareholders of CTH
pursuant to the Takeovers Code as mentioned above, further CTH Shares may be acquired by Loyal
Concept in addition to the CTH Conversion Shares acquired upon conversion of the Convertible Note.
Depending on the number of further CTH Shares which may be acquired by Loyal Concept pursuant to
the aforesaid mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH pursvant to the Takeovers Code, the
acquisition of such additional equity interests in CTH, when aggregated with the CTH Conversion Shares
to be issued on exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note in accordance with
Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules, may constitute a very substantial acquisition for the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders should note that as at the Latest Practicable Date, no decision has been made as to
whether or when or the extent to which the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note are to be
exercised by Loyal Concept which may trigger an obligation for Loyal Concept to make a mandatory
offer under the Takeovers Code. The Group does not have present intention to exercise the conversion
rights attached to the Convertible Note within 12 months after Completion.

However, Shareholders should also note that in accordance with the terms of the Convertible Note,
if at any time after the first anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible Note, the average closing
price per CTH Share for 20 consecutive trading days is higher than HK$0.85 (subject to adjustments in
the events of share consolidation or share subdivision), all the then outstanding Convertible Note will be
deemed to be converted at the then prevailing conversion price.

For the purpose of the aforesaid possible very substantial acquisition for the Company, the
accompanying (i) unaudited pro forma assets and liabilities statement of the Enlarged Group; (ii) unaudited
pro forma income statement of the Enlarged Group; (iii) unaudited pro forma cash flow statement of the
Enlarged Group; and (iv) unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets of
the Group (under section (IV)(B) below in this appendix) were prepared to illustrate the effect of the
Subscription after taking into account the CTH Shares to be issued to Loyal Concept upon the exercise of
the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note together with the possible acquisition of further
CTH Shares by Loyal Concept pursuant the mandatory offer to the shareholders of CTH under the
Takeovers Code which may be triggered by such conversion.

Shareholders should note that for illustrative purpose only, the accompanying pro forma financial
information assumes that the Subscription and the further acquisition of equity interests in CTH in the
event that the mandatory offer is triggered would be funded by internal resources and debt financing of
the Group. However, as at the Latest Practicable Date, no final decision has been made by the Directors
as to the way of funding for the Subscription and the mandatory offer in the event that such mandatory
offer is triggered.
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() THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA ASSETS AND LIABILITIES STATEMENT OF THE
ENLARGED GROUP

The following 1s the unaudited pro forma assets and liabilities statement of the Enlarged Group
assuming that the Subscription had been completed as at 30th September, 2004, after taking into account
the CTH Shares to be issued to Loyal Concept upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the
Convertible Note together with the possible acquisition of further CTH Shares by Loyal Concept pursuant
to the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH under the Takeovers Code which may be
triggered by such conversion. The unaudited pro forma assets and liabilities statement was prepared
based on the unaudited consolidated balance sheets of the Group and the CTH Group as at 30th September,
2004 extracted from the respective interim report of the Group and the CTH Group for the six months
ended 30th September, 2004 with adjustments to reflect the effect of the Subscription.

This unaudited pro forma assets and liabilities statement was prepared for illustrative purpose only
and because of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the financial position of the Enlarged Group at
any dates.

B)=(C)+
(4) (B) (O=(A)+(B) D (E) (DHE)

The CTH

The Group  Pro forma The Group Group
30th  adjustments after 30th Other Pro forma
September, relating to the proforma  September,  pro forma Enlarged
2004  Subscription adjustments 2004  adjustments Group

HKS$ 000 HKS$'000  Notes HK$°000 HKS 000 HKS'000 Notes  HKS$'000

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 74,713 - 74,713 69,054 ~ 143,767
Intangible assets 402,495 - 402,495 1,261 ~ 403,756
Goodwill - - - 22,458 (22.458) {b) -
Negative goodwill - - - - (46.889) {b) (46,889)
Interests in associates 847,695 - 847,693 11 - 847,706
[nvestments in securities 189,225 - 189,225 - - 189,225
Convertible Note - 450,000  (a) 450,000 - (450,000) (c) -
Deferred tax assets 12,590 - 12,590 - - 12,590
1,526,718 450,000 1,976,718 92,784 (519,347) 1,550,155
Current Assets
Other asset 145,085 - 145,085 - - 145,085
Properties held for sale - - - 71,990 - 71,990
[nventories 672,162 - 672,762 67,034 - 739,796
Trade and other receivables 719,328 - 719,328 35,201 - 754,529
Investments in securities 130,170 - 130,170 10,330 - 140,500
Short-term loans receivable 230,857 - 230,857 - - 230,857
Other current assets 34,440 - 34,440 - - 34,440
Pledged bank deposits - - - 2,930 - 2930
Bank balances and cash 33,748 - 33,748 64,025 389,305 (d) 437,078
1,966,390 - 1,966,390 251,510 389,305 2,607,205
Current Liabilities
Trade and other pavables (920,712) - (920,712) (64,479) - (985,191)
Borrowings - due within
one year (270,618) (450,000) (a) (720,618) (119,449) (33) (o) (340,100)
Obligation under finance
lease - due within one year - - - (33) 33 (e -
Taxation . (21,969) - (21,969) (179) - (22,148)
Other current liabilities (4,300) - (4,300) - - (4,300)
Bank overdrafts (24,541) - (24,541) - - (24,541)
(1,242,140) (450,000) (1,692,140) (184,140} - (1,876,280)
Net Current Assets 724,250 (450,000} 274,250 67,370 389,305 730,925
2,250,963 - 2,250,968 160,154 (130.042) 2.281,080
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Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Minority interests

Non-current Liabilities

Borrowings - due after
one year

Obligaiion under finance
lease - due after one year

Amount due to a minority
shareholder

Deferred tax liablities

(4)

The Group
30th

(B)

Pro forma
adjustments

September, relating to the

2004
HK§000

1,866
1,825,356

Subscription

HKS$000  Notes

1,827,222

413,290

8,001

2,395
60

10,456

2,250,968
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(F)=(C+
(C)=(4)+(B) D (E) (D)+(E)
The CTH
The Group Group
after 30th Other Pro forma
proforma  September,  pro forma Enlarged
adjustments 2004  adjustments Group
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 Notes HK$°000
1,366 1,288 (1,288) (f) 1,866
1,825,356 128,754 (128,754} (f) 1,825,356
1,827,222 130,042 (130,042} 1,827,222
413,290 - - 413,290
8,001 30,000 112 fe) 38,113
- 12 (112) (o) -
2,395 - - 2,395
60 - - 60
10,456 30,112 - 40,568
2,250,963 160,154 (130,042) 2,281,080
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THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA INCOME STATEMENT OF THE ENLARGED GROUP

The following is the unaudited pro forma income statement of the Enlarged Group assuming that
the Subscription had been completed as at 1st April, 2003, the beginning of the financial period of the
Group, after taking into account the CTH Shares to be issued to Loyal Concept upon the exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note together with the possible acquisition of further CTH
Shares by Loyal Concept pursuant to the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH under the
Takeovers Code which may be triggered by such conversion. The unaudited pro forma income statement
was prepared based on the audited consolidated income statement of the Group and the CTH Group for
the year ended 31st March, 2004 with adjustments to reflect the effect of the Subscription.

(In

This unaudited pro forma income statement was prepared for illustrative purpose only and because
of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the results of the Enlarged Group for any financial periods.

(B)=(C+
(4) (B) (C)=(A)+(B) D) ) (D)+E)
The CTH
The Group  Pro forma The Group Group
3ist  adjustments after st Other Pro forma
March, relating to the pro forma March,  proforma Enlarged
2004  Subscription adjustments 2004 adjustments Group
HK$°000 HK$'000  Notes HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes  HK$'000
Turnover 5,009,930 - 5,009,930 63,514 3,566 (i) 5,077,010
Cost of sales (3,921,842) - (3.921,342) (85.429) (16,625) (i)  (3,993,896)
Allowance for properties held for sale - - - (6,006) - (6,006)
Gross profit 1,088,088 - 1,088,088 2,019 (13,059) 1,077,108
Other operating income 117,363 8,660 (g 126,223 1,267 (3,036) (g), (i) 130,454
&(j)
Unrealized holding gain on
other investments - - - 1,640 (1,640) (i) -
Doubtful debts recovered - - - 20 (20) (i) -
Distribution and selling expenses (688,528) - (638,528) - - (638,528)
Administrative expenses (283,709) - (283,709) (11,383) 20 @) (295,072)
Deficit arising on revaluation of
investment properties - - - (3,800) - (8.800)
Loss on disposal of investment in
securities - - - (13,059) 13,059 (i) -
Other operating expenses (4,598) - (4,598) - - {4,598)
Profit (loss) from operations 228,816 8,660 237476 (22,236) (4,676) 210,564
Finance costs (26,440) (31,380) (k) (58,026) (15,585) - (73,611)
Share of results of associates {73,463) - (73,463) - - (73,463)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries
and associates 10,377 - 10,377 30 - 10,407
Release of negative goodwill arising on
acquisition of CTH - - - - 10,205 (k) 10,205
Amortization of goodwill arising on
acquisition of associates (17,651) - (17,651) - - (17,651}
Profit (loss) before income tax 121,639 {22,926) 08,713 (37.191) 5,529 66,451
Income tax expense (27.846) - (27.846) - - (27.846)
Profit (loss) before minority interests 93,793 (22,926) 70,867 (37,191 5,529 38,605
Minority interests (80,493) - (80.493) 8,179 - (72.314)
Profit (loss) for the year 13,300 (22,926) (9,626) (29,612) 5,529 (33,709)
Earnings (loss) per Share
Basic HK$0.08 HK$(0.25) (1) HKS$(0.205)
Diluted N/A N/A () N/A
Pro forma weighted average
number of Shares (1) 164,240,000
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(III) THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE ENLARGED
GROUP

The following is the unaudited pro forma cash flow statement of the Enlarged Group assuming that
the Subscription had been completed as at 1st April, 2003, the beginning of the financial period of the
Group, after taking into account the CTH Shares to be issued to Loyal Concept upon the exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note together with the possible acquisition of further CTH
Shares by Loyal Concept pursuant to the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH under the
Takeovers Code which may be triggered by such conversion. The unaudited pro forma cash flow statement
was prepared based on the audited consolidated cash flow statement of the Group and the CTH Group for
the year ended 31st March, 2004 with adjustments to reflect the effect of the Subscription.

This unaudited pro forma cash flow statement was prepared for illustrative purpose only and
because of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the results of the Enlarged Group for any financial
periods.

(F)=(C)+
(4) (B) (C)=(A}+(B) D (E) (D)+E)

The CTH

The Group  Pro forma The Group Group
31st  adjustments after st Other Pro forma
March, relating to the pro forma March,  pro forma Enlarged
2004  Subscription adjustments 2004  adjustments Group

HK$'000 HKS$'000  Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes  HK$'000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) from operation 228,816 8,660 (g} 237476 (22,236) (4,676) (g)&(j) 210,564
Adjustments for:
Interest income (22,728) (8,660) (g (31,388) (5,720) 4676 (gl&(j)  (32,432)
Net unrealized holding gain on
other investments (16,829) - (16,829) (1,640) - (18,469)
Net gain on disposal of
investment securities (9.577) - 9,577) - - 9,577)
Loss on disposal of other investments - - - 13,059 (13,059)  (m) -
Gain on disposal of other asset (5.660) - (5,660) - - (5,660
Amortization of intangible assets 44137 - 44,137 - - 44.137
Allowance for slow moving and
obsolete inventories 24,679 - 24,679 - - 24,679
Depreciation and amortization of
property, plant and equipment 19,632 - 19,632 183 - 19,815
Deficit arising on revaluation of
investment properties - - - 8,800 - 8,800
Allowence for properties held for sale - - - 6,006 - 6,006
Allowance for loans receivable 16,653 - 16,633 - - 16,633
Allowance for margin loans receivable 5,300 - 3,300 - - 5,300
Impairment loss on goodwill arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary 4,598 - 4,598 - - 4,598
Release of negative goodwill - - - (747) - (747)
Allowance for (write-back of) bad and
doubtful debts 3,208 - 3,208 (20) - 3,188
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 696 - 696 (1,053) - (357)
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(F)=(0)+
{4) (B) (©)=(4)+B) D) (E) (D)+E)

The CTH

The Group  Pro forma The Group Group
31st  adjustments after st Other Pro forma
March, relating to the pro forma March, pro forma Enlarged
2004  Subscription adjustments 2004  adjustments Group

HKS$'000 HKS'000  Notes HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$000 Notres  HKS'000

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital 292,925 - 292,925 (3.368) (13,039} 276,498
Decrease in properties held for sale - - - 41,144 - 41,144
[ncrease in inventories {367,669) - (367,669} - - (367,669)
Increase in trade and other receivables (552,508) - (552,508) (884) - (553.392)
Decrease in other investments 38,877 - 33,871 - 13,059 (m) 51,936
Decrease in margin loans receivable 13,422 - 13,422 - - 13,422
Increase {decrease) in trade and

other payables 468,621 - 468,621 (5.431) - 463,190
Decrease in margin loans payable (769) - (769) - - (769)
Increase in bills payable 2438 - 2,458 - -~ 2438
Cash (used in) generated from operations (104,643) - (104,643) 31,461 - (73,182)
Interest and finance charges paid (14,155) - (14,155) (16,899) - (31,054)
Loan arrangement fees paid - - - (1,800) - (1,300)
Overseas tax paid (41,262) - (41,262) - - (41,262)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund 104 - 104 - - 104
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (159.956) - (159,956) 12,762 ~ (147,194)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of short-term loans

receivable 288,623 - 288,623 - - 288.623
Proceeds from partial disposal of

shareholding in a subsidiary 274,085 - 274,085 - ~ 274,085
Interest received 21,093 - 21,093 5,120 - 26,813
Amounts repaid by associates 19.797 - 19,797 - -~ 19,797
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 19.226 - 19,226 - - 19,226
Proceeds from disposal of

investment securities 9,957 - 9,957 10,376 - 20,333
Acquisition of investments in securities - - - (5,170} - (5,170}
Loans repaid by associates 6,496 - 6.496 - - 6.496
Dividend received from an associate 4,251 - 4,257 - - 4,257
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 3127 - 3121 2,850 - 5977
Increase in shori-term loans receivable (463,317) - (465,317) - - {465,317)
Subscription of Convertible Note - 450,000y {a) (450,000} - 450,000 () -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (130,508) - (130,508) - 64,549 (c)&(n) 65,959)
Acquisition of an associate (19,348) - (19,348) - - (19,348)
Purchase of property,

plant and equipment (17,726) - {17,726) - - (17,726)
Acquisition of patent (8.065) - (8,065) - - (8.065)
Addition to other assets (5.,425) - (5,425) - - (5.425)
Disposal of subsidiaries (5) - %) 10 - 5
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(F)=(C)+
(A B) (C)=(A)+(B) (D) E) (D)+E)
The CTH
The Group  Pro forma The Group Group
st adjustments after 3st Other Pro forma
March, relating to the pro forma March,  proforma Enlarged
2004  Subscription adjustments 2004  adjustments Group
HK$'000 HK$'000  Notes HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 Nores  HK$'000
NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 207 (450,000) (449,733) 13,786 514,549 78,602
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank loans raised 575,079 450,000  (a) 1,025,079 59.0t6 - 1,084,095
Proceeds from issue of shares 99,484 - 99.484 2,176 - 101,660
Other loans raised 94,396 - 94 396 - - 94 396
Repayments of bank loans (606,873) - (606,873) (143,025) - 1749 .898)
Repayments of other loans (56,239) - (56,239) - - (56,239)
Dividends paid (122h) - (11,221) - - (11,221)
Repayments of obligations under
finance lease (1,137) - (L137) - - (L137)
New loans from minority
shareholders of a subsidiary - - - 15,309 - 15,309
NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 93,489 450,000 543,489 (66,524) - 476,965
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (66.200) - (66.200) (39.976) 514,549 408373
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 202,157 - 202,157 120,112 - 322,269
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES 5137 - 5,137 - - 5137

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR 141,094 - 141,094 80,136 514,549 735,779

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash 164,360 - 164,360 80,136 514,549 759,045
Bank overdrafts (23.266) - (23,266) - - (23,266)

141,094 - 141,094 80,136 514,549 735,719
Notes:

(a) The adjustment reflects the payment of HK$450,000,000 by the Group for the subscription of Convertible Note to
be issued by CTH.

(b) The adjustment reflects the negative goodwill of HK$46,889,000 arising from the conversion of the Convertible
Note by Loyal Concept and further acquisition of equity interest of CTH under the mandatory offer (if any) as
mentioned in (d) below. The negative goodwill is calculated as the difference between the total consideration of
HK$1,056,695,000 to be paid assuming full acceptance of the mandatory offer and the adjusted net asset value of
the CTH Group of HK$1,103,584,000. The adjusted net asset value represents the net asset value of the CTH
Group of HK$130,042,000 with exclusion of its internally generated goodwill of HK$22,458,000 as at 30th
September, 2004 and the net proceeds of HK$996,000,000 from the Aggregate Subscription and CTH Placing
mentioned in (d) below.

(c) The adjustment reflects the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note by the Group.
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(d)

(&)

€3]

(h)

i
@

(k)

M

(m)

The adjustment reflects;

- the payment of HK$606,695,000 by the Group for the acquisition of CTH Shares under the mandatory
offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH which may be made by Loyal Concept under the Takeovers
Code as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Sharcholding structure of CTH” in the “Letter from the
Board” contained in this circular on the assumption that the offer price for the mandatory offer will equal
to the Initial Conversion Price and there will be full acceptance by the shareholders of CTH for such
offer. Based on 128,852,656 CTH Shares in issue as at 30th September, 2004 and the respective
2,172,727,272 CTH Shares and 100,000,000 CTH Shares to be issued upon full conversion of the Aggregate
Subscription Convertible Notes and CTH Placing Convertible Notes at the Initial Conversion Price, a total
of 2,401,579,928 CTH Shares are expected to be in issue of which 1,022,727,272 CTH Shares will be
held by Loyal Concept and its concert parties. Accordingly, 1,378,852,656 CTH Shares are assumed to be
subject to the mandatory offer; and

- the net proceeds of HK$996,000,000 from the issue by CTH of the Aggregate Subscription Convertible
Notes and the CTH Placing Convertible Notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000
on the assumption that the mandatory offer and the conversion of the Aggregate Subscription Convertible
Notes and the CTH Placing Convertible Notes took place on the same day. As at the Latest Practicable
Date, no decision have been made by the Directors as to whether or when or the extent to which the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note are to be exercised which may trigger an obligation
under the Takeovers Code to make a mandatory offer.

Certain amounts in the assets and liabilities statement of the CTH Group have been reclassified to conform with
the Group’s presentation.

The adjustment reflects the elimination of share capital and pre-acquisition reserves of CTH after the mandatory
offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH which may be made by Loyal Concept under the Takeovers Code as
mentioned in (d) above.

The adjustment reflects the interest income of HK$8,660,000 generated from the Convertible Note held by the
Group based on the effective interest rate calculated on the redemption amount of the Convertible Note on the
Maturity Date. This amount is fully reversed in other pro forma adjustments on the assumption that the conversion
rights attached to the Convertible Note is exercised as mentioned in (c) above.

The adjustment reflects the interest expenses on the borrowings of HK$450,000,000 for the Subscription at
prevailing market rate.

Certain amounts in the income statement of CTH have been reclassified to conform with the Group’s presentation.

The adjusiment reflects the interest income of HK$3,984,000 generated from the net proceeds of HK$394,437,000,
arising from the receipts of net proceeds of HK$996,000,000 from the Aggregate Subscription and CTH Placing
to be received by CTH less payment of HK$601,563,000 (as mentioned in (n) below) by the Group for acquisition
of CTH Shares under the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of the CTH, calculated at the prevailing
market rate.

The adjustment reflects the release of negative goodwill of HK$10,205,000 arising from the conversion of the
Convertible Note by Loyal Concept and further acquisition of equity interest of CTH under the mandatory offer
(if any) to the shareholders of CTH which based on the consideration of HK$1,051,563,000 to be paid assuming
full acceptance of mandatory offer and the adjusted net asset value of the CTH Group of HK$1,153,612,000. The
adjusted net asset value represents the net asset value of the CTH Group of HK$157,612,000 as at 1st April, 2003
and the net proceeds of HK$996,000,000 from the Aggregate Subscription and CTH Placing mentioned in (d)
above. The amortization period adopted for negative goodwill is 10 years.

The calculation of pro forma basic loss per Share at 31st March, 2004 was based on the pro forma combined net
loss of the Enlarged Group of HK$33,709,000 and a pro forma weighted average number of Shares outstanding
during the year ended 31st March, 2004 of 164,240,000. The computation of diluted earnings per Share for the
year ended 31st March, 2004 has not assumed the exercise of the outstanding share options of the Company as the
exercise price of those options is higher than the average market price for shares for the year.

Certain amounts in the cash flow statement of CTH have been reclassified to conform with the Group’s presentation.
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(n) The adjustment reflects:

- the payment of HK$601,563,000 by the Group for the acquisition of CTH Shares under the mandatory
offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH which may be made by Loyal Concept under the Takeovers
Code as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Shareholding structure of CTH” in the “Letter from the
Board” contained in this circular on the assumption that the offer price for the mandatory offer will equal
to the Initial Conversion Price and there will be full acceptance by the shareholders of CTH for such
offer. Based on 117,187,656 CTH Shares in issue as at 1st April, 2003 and the respective 2,172,727,272
CTH Shares and 100,000,000 CTH Shares to be issued upon full conversion of the Aggregate Subscription
Convertible Notes and CTH Placing Convertible Notes at the Initial Conversion Price, a total of
2,389,914,928 CTH Shares are expected to be in issue of which 1,022,727,272 CTH Shares will be held
by Loyal Concept and its concert parties. Accordingly, 1,367,187,656 CTH Shares are assumed to be
subject to the mandatory offer;

- the net proceeds of HK$996,000,000 from the issue by CTH of the Aggregate Subscription Convertible
Notes and CTH Placing Convertible Notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000; and

- the inflow from the acquisition of CTH’s bank balances and cash of HK$120,112,000 as at 1st April,
2003.

The above pro forma adjustments have not taken into account:

- the net proceeds from the placing of shares of the Company of HK$118,000,000, details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 23rd November, 2004;

- the proceeds of HK$100,000,000 from the issue of the 2005 February CTH Convertible Notes (details are set out
in the announcement of CTH dated 15th December, 2004), of which principal amount of HK$30,000,000 has been
converted into CTH Shares at a conversion price of HK$0.42 and the balance of HK$70,000,000 rzmains
outstanding;

- the effect on shareholding of CTH in the event that the conversion rights attached to the outstanding 2005
February CTH Convertible Notes are exercised;

- the proceeds of HK$15,000,000 from the issue of the Pacific Wins CTH Convertible Notes (details are set out in
the announcement of CTH dated 24th March, 2004) which have been fully converted into CTH Shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.45;

- the net proceeds of HK$19,250,000 from the placement of 25,000,000 CTH Shares at HK$0.81 per CTH Share,
details of which are set out in the announcement of CTH dated 28th December, 2004; and

- the net proceeds of HK$55,000,000 from the placement of 150,000,000 CTH Shares at HK$0.40 per CTH Share,
details of which are set out in the announcement of CTH dated 15th December, 2004.
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(IV) UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF ADJUSTED CONSOLIDATED NET
TANGIBLE ASSETS OF THE GROUP

(A) For the Subscription only

The following unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets of
the Group was prepared based on the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 30th
September, 2004 as set out in Appendix [ to this circular with the adjustments to reflect the effect
of the Subscription and has been prepared as if the transaction had taken place on 30th September,
2004.

This unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets was prepared
for illustrative purpose only and because of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the
financial position of the Group as at the date to which it is made up or at any future date.

As at 30th
September, 2004 Adjustments Pro forma
(Unaudited)
(Notes 1 & 3) (Note 2) (Note 3)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Net tangible assets 1,037,058 - 1,037,058
Notes:
1. The unaudited pro forma consolidated net tangible assets of the Group as at 30th September, 2004 is
calculated as follow:
HK3'000
Unaudited consolidated net assets of the Group as at 30th September, 2004 1,827,222
Less: Intangible assets (402,495)
Goodwill included in interests in associates (242,584)
Other asset in relation to a land development project in Zhuhai, the PRC whereby
o the Group is entitled to the exclusive development right and the right
to obtain the land for development (145,085)
1,037,058
L]
2. The adjustments include:
HK3$’000
Convertible Note to be issued to the Group pursuant to the Subscription Agreement 450,000
Consideration to be paid for the Convertible Note by the Group pursuant
to the Subscription Agreement (450,000)
N
3. Unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible assets per Share
as at 30th September, 2004 and after Completion based on 186,553,202 Shares
in issue as at 30th September, 2004 (not taking into account the scrip dividend
of 75,210 Shares declared in October 2004 and share placement of
37,000,000 Shares in December 2004) HK$5.559
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(B) Assuming the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note are exercised by
Loyal Concept in full and a mandatory offer is triggered by such conversion

The following unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets of
the Group was prepared based on the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 30th
September, 2004 as set out in Appendix I to this circular after taking into account the CTH Shares
to be issued to Loyal Concept upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Note together with the possible acquisition of further CTH Shares by Loyal Concept pursuant to
the mandatory offer (if any) to the shareholders of CTH under the Takeovers Code which may be
triggered by such conversion, and was prepared as if the transaction had taken place on 30th
September, 2004.

This unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets was prepared
for illustrative purpose only and because of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the financial
position of the Enlarged Group as at the date to which it is made up or at any future date.

Pro forma
As at 30th Enlarged
September, 2004 Adjustments Group
(Unaudited)
(Notes 1 & 3) (Note 2) (Note 4)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Net tangible assets 1,037,058 45,628 1,082,686
Notes:
1. The unaudited pro forma consolidated net tangible assets of the Group as at 30th September, 2004 is
calculated as follow:
HK$°000
Unaudited consolidated net assets of the Group as at 30th September, 2004 1,827,222
Less: Intangible assets (402,495)
Goodwill included in interest in associates © (242,584)
Other asset in relation to a land development project in Zhuhai, the PRC whereby
the Group is entitled to the exclusive development right and the right
to obtain the land for development (145,085)
1,037,058
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2. The adjustments include:
HK3°000

Unaudited consolidated net assets of CTH as at 30th September, 2004 130,042
Net proceeds from the Aggregate Subscription Convertible Notes and

CTH Placing Convertible Notes which are assumed to be fully converted into CTH Shares 996,000
Consideration to be paid for the Convertible Note by the Group pursuant to

the Subscription Agreement (450,000)
Consideration for the mandatory offer which may be made to the shareholders of CTH (606,695)
Intangible assets of CTH as at 30th September, 2004 (1,261)
Goodwill of CTH as at 30th September, 2004 (22,458)

45,628
L —
3. Unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible assets per Share

as at 30th September, 2004 based on 186,553,202 Shares in issue as at
30th September, 2004 (not taking into account of the scrip dividend of 75,210 Shares
declared in October 2004 and share placement of 37,000,000 Shares in December 2004) HK$5.559

4. Unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible assets per Share
taking into account the CTH Shares to be issued to Loyal Concept upon the exercise
of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note together with the possible
acquisition of further CTH Shares by Loyal Concept pursuant to the mandatory offer
(if any) to the shareholders of CTH under the Takeovers Code which may be
triggered by such conversion and based on 186,553,202 Shares in issue as at
30th September, 2004 (not taking into account the scrip dividend of 75,210 Shares
declared in October 2004 and share placement of 37,000,000 Shares in December 2004) HK$5.804
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5. REPORT ON PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is the text of a report received from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong, for inclusion in this circular, in respect of the pro forma financial information
of the Enlarged Group as set out in this appendix.

Deloi
e o I tte [ ] WL - BARSSEHEHT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

EBOETREPIR 26/F Wing On Centre

/ RZDNH2688 111 Connaught Road Central
JJA%Y Hong Kong

7th June, 2005

The Directors

Hanny Holdings Limited
8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre
51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

We report on the unaudited pro forma financial information of Hanny Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) and Cheung Tai
Hong Holdings Limited (“CTH”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Group hereinafter referred to as
the “Enlarged Group”) set out in Appendix III (the “Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information”) to the
circular dated 7th June, 2005 (the “Circular”) in connection with the proposed subscription of the
convertible note of CTH (the “Subscription™), which has been prepared by the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), for illustrative purposes only, to provide information about how the Subscription might
have affected the financial information presented.

Responsibilities

It is the responsibility solely of the Directors to prepare the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial
Information in accordance with paragraph 29 of Chapter 4 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by paragraph 29(7) of Chapter 4 of the
Listing Rules, on the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information and to report our opinion to you. We
do not accept any responsibility for any reports previously given by us on any financial information used
in the compilation of the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information beyond that owed to those to whom
those reports were addressed by us at the dates of their issue.
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Basis of opinion

We conducted our work with reference to the Statements of Investment Circular Reporting Standards
and Bulletin 1998/8 “Reporting on pro forma financial information pursuant to the listing rules” issued
by the Auditing Practices Board in the United Kingdom, where applicable. Our work, which involved no
independent examination of any of the underlying financial information, consisted primarily of comparing
the unadjusted financial information with the source documents, considering the evidence supporting the
adjustments and discussing the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information with the Directors.

Our work does not constitute an audit or a review in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and accordingly we do not
express any such assurance on the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information has been prepared on the basis set out in Appendix
II1 to the Circular for illustrative purpose only and, because of its nature, it may not give an indicative
financial position of the Enlarged Group as at 30th September, 2004 or at any future date or an indicative
results and cash flows of the Enlarged Group for the year ended 31st March, 2004 or at any future period.
Opinion

In our opinion:

a) the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information has been properly compiled on the basis
stated;

b) such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Group; and
c) the adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial

Information as disclosed pursuant to paragraph 29(1) of Chapter 4 of the Listing Rules.

Yours faithfully,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
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1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Group. The Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information (other than those relating to CTH) contained in this
circular, and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and
belief, there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

The information relating to CTH contained in this circular has been taken from CTH’s annual
reports and accounts for the three years ended 31st March, 2004, CTH’s interim report and accounts for
the six months ended 30th September, 2004 and from public announcements and circulars issued by
CTH. The only responsibility accepted by the Directors in respect of information relating to CTH is to
ensure that it has been correctly and fairly reproduced or presented.

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(i) Directors’ interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”); or (b) were required to be entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, were as follows:

fa)  Interests in the Shares of the Company

Approximate %

Number of of the
Shares held ordinary issued
Name of Long paosition/ Nature of in the share capital
Director Short position Capacity interest Company of the Company
Dr. Chan Long position Interest of Corporate 45,798 813 20.48%
Kwok Keung, controlled interest
Charles corporation
(“Dr. Chan”)
(refer to notes)
Mr. Lui Siu Long position Beneficial Personal 1,750,000 0.78%
Tsuen, Richard owner interest
Notes:
1. This interest does not include interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company.

This interest needs to be aggregated with those set out in sub-paragraph (b) below to give the
total interest of Dr. Chan in the Company.

2. Dr. Chan is deemed to have a corporate interest in 45,798,813 Shares by virtue of his interest in
Chinaview International Limited (“Chinaview”). This interest was detailed and duplicated with
the interests as shown in the paragraph “Interests and short positions of Shareholders disclosesable
under the SFO” below.
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(b)  Interests in equity derivatives (as defined in the SFO) of the Company

Approximate %
of the ordinary
Exercise issued share

Name of  Long pesition/ Nature of  Exercisable Number of price capital of
Director ~ Short position Capacity interest  period share options per Share  the Company
HK$
Dr. Chan  Long position  Beneficial Personal 8.31.2001 to 4,000,000 2.9888 1.79%
owner interest 8.30.2006
2.23.2004 to 1,600,000 3415 0.72%
2.22.2006
Dr. Yap, Long position  Beneficial Personal 8.31.2001 to 3,250,000 2.9888 1.45%
Allan owner interest §.30.2006
2.23.2004 to 1,600,000 3415 0.712%
2.22.2006
Mr. Lui Siv Long position ~ Beneficial Personal ~ 2.23.2004 to 1,600,000 3415 0.72%
Tsuen, owner interest 2.22.2006
Richard
Mr. Chan  Long position  Beneficial Personal ~ 8.31.2001 to 1,750,000 2.9888 0.78%
Kwok owner interest 8.30.2006
Hung
2.23.2004 to 1,600,000 3415 0.72%
2.22.2006

(¢) Interests in associated corporation (as defined in the SFO) of the Company
(i) Interests in shares of China Strategic Holdings Limited (“CSHL”)

Approximate %

Number of of the ordinary
Name of  Long position/ Nature of shares held issued share
Director  Short position ~ Capacity  interest in CSHL capital of CSHL
Dr. Chan  Long position Interest of  Corporate 258,819,795 29.36%
controlled  interest
corporation
(Note)

Note:

Dr. Chan owns the entire interest of Chinaview which in turn owns the entire interest in Galaxyway
Investments Limited (“Galaxyway”). Galaxyway owns approximately 33.55% of the entire issued
ordinary share capital of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”). ITC owns the entire interest in ITC
Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”). ITC Investment owns the entire interest in
Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”). Hollyfield owns approximately 49.58% of the entire
issued share capital of Paul Y. - ITC Construction Holdings Limited (“Paul Y”). Paul Y owns the
entire interest in Paul Y. - ITC Investments Group Limited (“PYITCIG”). PYITCIG owns the
entire interest in Great Decision Limited (“GDL”) which in turn owns the entire interest in
Calisan Developments Limited (“Calisan”).

Accordingly, Dr. Chan is deemed to be interested in 258,819,795 shares of CSHL which are held
by Calisan by virtue of his interests in Chinaview.
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(ii)  Interests in PSC Corporation Ltd (“PSC”)
Approximate %
Exercise of the
Name of  Long position/ Nature of  Exercisable Number of price issued share
Director ~ Short position Capacity  interest  period Share Options  per share  capital of PSC
58
Dr. Yep,  Long position  Beneficial ~Personal  8.20.2004 to 5,000,000 0.105 0.27%
Allan owner interest ~ 8.19.2013
Mr, Lui Siu Long position ~ Beneficial ~ Personal ~ 8.20.2004 to 2,000,000 0.105 0.11%
Tsuen, owner interest 8.19.2013
Richard

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had: (a) under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO); (b) any interests which are required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (¢) any interests which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(ii) Interests and short positions of Shareholders discloseable under the SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives of the Company, as at the Latest

Practicable Date, the following persons had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisicns of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
(a) Interests in the Shares of the Company

Number of
underlying shares Approximate%
Number of (unlisted equity of the ordinary

Shares of  derivatives of  issued share

Name of Long Position/ the Company  the Company)  capital of the

Shareholders Note  Short Position  Capacity held held Company

Ms. N Yuen Lan, Macy ! Long Position Inzerest of spouse 45,798,813 - 20.48%

Ms, Ng Yuen Lan, Macy 1 Long Position  Interest of spouse - 5,600,000 2.50%

Dr. Chan ! Long Position Interest of controlled 45,798,813 - 20.48%
corporation

Dr. Chan ! Long Position Beneficial owner - 5,600,000 2.50%

Chinaview 1 Long Position Interest of controlled 45,798,813 - 20.48%
corporation

Galaxyway ] Long Position ~ Interest of controlled 45,798,813 - 20.48%
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Number of

underlying shares Approximate%
(unlisted equity of the ordinary

derivatives of

issued share

Name of Long Position/ Number of ~ the Company)  capital of the
Shareholders Note  Short Position  Capacity Shares held held Company
ITC ! Long position ~ Interest of controlled 45,798,813 - 20.48%
corporation
ITC Investment i Long position ~ Interest of controlled 45,798 313 - 20.48%
corporation
Mankar Assets Limited I Long position ~ Interest of controtled 45,798,813 - 2048%
(“Mankar") corporation
Famex Investment Limited | Long position  Beneficial owner 45,798,813 - 20.48%
(“Famex”)
0Z Management, LL.C. 2 Long position  Investment manager 11,976,000 - 5.36%
0Z Master Fund, Ltd. 2 Long position ~ Beneficial owner 11,642,000 - 5.21%
Deutsche Bank Long position ~ Beneficial owner 2,700,400 - 121%
Aktiengesellschaft
Deutsche Bank Long position ~ Security interest 17,570,000 - 1.86%
Aktiengesellschaft
Christian Toggenburger Long position ~ Beneficial owner 11,342,536 - 5.01%
Christian Toggenburger Long position  Interests held jointly 2,741,464 - 123%
with another person
Aeneas Capital Management Long position ~ Investment manager 11,896,000 - 5.32%

LP

Notes:

Famex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mankar. Mankar is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Investment, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC. Galaxyway, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinaview, owns more than one-third of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC.
Dr. Chan owns the entire issued share capital of Chinaview. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is the
spouse of Dr. Chan. Mankar, ITC Investment, ITC, Galaxyway, Chinaview, Dr. Chan and Ms. Ng
Yuen Lan, Macy are deemed to be interested in 45,798,813 shares of the Company which are held
by Famex. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is deemed to be interested in 5,600,000 underlying shares (in
respect of unlisted equity derivatives) of the Company held by Dr. Chan.

OZ Master Fund, Ltd., Topanga XI, Inc. and Fleet Maritime Inc. are investment funds managed
by OZ Management, L.L.C. OZ Management, L.L.C. is the legal shareholder of 11,976,000
shares in the Company which are held by OZ Management, L.L.C. as investment manager on
behalf of OZ Master Fund, Ltd., Topanga XI, Inc. and Fleet Maritime Inc.. OZ Master Fund, Ltd.,
Topanga XI, Inc. and Fleet Maritime Inc. are each beneficially interested in 11,642,000 shares,
146,000 shares and 188,000 shares in the Company, respectively.
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(b)  Substantial shareholding in other members of the Group

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the following parties, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any other member of the Group:

% of the ordinary

Name of Subsidiary Name of Shareholder issued share capital

Digital Communications Global 2000 Management 40%
Limited Limited

Cyber Business Network Great Wealth Capital Ltd. 21.5%
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Picador International Ltd. 20%

Memorex Holdings Limited Global Media Limited 35%

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are not aware

that there is any party who, as at the Latest Practicable Date, had an interest or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meeting of any other member of the Group or had any options in respect of such shares.

3. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts entered into the ordinary course of business) have
been entered into by members of the Group within the two years preceding the date of this circular and
are or may be material:

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the sale and purchase agreement dated 25th October, 2003 entered into between the Company
and Global Media Limited (“Global Media”) relating to the disposal of a 35% interest in
Memorex Holdings Limited;

the call option agreement dated 5th December, 2003 entered into between the Company and
Global Media relating to certain call option arrangements;

the deed of indemnity dated 5th December, 2003 entered into between the Company and
Global Media;

the placing and subscription agreement dated 28th January, 2004 entered into between ITC,
the Company and Young Champion Securities Limited (“Young Champion™) relating to the
placing and subscription of 21,500,000 Shares;

the placing and subscription agreement dated 23rd November, 2004 entered into between
ITC, the Company and Young Champion relating to the placing and subscription of
37,000,000 Shares;

the sale and purchase agreement dated 31st January, 2005 entered into between Pacific

Development Co. Ltd., Pacific Auto Co. Ltd. and TFN Multi-Media Co., Ltd. relating to the
disposal of a 8.04% interest of Fu Yang Investment Co., Ltd.;
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(vii) the sale and purchase agreement dated 10th March, 2005 entered into between, inter alia,
Nation Field Limited (“Nation Field”), Paul Y and the Company for the acquisition by
Nation Field of an aggregate of 270,000,000 shares in the capital of CSHL from Paul Y and
the Company;

(viii) the Subscription Agreement;

(ix) the underwriting agreement dated 21st April, 2005 (the “Ruili Underwriting Agreement”)
entered into between the Company, Ruili Holdings Limited (“Ruili”’) and Tai Fook Securities
Company Limited in relation to the underwriting of the rights shares of Ruili; and

(x)  the subscription agreement dated 21st April, 2005 (the “Ruili Subscription Agreement”)
entered into between the Company and Ruili relating to the subscription of HK$170,000,000
convertible note to be issued by Ruili.

4, EXPERT AND CONSENT

The following is the qualification of the expert who has given opinion or advice which are contained
in this circular.

Name Qualification
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this
circular with the inclusion herein of its report and references to its names, in the form and context in
which they respectively appear.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was not beneficially interested in the
share capital of any member of the Group, nor did it have any right (whether legally enforceable or not)
to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of the Group, nor did
its have any interest, either direct or indirect, in any assets which had been since 31st March, 2004 (being
the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the Company were made up) acquired or
disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group or which were proposed to be acquired or disposed
of by or leased to any member of the Group.

3. LITIGATION
As at the Latest Practicable Date, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in

any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance is
known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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6. SERVICE CONTRACT

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors has a service agreement with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

7. DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, interests of the Directors in competing businesses required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Description of

Name of entity businesses of
which businesses are the entity which are
considered to compete or considered to compete or Nature of interest
likely to compete with likely to compete with of the director
Name of Director the businesses of the Group  the businesses of the Group in the entity
Dr. Chan CSHL (Note) Property investment Chairman and Chief

and development in the PRC Executive Officer

Paul Y (Note) Property investment and Substantial shareholder
development in the PRC and Chairman
Dr. Yap, Allan CSHL (Note) Property investment and Vice Chairman

development in the PRC

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Property investment in the PRC  Executive Director
Limited (“Wing On™) (Note)

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, CSHL (Note) Property investment and Alternate Director to
Richard development in the PRC Dr. Yap, Allan, Vice Chairman
Wing On (Note) Property investment in the PRC  Executive Director
Mr. Chan Kwok Hung CSHL (Note) Property investment and Alternate Director to
development in the PRC Dr. Chan, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit A non wholly-owned Property investment and Director
subsidiary of CSHL development in the PRC
Paul Y (Note) Property investment and Executive Director
: development in the PRC
Wing On (Note) Property investment in the PRC  Managing Director
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Name of Director

Mr. Fok Kin-ning,
Canning

Name of entity

which businesses are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group

Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited (“CKH") (Note)

Cheung Kong
Infrastructure (Holdings)
Limited (Note)

Hutchison Global
Communications
Holdings Limited
(Note)

Hutchison Harbour Ring
Limited (“HHR") (Note)

Hutchison
Telecommunications
International Limited
(Note)

Hutchison Whampoa
Limited (Note)

Description of

businesses of

the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group

Information technology,
e-commerce and
new technology
Investment in securities
Property investment and
development in the PRC

Information technology,
e-commerce and
new technology
Securities investment

IT solution

Manufacturing and trading of
high quality electronic
consumer products

Development and supply of
mobile telecommunications
accessories, plastics,
electronics and premium
products and mobile phone
packaging

New technology

Property holding and
investment, leasing
of properties in the PRC

IT solution

Distribution of computer
products

Finance and investment

Manufacturing and trading of
high quality electronic
consumer products

Development and supply of
mobile telecommunications
accessories, plastics,
electronics, premium
products and mobile,
phone packaging

New technology

IT solution

Property development and
investment in the PRC
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Non-executive Director

Deputy Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

Group Managing Director
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Name of Director

Ms. Shih, Edith

Mr. Ip Tak Chuen,
Edmond

Name of entity

which businesses are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group

HHR (Note)

Hutchison International
Limited {Note)

CKH (Note)

Description of

businesses of

the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group

Manufacturing and trading of
high quality electronic
consumer products

Development and supply of
mobile telecommunications
accessories, plastics,
electronics and premium
products and mobile
phone packaging

New technology

Property holding and
investment, leasing
of properties in the PRC

Finance and investment

Manufacturing and trading of
high quality electronic
consumer products

Development and supply of
mobile telecommunications
accessories, plastics,
electronics and premium
products and mobile
phone packaging

New technology

IT solution

Property development
and investment in the PRC

Investment in securities
Information technology,
e-commerce and
new technology
Property development and
investment in the PRC

Nature of interest
of the director
in the entity

Executive Director

Executive Director

Executive Director

Note: Such businesses may be made through its subsidiaries, associated companies or by way of other forms of

investments.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective associates are interested in
any business apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s businesses as at the Latest Practicable Date.
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8. PROCEDURES FOR DEMANDING A POLL

A resolution put to the vote of a meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless (before or on
the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll) a
poll is demanded:

()
(b)

(©)

(d)

by the Chairman; or

by at least three members present in person (or, in the case of a member being a corporation,
by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the
meeting; or

by a member or members present in person (or, in the case of a member being a corporation,
by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all members having the right to vote at the meeting; or

by a member or members present in person (or, in the case of a member being a corporation,
by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy and holding shares in the Company
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been
paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all shares conferring that
right.

A demand by a person as proxy for a member shall be deemed to be the same as a demand by the

member.

9. MISCELLANEOUS

(a)

(b)

Nomne of the Directors was materially interested in any contract or arrangement subsisting at
the Latest Practicable Date which is significant in relation to the business of the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Dr. Chan was interested in approximately 33.6% of ITC
which was interested in approximately 49.6% of Paul Y and approximately 20.5% of the
Company. Each of Paul Y and the Company was interested in 29.4% of CSHL. On 19th
April, 2005, Paul Y and the Company jointly announced that each of it conditionally agreed
to dispose of an approximately 15.3% interest in CSHL after the completion by CSHL of a
group restructuring involving, among others, the distribution of certain assets and businesses
currently held by Group Dragon Investments Limited (“GDI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CSHL, to the shareholders of CSHL. Subsequent to the disposal, the Company will also
make a voluntary general offer to acquire all the issued shares in GDI which are not owned
or agreed to be acquired by the Company. Details of the aforesaid transactions are set out in
the joint announcement released by Paul Y, the Company and other parties to the transactions
on 19th April, 2005.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Dr. Chan was interested in approximately 4.6% of
Ruili. On 21st April, 2005, the Company entered into the Ruili Underwriting Agreement
and the Ruili Subscription Agreement. In the event that the Company is required to take up
the rights shares of Ruili underwritten by it and/or exercises the conversion rights attached
to the convertible note to be issued by Ruili, the Company will be interested in the shares of
Ruili. In addition, Ruili announced that Ruili and Dr. Chan proposed to acquire a 49% and
2% interest respectively in Galaxy Satellite TV Holdings Limited, which together with its
subsidiaries is principally engaged in pay-television business in Hong Kong and teleport
business including the provision of satellite uplink and playback services. Details of the
above are set out in the joint announcement of the Company and Ruili dated 29th April,
2005 and the circular of the Company dated 24th May, 2005.

~176 -




APPENDIX IV GENERAL INFORMATION

()

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors has, or has
had, any direct or indirect interest in any assets which have been acquired, disposed of by or
leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired, disposed of by or leased to, any member of
the Group since 31st March, 2004, the date to which the latest audited consolidated financial

statements of the Company were made up.

The qualified accountant of the Company is Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, who is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Cheng Wai Chu, Judy, who is an asscciate
member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Company Secretaries.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the head office and the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is at 8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company is Secretaries
Limited at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

In the event of any inconsistency, the English text of this circular and the accompanying
proxy form shall prevail over the Chinese text.

10. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong from the date of this circular up to and including the date of the

SGM:
1)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

{vii)

the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company;

the annual reports of the Company for each of the financial years ended 31st March, 2003
and 2004 respectively;

the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30th September, 2004,

the comfort letter regarding the pro forma financial information of the Enlarged Group from
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the text of which is set out in Appendix III to this circular;

the material contracts referred to in paragraph 3 headed “Material contracts” in this appendix;

the written consent referred to in paragraph 4 headed “Expert and consent” in this appendix;
and

a copy of each of the circulars issued pursuant to the requirements set out in Chapters 14
and/or 14A of the Listing Rules which have been issued by the Company since 31st March,
2004.
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NOTICE OF SGM

HANND

VISIONS AHEAD

HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 275)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a special general meeting of Hanny Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) will be held at Conference Room, 11th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 24th June, 2005 at 10:30 a.m. for the purpose of considering and,
if thought fit, passing the following ordinary resolution, with or without amendments, as an ordinary
resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the terms of the subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) dated 20th April,
2005 entered into between Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited (“CTH”) and Loyal Concept Limited
(*“Loyal Concept”) (a copy of which has been produced to the meeting marked “A” and initialled by the
Chairman for the purpose of identification), in relation to the subscription by Loyal Concept of HK$450
million zero coupon convertible note due 2010 in CTH (the “Note”) (a copy of the terms and conditions
of the Note has also been produced to the meeting marked “B” and initialled by the Chairman for the
purpose of identification), be and are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified and that the execution of
the Subscription Agreement by the directors of the Company be and is hereby approved, confirmed and
ratified and the directors be and are hereby authorised to do all things and acts and sign all documents
which they consider necessary, desirable or expedient in connection with the transactions contemplated
under or which may arise as a result of the performance of and/or exercise of rights under the Subscription
Agreement and the Note (including without limitation to the generality of the foregoing, to determine if,
when and the extent to which the conversion rights attached to the Note is to be exercised from time to
time and (if required by the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Code”) upon the exercise
of the conversion rights attached to the Note) to make a general offer for all the shares of CTH (other
than the shares already held) in compliance with the Code).”

By the Order of the Board
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7th June, 2005

Registered Office:
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong:
8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong
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As at the date hereof, the Board comprises of:—

Executive Directors:— Registered Office:—
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman) Clarendon House
Dr. Yap, Allan (Managing Director) 2 Church Street
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Deputy Managing Director) Hamilton HM 11
Mr. Chan Kwok Hung Bermuda
Non-executive Directors:— Head office and principal
Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning place of business in Hong Kong:—
Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond 8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit 51 Hung To Road
Ms. Shih, Edith Kwun Tong

(alternate ro Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning) Kowloon

Hong Kong

Independent non-executive Directors:—
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the special general meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member may appoint a proxy in respact of
part only of his holding of shares in the Company. Completion and return of an instrument appointing a proxy will not
preclude a member from attending and voting in person at the special general meeting.

2. In order to be valid, the proxy form and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a

certified copy of such power of authority, must be lodged at the Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong, Secretaries
Limited at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, noct less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the special general meeting (or any adjourned meeting).
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AN Fl B Global Mediaft “FEFE=F + _ AL BT L Z BERSERE:

EHCE - ALNFTHEMBELREERAT ((FEEHR) R _FFNE—HF —+
JVH BB E KRR 21,500,000 2 BRI T L2 BL & R
EHCE- ANFTALMNEEHAFR_ZFETNE+—AF _+=HBEHEBEE LR
F537,000,0000 Z BB I MR L2 B E KRB

KTHBEBRAERAT A TEFARERGERATNRSEL BERHE
RAFR EEFE—H =+ — B okt B 5 R G R 8 B /A 718.049%HE 25 T
Tz EEGE:
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Ff & 7Y

—-REF

REEBRGEE Z0FEEM

Be/ BEXDLA (KRAFELH LERX
REAE iz %8 &R R &E Rafi£IR) HHEH
B I BB ZELNFZER 45798813 - 20.48%
ITC Investment I BE FEATEZER 457988013 - 20.48%
Mankar Assets I BE ZERTAZEZ 45798813 - 20.48%
Limited
( [ Mankar] )
HEBE 1 BEg EnEAA 45,798 813 - 20.48%
ARAR
(THA))
0Z Management, 2 H& HRELHE 11,976,000 - 5.36%
LLC.
OZ Master Fund, Ltd. 2 HE E#EFA 11,642,000 - 5.21%
Deutsche Bank g ELEBERA 2,700,400 - 1.21%
Aktiengeselischaft
Deutsche Bank Ge EHEZR 17,570,000 - 7.86%
Aktiengesellschaft
Christian HE ELEAA 11,342,536 - 5.07%
Toggenburger
Christian e EEMAL 2,741 464 - 123%
Toggenburger ERREZER
Aeneas Capital TE HERH 11,896,000 - 5.32%
Management LP
g3

H B % MankarZ 2 Bt B 2~ 8 - Mankar £ ITC InvestmentZ 2 E Mt B A &> WITC
Investmentfl) & 8 # > ¥ 2 % FHf B /4 7 - ChinaviewZ 2 E [t & 2 §] Galaxyway
FRECECENTTEREF =22 — U L -BRE L E Chinaview2 ¥ & BT 4 -
R %+ A B8+ 2 B8 - Mankar - ITC Investment ~ ¥ 4+ % - Galaxyway °
Chinaview ~ BRI - R AT R L T 9R 2 R HBEFH 245,798 813 A N Al fe fh
BEERE - AHRTLEESREE LA 25,600,000 42 & 4 B A B (4580
T AmETR) FEERER-

OZ Master Fund, Ltd. * Topanga X1, Inc. X% Fleet Maritime Inc.¥J £ B OZ Management,
LLC BHZHEESE -0Z Management, L.L.C. 511,976,00018 &~ & RH2Z &
B A& 3 > OZ Management, L.L.C. J7 A % B R & {5 f£ 3% OZ Master Fund, Ltd. -
Topanga XI, Inc. X Fleet Maritime Inc.3¢F & B X #r - OZ Master Fund, Ltd. - Tcpanga
XI, Inc. X Fleet Maritime Inc.% 4+ 5l B 2% 7% 11,642,000 ~ 146,000 J 188,000/%
¥ /NEE N
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Bt 4% PO | —BREH

(i) ERFEEAERLA ([FHEE]) ZHEi

EHER
Be/ BRORA
ESZ4B %E 56 BiftE THELE BREBE BRITEE #HESH
FWH T
Yap Alln 8 ERHEN EAELZ —FZEE 5,000,000 0.105 0.27%
it ANAEZ+EE
“E-ZE
AR+ A
BRREL HE EHEAA AR _ZZUE 2,000,000 0.105 0.11%
ANEZ+H
FIE-ZE
R

BRECTEESN REEREBUT A ALTNEERIENTBABHME (o)
REE 7 R RGO EXVER ST 8 B SR8 & 57 o 8 B AR 6 2 A B R SCHURAE
HEERALAHEMBHEBRAT RKEBEEHFRPEHEASEXVIRZER) ZRH 4
BB O BESTHA T MERSORE: O)RBEEF L EROIEIS2REARALRL
AF BB AT 2 (o) B MR R IE <7 R IE M A 4 ) S 38 B Z A o fE 2

(i) RERSRBEKIEZATREZRREZRKE

UANBEERTENEARSRNR REEEETTESH  UTALRAEL
] S0 AR B A 5 o R AR R RE o I B B R 0 R X VR 5 2 % 3 4y 0 AR ST 2B 1] A 4y
ARBERLBNANFIRBEES R RN EEAEDBHRMEFEZE T M2 EEBRE:

(a) REZRIRGZER

RERBROBRE ZLAERM

e/ BELRT  (RREELT  EEEX
BR4% Wi %E 5B BREE  BAGLIR)  BHEM
hEELt 1 BE RGEL 45,798,813 - 2048%
ikl pa I FE REER - 5,600,000 2.50%
R+ I HE ZELAFZEE 45798313 - 20.48%
R T I BE OEEERA - 5,600,000 2.50%
Chinaview 1 B RELADZEE 45798813 - 2048%
Galaxyway I BE TELRNZER 45798313 - 20.48%
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P &% 7

—-RER

(b)

(c)

FRAKRFTETIR (EHRREFRAE RS 2 #HE

Ez2A

BEL

ARRAE

REEL

RRFBRA
ZERE
BHES

5k
TEE
BT

29888

35-V4

RE 54 BRENE fEER RRERR

i} ERBERA fAEE —%%-%
AE=t~
ZEEZRE

ARZ+H

“ZEZEE
ZAZt=HE
“EERE
“HA”+-H

“ZE-F
ARZE+-
“ETRE
ARZTH

“ZZNE
ZEZt+ZHE
ZEERE
“RAZ+ZH

ZZZRE
“RZ+=
“EERE
“A”+ZH

ZZZ-E
AE=t+-8
EZZTAE
AA=+E

S92
“RZtZHZ
ZEERE
“A-tZH

4,000,000 1.75%

HE

1,600,000 3415 0.72%

ELEHEA BAEZ 3,250,000 2.9888 1.45%

HE

1,600,000 3415 012%

G ERHAAN BEARZ 1,600,000 3415 0.72%

HE

£ HE ERBEAA 1,750,000 2.9888 0.78%

1,600,000 3415 0.72%

FRIBELE (ERRBFRHBENRG) 2

(i)

FREBERLNA ([HHE]) Z B

#E/

%8 &

g  RZERFZ
i (

*%E%ﬂsﬁ
REgOEs

29.36%

BERE
rgrig !

258,819,793

EERR
B+

BEtE

KRR
ES

Mt

B 1# £ ¥ A Chinaview BT H # 35 » il Chinaview 8] # H Galaxyway Investments Limited
([ Galaxyway|) Fr G RE 4 - GalaxywayBEF BN CEEFER LT ([HEHRAZE])
EEHE BT ERAL33.55% M 55 - 4 £ FHEHITC Investment Holdings Limited
([ITC Investment]) EF % # 25 < ITC Investment ¥ H Hollyfield Group Limited
(MHollyfield] ) FT AR 2 ~HollyfieldE A R EEH BREMFRAA ([REER])
2D BT AL 49.58% R 25 o REFE B H Paul Y. - ITC Investments Group
Limited ( [PYITCIG]) 7 & 4% - PYITCIG # % Great Decision Limited ([ GDL])
FX & B %% > M GDL BI¥E A Calisan Developments Limited ( [ Calisan] ) T & # i -

Ut BR 8 - E FE ChinaviewE A HZ MBH B EE H CalisanfFTIFH 2 F X
258,819,795A% B 17 -
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B &% Y —-REHN

1. EFEH

AEAFTHEMEBRETRUERARAEEZEHN - EFFEAF BRI EH
(BN BRITERI) ZEEERFLMERNARESREL XML -G EBHEER
MEERENRERS ABRTEEREMAGEE RSABRAZENBAGAERE
B A o

AEAHATBERERTZCENIRARAEETRE_FZFENE=ZA=Z+—HA L=
BEEZFHREER ¥ETREFTUEAAZTALANERAZ FHHREREE MU
EEBRTABRZARAMAER - EEMARERTZENFTRZRIELRREZEE
FIELRA A FHERLET-

2. REHE
(i) EBRTLATzZRO - HBEROREFPzEZRARRE

REEEBITEH - AAREERIETHAERAL A LEB B AR (UK
BEFIPREEROIEXVEZER) ZRAG - HERGREFTHE: @ARBEEHS
B RGOSR XVERSE TR R SRR L T ST AE R EATR R < RETA ([1E
BRI ERMARFRBR TS RIRE (BFEREEHF R & REIA B SCR
SFURFREFHFRAIERIRRE) i HNORBES PR ROAEIL2ZBABALL
AFEZEEMZER RREMT

(@) REIARGZER

®Be/ BEXAT XATCRAEE
EEzEH XE B Exng ROEE REEHEIH
BEREL HF8 ZELAEAZ AFE# 45,798,813 20.48%
(ML) %
(RHtaE)
BRREE HE ERBEAEAN BAER 1,750,000 0.78%
M

1. GHESAOFEALRARAMETREZ MERMER -ZEREART X BEOFTE
En—HHE USERB I RALRAZEZER-

2. [ 18 + 5 7E Chinaview International Limited ( [ Chinaview] ) $E & % % i #8 5 ¥

4579833 m AR EE ZHBCET X REBLRPEGEANATHEE
ZHRREERRE] RS RZEFEZEET2MAME
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B &% = RBEAEBZ2HEMBEER

ERzE®R

EEZIENZ2RERAEFEFZREEM IR EERRELEN R ANELSE
FGE(MB L NHAUEREFSHGEER I RERABU TETER LE-ESZITHAERY
LRBALEREMERMEEN BEE2IETHFEEQRLEAREHABMBE EREER
REXH BEHAFRERZEE UAREEARAREERHELEHHEER-

MR PR TATAEERBEEESFMAEHANERENMETHEZNEHR T
F EEBMAMAEECHENHERAMELEMEZRFMRE-

REFEGELS I HEERRBER MR R R EHGHZ A -MEREEE
ABECHEEMHERTRERARBRERRERR —FTTMERAZ+HRUREMH
HMBHERL RERRERBRE " FTTNF=_A=+-HLFEEREMLUEHIBZE
LB ERERNIKRE-

=R
BERE:
(a) REFEUHBEZUMBERTIRFINEEZHATE
by ZEERBELENGFTERMAFS M
() HMEKBLETRAUFIAEEVDEFEEHBEZRXBEUHLEHEERT S i/E
HZRABTIEBIRE-
o E
HE
JLEE
B
B ES1E
PREE > 2 h 0 81
HMEEEFR A

FIrEE B

REBERSERMT
R G
i
i BR

“EFFhHESNAEA
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B 8% = REXEBEHzZHBEHRESR

5. BEMBAENRS

LT BEEHEE T AEL e B & BT & 7t BT 3175 B 8% BT 8 2 RS 1% K 56 B 45 % B
HEHMITRHZBED LIBEBATER-

Deloi
e o I tte ® BE - BERSYEET Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

EBRPRTHEETIVR 26/F Wing On Centre
/5 RZDIBH268 111 Connaught Road Central
‘Lm Hong Kong

B E

EEHEPR _FFAFANALIAHERTEERTETDERLFAZ A LBRER (1R
MEE])MAEZ@EK (TEK]) AR = RRBEEARAR (TELF ) KEKE
AEIUTHBIERER] EERTREERLAFAAEMEB AR (2R BH£E - UTH
BIERARER]) ZAEECHEMBERN ([ REFRELHHEH]) RERE KK
ENHGEMBENTITR BARERE ((EF) FR-EM25 SR HTBEEYK
ERMBFERNTRERNNZEZEH -

BT

REFEBEZZPTARAFAZSF LWHRN (TEWHRAND) F4EHBRZHE &
FHRNZRAEERKEMBEERAAEE-

BEZEEREBEMMAUBAREE29NERZRE HAREELHEEMHEREL
ER-UYHMETRERE - REESNTERHZELHREZWHEAN - EEHELZ AT
ARENRCERHSMBEERZEMHBEERT SR ARERAREETME
£
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Y &

REXREB2HGEYBESR

HRAHE:

RIFENFAA=ZTERBTZREERESEREFE
BRBIEHUARREBEARFNEETARER
(BREEHARARRTRG) CHEHAFH
FEMRBEREHRAT L ATBE TN ZRE
WREMERITRAET R ER AR
ROBFENFAA=ZTERRTZELEE
R-ZEZNEAA=ZFTHAERTZHE

RIEEZNFNA=ZTHREECHERWNEZETRRHAR
EERE RBR _ZTZTONENLA=ZTHEBTR®
186,553,20208 51 E) (R A_EZNE+ S ERUBRMLE
ZI52100 Bk —FFEME+ = A B4 B E Z 37,000,0008% A 1)

B RF A AT °7 53 B AR AT B 2 AL R #E 1 A% 24T T Loyal Concept
Z BEFRAT AL 45 0 b T BE IR 8% 5t 4 7 A8 3% Loyal ConceptiR 8 Ui B8 <F A1
mEETRREEL B EWHERS (WE) WA RBKREz S
HETENBEZREZEVESTSRABESERBRNEREERHE
(REN_ZTENELAZ+ B EHETRM186,553,20288 51 5)
(AHAZEZENE+AERUBEREZ 752108 B0 &
ZEZEZNE+Z A KRGS 237,000,000 i )
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T#ET

130,042

996,000
(450,000)
(606,695)

(1,261)

(22,458)

45,628

5.559% 7

5.804 % 7T




Bt &% = REAEBz2EBEZHRER

(B) fR#RLoyal ConceptEB TR TR RRBEFM A BEEREZZRAMBRE
HEWERS

DUTAERZAREREARG AR EEFEMERRTIRBENFE LM
HBHALEER _FEEFNEAA=ZTHZARERESCEEABERKFARITE
A SR AR R 2 SR RE T A% T 347 T Loyal ConceptZ ¥ Z 47 B i i L W BE I 2% 5o
77 A8 ¥ Loyal ConceptRIBUR BEF I M #E RATRE/E L WA IR E (WWF) M
ARENBZFIERTROEFRE UTRIXZER_FZFNENLA=ZTHETT
e

AABECEABGEERNEEFEFREREZNDHERUERSWHAE Ed R
HEMHEEA HEANRERREARFAREECEARG AN KREFERF AR
RRWAPSRKEMAHZEE S EARGL

R-Z2RNF w®E
AWB=+8 HAE KEAEH
(REEFER)

(Hfat13) (HfzE2) (KffzE4)
F& T F ¥ T TF# T

EREEFHE 1,037,058 45,628 1,082,686

ik

1. RIZEZFUFAAZTHFAEBAZAEERREGZ AL EEREFENT:

F T

RoERNENR=ZTAFEEAZ A EERGESEESE 1,827,222

B EREE (402,495)

HFABELAREREZEHE (242,584)
EHTHEEREZ 2 NEREAGZHBEE

AEERANEERZBRBELAREZ L ERRZER (145,085)

1,037,058
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ft 8% = REXEEZHEZMHEESR

V) FRE AL ELERBERSEFLEEFEREERR
(A) ERZBBEME

DTAEBZ REEZERBGSHE T EE FERFRR TR BN A E K
B RAEEAR _TENFNAAZTHZIAEERGEEEABRAEHEUR
MAMBFEIEEBEERR TRIXIXZERFENENRA=ZFTREFMHER-

ARBECRARG AL EEFERES RN MEMF AR B dn
HEMEER AR RAEEARFAREELEAEG AL EEFERBRER
BHBSRFAME B ZEHTHBORE -

R-IEZENE
hB=+H E EE

(RBHEZ)
(KtFE1 X 3) (Bfa£2) (K zE3)
Fi# T F T F# T

BEREEFE 1,037,058 - 1,037,058

Wit
L ORCSETMEAAZTAAKMZREERELHLELEEFEHANT

FHT
MIOBEZENEAAZTHAEEAZ REERESEEBM 1,827,222
B EEERE (402.,495)
ETABENFIEDS R (242,584)
EHFHEEEZIHBRAES 2 LHEE,
ZEERNBEEBREEERREZ I ERBEZER (145,085)
1,037,058
2. A
F T
RBRERREBT TALEEZIALER 450,000
AEARBREBEGRRITARERSE T XA MRE (450,000)
3. ROBZNEAAZTHENZREAREHESEARGESERR G
EREERHEH RB_-_FTZWFNA =1+ HEBTHD186,553,2024
HE) (FFE_ZEZNE+TAERUBRMEZ7S2I0 R B R
TEENE A+ ARG EE 237,000,000 3% 4) 5.559% JC
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Bt & = REXEBEZHZYBESR

(n) FERBR:

- AEHRBABARNEETTAHG RN HERTTZREEN ] — BT Loyal ConceptiB ik
BrlEmMERTREFELBEHNENEEZR (F) MEBERITROFIMZ
601,563,000% 70 (B BHIHEWBERR Y WHESRER ML A BE MERITRES
PHERNZWHES BN - EE=FNA B2 BITHERTEM117,187,6568
U ETEN SR ERRERITRE T AR EREN S SR EE2 R BB SR
BT 22172,727272 BT R X 100,000,000 # BRI R G E -BHEBTE
$£2,389,914,928 B ¥ T AT B 47> H 11,022,727,272 8 ¥ %5 47 B 4 #% F Loyal Concept R H—
HITEALHEE AW, 1,367,187,656 EERITHRM AT HFE RBERIIMR:

- HETBTARBEEETRBERRAS AT A 1,000,000,0008 T X2 ERITEESFET
R TS BRI T £ 996,000,000 7T R

- WHEHEETR _EFT N —BZ2HTHBRIE£120,112,0008 T2 HA -
PEEERE N s A

- EERN TG B RIEFE 118,000,000 T (HEEEN A LATER _EENESF—AF Z+=
B8z AN ) s

- BT EFRAE ARV RBRERZ FTEEIEL0,000,0008 T (FERNRETN 2T
WE+"A+EH RO EPAR£ 530,000,000 TE K EEEMNEB T AR BERET
R 43 > T £ %8.70,000,000 % 7T B 14 R 4T

- MR TEZ _EEREARRT U LBREBIR S RNETHEEERTEREZEE,

- 17 Pacific Wins# T R B EH 2 A RIE 15,000,000 T (HEENBERAN _ZZENE
ZAZTEBHBZAR  FHEREELBEOASEL2EEABREERTRE

- R R R R AT AR 0.8 11 JUBC 5 25,000,000 % # 2R 4T B0 2 Fr 43 5 E B %019,250,000% 7T (8 1%
EREETR _BEEZNEFT A Z+ATRHBZ AN &

- 4 BT R 0.40% TT AL 150,000,0008% ¥ 24T B 0 2 AT 18 BIE 1% %655,000,0008 76 (18
BRBRRTHR_ZTOET_A+HABFIBEZAM) -
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Bf &% =

REXEBz2HRGZUBESR

(d)

(e

)

(g)

(h)

()

@

k)

M

(m)

HE B

- FEERBABREZ SR RIERTZREER ] — BTl Loyal ConceptiR 12 UL
BEFAEMERETREAELEMMUEER (0F) TKERXRRTRAITIZIMNZ
606,695,000% 7T (B BHIEIWHERZ WBEMMERW LS A RE MERTREK
2HERAZWERR) BER_ZZXTWENE=THZE BT HERITR 128,852,656
BURBZEBRBEN ARG EERRTREVAREREYVL AR EE2ELAE S
BT 22,172,727, 2720 ¥ F2 4T B 67 % 100,000,000 AT M E - B M BT &L
2,401,579,928 % ¥ 5 47 B 3 - H H1,022,727,272 8 ¥ 5= 17 A& 4 # B Loyal Concept X H — &
TEIANLHAE-EIM 1,378852,656 R ERITRMBEZTBFAMKBEESIR: &

- BRTBETANBEETABRERLERTETESTA S 1,000,000,000% T2 H#
BITRERET ARAREZ TG REE 996,000,000 T (RBRAMEEHEZ UARA
BRIV ARRBERERTEEVARRBEZ ABAR BET REEEBRTTH
BOEFURRERSTETABRRBEITMZ SMESITERHRITERE (TRE%
RBWETFREL B REERZ RE)

BENTEBEERRAEBRRZETHACEN S UNSAEEZES TR

B K F ()Tt Loyal Concept?RIBUR BESF Al R RITIR AL BHEWHEER (F) #
MEBHRTRAR BT RFHE-

HENUAEHIRAUTAMEERNBAURRES BESHFUEBMRAZTZMA KA
8,660,000 T -Z R HEC W HMEEME R 2T (BRWEX (R T LBREEFZ L
P AT ) -

FEEEMERTNE AN REREFIEE B Z E3K450,000,000% 7T 2 FI BB X -
HRTWUERZETRECEFSE UNEGAEAZEN F -

BN RTHRNBRERBEELSERITEEEE 2 T8 5008 1 5 996,000,0004: T B A&
EEBBEOERTREZEREWEES (NF) B RTRME I 2601,563,0008 7T (1T
() FT ) 7 T 18 3K IE VF 4H394,437,000 ST IR AT T B B BB BT E & 2 FILE WA 3,948,000
ﬁo

PR R AR R Loyal Concept R AT MM EB R BB RERTRRAEL Z BFEWHER (0FH)
E— P WBHETIREEAEZ RERERZZ2EERBAMNERBEEETE F XAF 2R E
1,051,563,000i M R B R AT E B B R EAEFEL 153,612,000 TxHE) EMEAZ AR
10,205,000 T A B EEFHEHEERNTEAR _EE=FNA —~HZ EEFEH157,612,000
WIRUE XM EEESERERITEEERZ B RIEF$H996,000,000& T & B EF
Mz EEE A 105

RIBZHEZA=ZT—HZEESERELAERNIEBEBEREHZHELESHERESE
33,709,000 T AR B E - EENEZAZ+—HLEFEBTHRMZHEENELIRE
164,240,000 5t B -FHEEE - EENE=-A=+—H L EExERBHEZ NI ERZL LT
ZHRTHEBREESE KT ERBREZTEEER RN B ERFEZFANE-

HETASRERZETRECEN B UREAREZESN K-

-160 -




Bt & = REXEEZHEEBEH
(B)=(0)+

(A) (8) (C)=(A)+(B) (D) () (D}+(E)

548K AEH REGEE ARER

H-B8ME HRBEAZ Sz pogens At g%

ZAz+-8  pEER AB% SA=+-R  EEEE LY

T#T Tz i TET IR TET Wi T#EL

RELKEL (BR) 28438 267 (450,000) (449,733 13,786 514,549 78,602
BEEE
FRETER 575,079 450,000  (a) 1,025,079 59,016 - 1,084,005
BOBGREBRA 99 484 - 99,484 2,176 - 101,660
HAHBER 94,396 - 94,396 - - 94,396
BESTES (606,873) - (606873)  (143,025) - (749,898)
BELAER (56,239) - (56,239) - - (56,239
BERE (11,221) - a2 - - aLnn
RERERARS (1L,137) - (1,137) - - (1,137
—RNBAEPERAZ HEX - C - - 15,309 - 15,309
MELBEL (HR) 2R¢38 93,489 450,000 543,489 (66,524) - 476,965
BEeRESZE (RY) BNEHR {66,200) - (66,200) (39,976) 514,549 408,373
ENzRERBLEE 202,157 - 202,157 120,112 - 322,269
Ex9BrEE 5,137 - 5,137 - - 5,137
FRZ2BERESEE 141,094 - 141,004 80,136 514,549 735,779
BeRRSSHERSN
fiTLEB RS 164,360 - 164,360 80,136 514,549 739,045
BEX (23,266) - (23.266) - - (23,266)
141,094 - 141,094 80,136 514,549 735,779
Fif st -

(a) FIEBERBAEZERBERFRTHTZEREEN T Z 450,000,000 5T ¢

(b)  FHE R M Loyal Concept IR T A EHARB T XM Z BHEWEER (WF) E—F L
BRRT IR EREREEY B 46,880,000 T- AHMEZHELBER2HZEABGE
BB T AT 2 BR1E1,056,695,0008 THERITEEZ EHEEEIFE1,103,584,000
2%7‘52%"5& RAREESHERETEEN _FFTEENA =+ HZ EE ¥ (H130,042,000%

#D%Emﬁ{ééizﬁfgzmss 000 T0) IR T XMt B BEEEASETEEREZHN
5K TH ¥ 35 996,000,000% 7T -

(c) WEBRMARBMATELIREEINH 2 LinnE-




B d2 = EEAEEHzZHGEUKER

. {E)=(C)+

(4) (B) (C)=(A)+(B) (D) (E) (D)+(E)

XEE FER HEAEE BAEE

R-BENE RABEFL GEE R-2%RE 2t BEz

ZAZT-B  HEEE BE% ZA=t-8B HEZRE BBE

F#ET TExL Wi FET FiEL FEL Wi TEx

BEESEN I RERENRE 292,925 - 292,925 (3,368) (13,059) 276,498
fFEMERD - - - 41,144 - 41,144
FEEm (367,669) - (367,669) - - (367,669)
B 5 R ARG FORE N (552,508) - (552,508) (884) - (553,392)
EHRERD 38,877 - 18877 - 13,059 (m) 51,936
RurRERRD 13,422 - 13422 - - 13422
BEAREMEMZEREN (D) 468,621 - 468,621 (5,431) - 463,190
EAFRERE D (769) - {769) - - (769)
B ERE 2,458 - 2,458 - - 2,458
BEEE (BR EEZREE (104,643) - (104,643) 31,461 - (73,182)
BEFERUEER (14,155) - (14,155) (16,899) - (31,054)
ENZESHER - - - {1,800 - {1,800)
HEHIHE (41,262) - (41,262) - - (41,262)
BEREAGH 104 - 104 - - 104
GEXK (PR EL2REEE (159,936) - (159,956) 12,762 - (147,194)

RELH

EERGERER 288,623 - 288,623 - - 288,623
HE-MKBL AN REREHE 274,085 - 274,085 - - 274,085
EHFHE 21,003 - 21,093 5,720 - 26813
BREEBELAAZAE 19,707 - 19,797 - - 19,797
BEFRATHERED 19,226 - 19,226 - - 19,226
NERERAFBIE 9,957 - 9,957 10,376 - 20,333
BABERE - - - (5,170) - (5,170)
BREERELAZER 6,496 - 6,496 - - 6,496
PRE-HMBEATZRE 4,257 - 4,257 - - 4257
HEYE BERRENEIE 3,127 - 3,127 2,850 - 5977
BlgmasEmn (465,317) - (465,317) - - (465,317)
RERAER - (450,000)  {a) {450,000) - 450,000 (¢} -
(- ity - VNG (130,508 - (130,508) - 64,549 (c)Bn)  (65,959)
WE-HEELA (19,348) - (19,348) - - (19,348)
BENE BERRHE (17,726) - (17,7126) - - {17,726)
KREHE (8,065) - (8,065) - - (8,065)
BRELEE {5,425) - (5,425) - - (5,425)
HERBAT (5) - () 10 - 5
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(I BRBEAEEZAREREZERERERX

UITAZBRAREEZ A LEZELEHSRER NERRIBETHEOR _ZEZ=4N1
A—HB (FEBPMEAMZESG) EH- st ATHEITARERAM LREmMAART T
Loyal ConceptZ # %= 17 A& #> in I 7] 58 [ 503 1 A8 3% Loyal ConceptR #5 Ui & <F Bl (5 ¥ 247
BRELEFEREER (R MARKEZE#IERTRO - REFELHEEZEHERE
RIIRBEAEBR IR TEERZE _ZEFNF=-"A="+—HLFEZLEEXEEHEEN
EXRMEX TRALLRUDEEEZZE-

ERCEGHERSRBRIENEERE AR B bR EEEER SRR
BERRKEENAMBBMZETES-

(F)=(C)+

() (B) (C)=(A)+(B) (D) (E) (D)+(E)

LY 1! A8E HETEE EAEE
R-SQEE RRARSEZ BRz p-semE R Y
ZR=t-8 EZER #EX ZA=t-8  HZEE ARR

T#Ex TET Wi T#T T#Ex T#ET Wi TExR

BELR

BERHER 228,816 8,660 (g 237,476 {22,236) (4.676) (g)(j) 210,564

wE: :
FEKRA (22,728) (8.660) (g (31,388) (5,720) 4676 (9R(G)  (32431)
FREEREZAERNAER (16,829) - (16,829) (1,640) - {18,469)
HEREREINARE 9,577) - (9.577) - - {9,577)
HEXMREER - - - 13,059 (13,059)  (m) -
HEHBEEZ Y% (5,660) - (5.660) - - (5,660}
EVRESS 44,137 - 44,137 - - 44,137
BHRREGRESR 24,679 - 24,679 - - 24,679
NE BRERRBRERES 19,632 - 19,632 183 - 19,815
EfRENEFELEY - - - 8,800 - 8,800
FEYEER - - - 6,006 - 6,006
REHRER 16,633 - 16,653 - - 16,653
U RENER 5,300 - 5,300 - - 5,300
WE-MNELAAESEZ

HEZEEER 4,598 - 4,598 - - 4,598
BRARE - - - (147) - (147)
REEEE (B 3,208 - 3,208 (20) - 3,188
hENE BERAEZ
A () 696 - 696 (1,053) - (357
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) BREAEEZAKELHEZUER

UTEACBEREBZACELAETNER NERIXIDEFEER _ZFZ=FNA —
B (REEMBEIE R 528 M & A AT 65 7T 54 30 58 57 i 2 55 B T 4% 317 F Loyal
ConceptZ ¥ Z 17 % {5 i b 7] & [l 52 # 71 A8 2% Loyal Concept/R #5 W i <F HI ] #£ Z 17 AL 3R AE
HEREREER (0F) M RREBZBIERTRD -REEZHEERERTIREAL
KEAFENTERABE _FFTNE=A=Z1T-FIFEZELEBRGFARaEZMERY I
RARLURGABERZYE-

FREFCZHEZERERIFERHERHEAZ BARESREER S AR REHE
REERITMABHEZEERA-

(F)=(C)+

(A) (B) (C)=(A)+(B) (D) {E) (D)+(E)

-1 FER RETEE RAES

R-BSCET AREERY gRE p-SEpE it gz

ZE=+-8 HZHE HB4% —Bzt-B EEEE FEYL

FH#ET FET Wi FHT FHT FHELT M T

BER 5,009,930 - 5,009,930 63,514 3,566 (i) 5077010

FEHE (3,921,842} - (3,921,842) (55,429) (16,625) (i) (3,993,896)
RESEYERE - - - {6,006) - (6,006)
ZH 1,088,088 - 1,088,088 2,079 (13,059 1,077,108
ERBERA 117,563 8,660 (g) 126,223 7,267 (3,036) (), (i) 130,454

k()

ABEXERuE - - - 1,640 (1,640) (1) -
FEEH - - - 20 (20) (i) -

THREERY (688,528) - (688,528) - - (688,528)

fTHEL (283,709) - (283,709) {11,383) 0 () {295,072)

ERREYDETELEY - - - (8,800) - (8,800)
HERETEZER - - - (13,059) 13,09 (i) -

HitZER* (4,598) - (4,598) - - (4,598)
BEGN (BB 228,816 8,660 237,476 (22,236) {4,676) 210,564

HEER (26,440) (31,586) (k) (58,026) (15,585) - (73.611)
BB BN TER (73,463) - (73,463) - - (73,463)
HEMBARRBEAFAZUEFE 10,377 - 10,377 30 - 10,407
BREUBRFABAZEHE - - - - 10,205 (k) 10,205

BHUBERELAREL I HE (17,651) - {17,651 - - (17,651)
BIRARMERN (BR) 121,639 (22,926) 98,713 (37,791) 5,529 66,451
frEggxd (27,846) - (27.846) - - (27,846)
R PERAEENEN (BER) 93,793 (22,926) 70,867 (37,791 5,529 38,605
YEREER (80,493) - (80,493) 8,179 - (72314)
REEBH (BR) 13,300 {22,926) {9,626) (29,612 5,529 (33,709)

EREF (BER)

Ex 0.08% T (0.2 () (0.205)% T
e REH FER i _mm
EEMETHRGEE () 164,240,000
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ARG A
Bx
i

YERRER

B AR
- —F &M
BEASRE-—£H3H
R -E EREHE
REHFAR

(F)=(C)+

(A) (B) (C)=(A)+(B) D) (E) (D)+(E)
-4 XEM RETEE BAER
R-ZERE RRABREE2 BEE p-eenE Hib BEE
hE=Z+8 BERE ®BE%® hA=tH ExRg BE4
Fix FET B FET THT Fi#ET K F#
1,866 - 1,866 1,288 (1,288} (f) 1,866
1,825,356 - 1,825,356 12875 (128754) (f) 1825356
1,827,222 - 1,827,222 130,042 (130,042) 1,810
413,290 - 413,290 - - 413,290
8,001 - 8,001 30,000 12 fe) 38,113

- - - 12 (112) () -

2,395 - 2,395 - - 2,395

60 - 60 - - 60

10,456 - 10,456 30,112 - 40,568
2,250,968 - 2,250,968 160,154 (130,04) 2,281,080
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I RBEAXAEEZALELEZEEREEHER

DUTARBRREE AEERHEZEERAERER NRIARBBEEDIR _FFWT
FAA =+ B M WEH AT 7T 545 48 T M 2 B HE T A% %8 47 F Loyal ConceptZ #
ZRAT AR 3 hn b T B ] 56 # T A8 8% Loyal ConceptiR 4 Yt B8 <¥ RIl /] #F Z A7 A SR AF 18 58 1 g
BMER (WA MARKBZEIERTRO - RARECEEEERABEREINEELE
BMEHERTEEAN_ZFEZENFAAZTHIRALCEV G CEERAER HHREAEER
HETEESEEZ_ZZTNENA=ZTHIEANMBEAZ P HEE) MER  WEHEEUR
BMERBEE

FAREERHEEEAERABRBRRDFERUVERFHB RS BN AR EER 8t A
RELERREEAREME TZERTHBEGRI -

F=(C)+
(4) (B) {C)=(A)+(B) D) {E) (D)+(E)
b3, | XEE HRTEE RAER
R-SERF HRMEEY gEE p-2gnE 2t 8Ez
NRZ+E BEZR8 HB% NAZtH  BEEER RER
FHT FiET M FHIT F#x FET Wi FEIL
ERBEE
wE-EERRE 74713 - 74,713 69,054 - 143,767
Y EE 402,495 - 402,495 1,261 - 403,756
HE - - - 22,458 (22.458) (b) -
A - - - - (46,889) (b) (46,389)
BEAAER 847,695 - 847,695 1 - 847,706
BHERE 189,225 - 189,225 - - 189,225
NRBRER - 450,000 {a) 450,000 - (450,000) (c) -
BEHELE 12,500 - 12,590 - - 12,590
1,526,718 450,000 1,976,718 97,784 (519,347) 1,550,155
REEE
HitEE 145,085 - 145,085 - - 145,085
BEREDE - - - 71,990 - 71,990
g 672,762 - 672,762 67,034 - 739,796
ERREMERE 719,328 - 719,328 35201 - 754,529
BHERE 130,170 - 130,170 10,330 - 140,500
EBRLER 230,857 - 230,857 - - 230,857
HORPEE 34,440 - 34,440 - - 34,440
ERAETER - - - 2,930 - 2,930
BNELERRS 33,748 - 33,748 64,025 389,305 (d) 487,078
1,966,300 - 1,966,390 251,510 389,303 2,607,205
nEAE
EBREMEMRE (920,712) - (920,712) (64.479) - (985,191)
BR-—FRHE (270,618) (450,000 fa) (720618) (119,449} (33) fe) {840,100)
MEMERE-—ERHY - - - (33) B3 (e -
BE (21,969) - (21,969) (179) - (22,148)
ERREAR (4,300) - (4,300 - - (4,300)
BITEX (24,541) - (24,541) - - {24,541)
(1,242,140)  (450,000) (1,692,140)  (184,140) - (1,876,280)
HBEEEE 724250 (450,000 274,250 67.370 389,305 730,925
2,250,968 - 2,250,968 160,154 (130,042) 2,231,080
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i) AT A AR Z EFEERRBEIE-
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BERZER ALBEMNEERTERE T ZMBEARTETABREBRITKRZ LRE.

R BMRBFAEE - RBUAREEZGEI MR ARERET HHAR-BEAE
faf 055 ] > B RAT AR R AR 2018 28 7 B 2 FHW MRS R 0858 T (R A4 & #f SR I
MEFA TR CAMBEERERITHEZ A ARZEMER A RERZ R EE Lk

MEBRANR ZRFFEERRBTEME B ZOBERXREB REEZHE
EERAEBRE WEBXEBAZ REFEEHENARZ  INEBEREBZ REERHEE
RBEREX RGWAEBEZ RABEVEHAEG LS FLEEFHEBERER (N AMET
SCEEIVY(B)ER) - AR AT AT 5L IR BT M 2 SRR A% 3217 T Loyal ConceptZ #£ % 17
% 43 hn k] RE B 52 #2 1T A8 28 Loyal ConceptAR 18 W B <F Bl 7] £ 2% 47 I SR AE 8 9 il o W I 2
BMARKEBZEIERTRME DRYEUMERESEE 2.

FRRZETERE - BE M 2 45 7% B 5 S L L 0 A P 0 > S 10 ol 008 3 T v A 38 o
BMERMBESNNBEERRTRAEEZEEHEARRZ AMER L BRHRERT- R
REEEBEWTEIH ERMAGKAERIBEELFERRWHIBERMELZ &
N EER L BEE T
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FEOTEEZHMKESR

BB

WOFEEWNENAZTH - AEEZ EEFHE A %130,042,00000 B X F 35
D01% WHHRARHESER AEHAEFBETRASEROBY
64,025,0007C > T R 17 K E h {5 & Bl & # % 149,449,0007C - R 17 18 £ #
70,451,000 tF ELAHNER S B XENEBRZERER BARAEER
EEERAMBEZ AHERL RESERIELLHMALHEZE ARG
B %578,998,00000 F Z AL HE L U PR B 2R I i PR B S TR M R BT 2 BT
T B J7 #: % 15,000,0007C Z H] # 4% 4R DL S ¥ 13,000,000 7 R LR TR < B A
BB ERBESGEE 2 EERABURR S A AEE EEEE LR
(BEBEHEEEEEEZERIHEQR (CEENE=ZA=+—H 144%) - |
PHEAAEEZBAENBRRESNNE WESTRAEEZABHU R ATRE
& -

KRB EEHEEERTRAXEREAREEMNEFE EREMRE BEAWS
FIRDGMERMERF ABAREREBHELEE T - AEBARMrEE L RE
PUBTAR EFTRAURRA - ARE T E@EEMERERER-

BT [E] 3R

WEBRELRBEREMEFEIN _TENENA=ZTHEZ BT AHEZE502A
(ZEZ=ZFNA=ZTH:8AN) - AEE 8 TH X4 A% % 18,805,0007 (&
EFZZFEZFNA=ZFTHIENEAR #%2,053,0000T) AFEHEKETZERE:
BE- TEME REMTEFHERNMEEFHEFR-2EEHFmE TERHER
AR BB T RRE R IR &R E -

JRE

EHABEREHEAH LI AHEERATHEANE AR ZTERAHR
RREFHERPER M A MEFRTENRFE HHAYRTIH I HRE
—HEER RME—SUEARARRREFZRR .

AEEYNHEELBERBREGAEBOME RMBRSHEL R AHE
AEEMFH M FEEFHE T 2 PSC Corporation Limited 2 — [ it B 4 &)
UNEHEEEEER - RO AZRAHEBL THE R ME L/ - HERATE
FmgE AR R REEEREE R EENETEER TEZTAZS
HEMNAERERBRoHE W BREEBEANSTHEEERRFAZEMR
REEE AEB PR - ZHE A EREBFEBER LIEEH-EFECHET
FESZEBER- BEOMRFEN _ZTHE

PR GEERE AN AR _EENFEFT A+ HEHREERR A TREE
B (EREEE]) 5l mhE Kt B8 I8 3 E A5 % % 160,000,0007T
EHEIZA MEEEHTMEAEEAZHERAERAERRERBREERALE
b
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RECREZHB AN

(ii)

EREN®RDN

DTAMSERRTRE_FZNENAZTEEANEAZ P HBRERER
FURERFEMBZEEE S w Ao

[ % E &

AEEBE_FFNFEAA=ZTHIEAEAZEXEANEER175,398,0007T
B EFRIE EFIES500% o 7 B 45 E i A A B B R s> 2% % 1,017,000
T BEZEZ=ZFAA=ZTHIEAMEA ##14,661,0007T) - & L5HE MR E
BWENFEAR - FZXFNFEAAHNRBZ BERBREGEREFRRSEX
HER UABBEERAEEEHEABYETSERE LT

UE X F

AEHZRHELHMATHEREREKBEZ3ACEECME—EEHELMSC B
A HA #1525 1 60,546,0000T K B Al ¥ 013,878,000 C - T 1B L A& B W
EHEERANBLE L -NPKR B RELEYEFITEETEEN K 2EFHBEN-

BNBFEZER (R4 A ERNERERERERAR (EXE)) 2
HnE AEBARESEEGREREBERBEREAEE AATH - FHE AL
MER GEBREMELBELMZBEAALATER HEKHFRZEHE
BESLOMEE L, B R UKD 8188 £ 5% % 107,080,000t - HEE &
BREZWHER URAMSERERINER SEFIHERE 8 X FREH
G MR R 2 S5 B H A BN 23% & 31% o

WENERERBTEZSIBEREDHBARARALENE - BEXEEN S
GMP (EEGAEEHEEHEME) MEZ MBEL NBENHEBRERNLSNEE T
AEENERARRUREELRZERAENT SR EAERZER B
TE 85 J7 T BUAS 28 o oy A IE S 75 AR S 1 9 s 1R AR U P B I bR S T AT
BRAG AE B 18 o AR T > ph B TP EESE RS SR AR M P 2 3 A ) £ A5 BIOFI ¥ % 601,000
TEo




B &% =

BETEB2HKEESR

20.

RERR AEEARTIHFEMAIMATHHEXEEBT ZRAREE
HeRBENT:

—2ENE -BBEE
AAZ=+8 ZA=+-8
EHTT BT

—HE R 17,220 -
B EEAF (BHEEEWME) 20,683 -
37,903 -

EXBEFEEAEEARELE TRETE BREYEREHBEMZHE &
EHEFHFYA=F HelAEEREEHEMZ/EREHBEX
BEEE st EZHAEE-

HERRER

R_EZNFNLAZ TR ARG MZREEEREURER4TEE
720 7 B A H1150,000,0008% & R EE B 0.0t 2 # B R U REY S
58 MR A I M 0,42 5T B B 1 (E %5 100,000,0007C 2 2% = 4F HF AT #1 it 22
BN AEGREROREHRRAAERETREERREEH R - BITRMO K
AT R SRR A4 BT AT 15 2K IE 1B 28 1 16 155,000,0000T ¢ & R £ ¥ 35,000,000
TCHEEREEBRE T EMEE - 4 %90,000,000TEIE A AL F R EY 2
HE > KA HEH 30,000,000 cfEAEBEI—BEEEE -
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HEETEEZHMBER

18.

19.

i B8 B B 12 F]

MRZFFWEERA A HK B3R LLACE % % 42,000,000 7T 42 ¥ Tung Fong
Hung Investment Limited 2 3% 17 R 4 100% » LA B AR AE ¥ # 28,000,000 7T U
B Pacific Wins Development Ltd.8 T if JF # Tung Fong Hung Investment
Limited®F B Z50%E HTRA - X G R AW ETTETHE-

W BRI T

W F T
BAFEE 51,199
W E LA 22,936
mAE 74,135
LR B R AT

bR 42,000
R EE 13,000
] #A A% 2L i 15,000
70,000
BREREEER 4,135
74,135

WHEELERESRALBH
B&R1E (42,000)
BERBEEEH (4,135)
BASRTHEGARE 23,274
(22,861)

A A S T i B 2 B JE % R R A S LR 2R SR R R0 19 107,080,00075
Fe 72 7 45 [ 458 4 i P75 2 4 8 601,000 Ui A -

SXBEERRE

FERERFABA

B#ENAR=1AH
@A
“RENmE —2E=F
#EWHTT  EWTIT
ALEMPBAREMIBUTHEEIMNZYHEBE:

EEHEREAE 7,812 134
R & 1,421 -
9,233 134
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RETEEBZHEESN

16. EELEBE

17.

DTARRARRBEREHEHAZITEREREER (EE) BEXGHE
Eoif

hniE Bl
BIRITE B8 # st
EWTor EWHFT EWTT

RoBEZFWA—A-
“EFZEAASHE
R-FFWENA —F - ; _

Wi B Bt A 3,263 (3,263) -
AR R U A (FTA) 1Bk (385) 385 -
REZENENLHAZ=ZTH 2,878 (2,878) -

RZEZMFENLAZ+TH FEEE KRB EE B %698,699,0007T
(ZEENE=A=+—H : ##538,966,00070) 7 FIEHE 8 H £ &
SR 3 RE JEk AR T 2 T e R 2 AR 595,000 (ZEE I F =
A=+—H -HEREWE - YE ME L R/EEREE RE%25504,0000T) -
Bt B EEK16445000T (" EZNE=ZA=+—H ' FT) A EL
BEEE-ARAEREGEELARK BN AEBTEMRB T REAB
TE B 1B W5 1682,254,00070 (ZFEZENFE=H =+—H : %% 538,966,0007T)
Fufi s R EEE - B E B R ERAEE

AR A

REGEE ]
W F T
B R EEE 0.0l T2 E &AL
M_FEEZNENH—H K
—EEZNENHAZ=ZTH 40,000,000,000 400,000
E#IfT REE:
B _EEZNEI A —H 127,697,656 1,277
7 {5 H A% 1,155,000 11
R_FEENEAA=1+H 128,852,656 1,288
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12.

13.

14.

15.

B

Bt &% L BT 4t WAr B BT JBB 20 ] EE AR PR 40 M5 10 22,936,0007T o AS BA [ #5 6 40
B 478,000 0 R Ho T 2 BRI B 205 -

EUER - RERBARE
ARG TRHESZEFZEEMNF=TENATHEAE-
RS B BEORKZRE AT IIT

R-BENE R-S2OF
hBA=+R ZA=+-8
o BT T

ZE=+0H 17,757 4,799
=+—HAZFEN+H 3,445 -
B L+ A 1,660 -
22.862 4,799
HMEWRT %4 KEMHIE 12,339 5,512
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EAERRESTHAX

R E A AR Z BRE AT I0T
R-ZBENF RZZSNEF
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HEH T T BT

EE=+H 24,968 488
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HoAh FE A B X X FE 5T & 18,970 5,870
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MR_EFNEAA=ZTH - AEEBRBUEHRBEARELARITREMMESR
5 %:82,697,0007C » Y B A8 3R 4 LA B 1T A 0 SR IR 0 13,000,000T X A &
FA V%5 15,000,00070 7 —ZEFE N EEI M 2 29% 0] 58 B W] R ZE R AT (R
IS RE) AR AEBAEEH MEESSEFEAN_FEERFAAN
HE|# - R B ESRER4ST (AT FHE) Wi A
33,333,333k A<\ B) LA Ak o

I Ah > 2 42 T 73 Bl 48 15 %5 57,152,0000T J 18 18 1 15 112,844,0007T Z R 4T
B HoAt A 4
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Bk (FtA) THAIE:
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BHBEVEE STATHER
HEWR -BELREZER (k)
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AR AFENEHEEZ RTREAM
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4,221 100

4 _
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(1) (21)
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<A A

—EENE ZBEZHF

W T o VBT o

B 2K 2,719 9,576
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4,011 9,576
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FEBZERBEREERF (

G EBSIEF I SHFWT

BEZ_SBNSAA=TBLEXREAR

BEL

BREER EITE #hE =e
W F T BT BT T o T
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DEEE 253 9,611 10,465
KA ¥ E FH (7,005)
2 i | 3,460
B #% % A (4,011)
B i A 5 18 (551)
B IR (466)

KD AR
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FoAERARBREFTHZE -REIH X EE LR ERZ RiERS
IRz R e #4301 AR B L FUR 01Tl fr & R B Z #5018
TR < wt B A A A IR Ui B BT AR A s F AR AT R

HERAASE
WoEEMEZAS A AREETAEXRGEAEEE:

(a) WMER_ZEZENE=ZA_F+TNEZAH AXF2EHEEZHE LT
Cheung Tai Hong (B.V.L) Limited ([CTH (B.V.I).) S8 h R EH H B
B ([HE]) (EROREXHTET) STXEE WS B> CTH (B.V.L)
7] & LA 48 A8 W 42,000,0007T 19] 2 5K UK B Tong Fong Hung Investment
Limited ([ F4L]) &FBE- R FAREMB AT EER BN ERHE
RAEA BB PERERE SR & - LA E SR LLUE %6,500,0000T
AN B AT AR LR E OB & W 935,500,000 3 T

[ H > A& CTH (B.V.1.) % % = 7 Chelson Limited ( [ Chelson] ) ] 32 &
B W 151> CTH (B.V.1) LA #24R {5 ¥ % 28,000,0007¢ 4] Chelson i B H 7%
Pacific Wins Development Ltd. ( [ Pacific Wins] ) & ¥ 50% % & - - 7t A8
a3 Bl DL AR 2y B 8 A7 AR L R W 16,500,000 AR A F B it 2 W AR E 4B
% %:15,000,0007C & 3 £ # %:6,500,0007C % £ ° Pacific WinsE & 50% % H#E
AR FALIET — M2 EH B A R #FH - Pacific Wins R KM B AR £ &
% i Pacific WinsZ & & [ff & 2> ] Jean-Marie Pharmacal Company Limited
EECHERSHTIERE Mo
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28. AEAEXTRSF

(a)

(b)

(c)

N_EF=ZF+—A T B A AR 2ENBARHRITER (ME) A
R E (THERITHE ]) B 5 55 4 9l UK B8 Asia Progress ( [ Asia Progressifh
# 1) K Handsworth ([Handsworth#h &% | ) &% 2 847 iR A & BT R 8 3KET 3L
Whak ([UWEEZEIE ) - Asia Progressi# # X Handsworthth R E R —FF =
FE+ZAZTNOBAER (TTHAEHLD -

MR ¥ Asia Progressiih & > #% 2 17 #h & UL RE 8 % 150 10 # %% 4 WUEE Asia
ProgressZ & & B 4T At A< > M # 4% it 52 A B B3 LU A B M 10 B8 38 Asia
Progress X {7 # 5 A4 2 A% 3R & 30 15 27,803,0007C I Ah » B e A A ST A B
HA AT ) 3R B B A B %514,000,0000T < AR B RO 3F 7 SE AL H #A4E LU
RABW B 1o D B 30 3 T3 R IT M E - B ¥ Handsworth ¥ & > # /AT
B DU E 3% 10T [ 5 S8 AR I B Handsworth 2 8B 2 88 17 A 4% > if 3%
52 % B # LL AL E ¥ % 100 # 3 Handsworth R A E 554 2 I R £ 3k H
83,337,0007C * Asia Progress & Handsworth®& BE{EF 2 E B AR Bz
10% J% 309%R% 4% f %5 - Asia Progressh #& & Handsworth# &% 5¢ B 1% > Asia
Progress * Handsworth X RE M A HERITHEZ 2 EM B AR - WHEEIEED
M_EE=F+_AT_HZEREFHNRE LR R

NEE_EEZ=F=ZA=Z1+—HLEERN EHEEFREHA LT HE
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36,700,0007C - N " EE=ZF A =Z+—H AEBMEBEA T FIRME
R8BS G 8 Al 4 B 164,636,0007T K i % 109,758,0007C °

WERSBEARSMEE ARERERE AR REER TR LAE
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KR D REBUR MTEEL9 -

PAh > B A R AR N B W R 2R A AT IR U 1 112,000,0000C (ZEE =&
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R R AR &t 4 B RS-

NEE _EE=ZFZA=Z1+T—HLFERN A2EEXBFEHEEFRLAA
(TRF]) BB H560,000 tlEATTHRER T H - A R ZEET HHEL
A RERBELETRARFZES RAARZEEHHEALLELRFRNE
EEN YN BFRAER RS BF B LT AR EFHERRL
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R_EZNEFE=ZA=1T—H - AF@EHMEAF T4 2 £RKEEHE 5% 590,000
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TCZERe Ll FEERM 2T HE - EHWER e EEAR BREEL
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AEEER - - - (53,273) (53,273)
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(a) A o M B 4 VR 45 6 2 S B B R B

(b) 747 A T SR (AL IR M IR AT AR R o
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20023+ &l
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AEHZ RN R T EEREZE M P MR-
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RETEBZHKEER

WZEFEZENEZA=Z+—H RB2025 8 CREBRTERBETY X2 K
8 E £1,155,000/% > M E A Bl B E BTG 40.9% o B#20025F7]
TEREBRERBRZ RGBS ERBIEREXMF 0] TR L BERERY
Bz A4 s (T EIRREE ) 53 A 20025 B E KM H B BITRMIZ10% © 51
JBE%‘ETU@E&E@#M&G%%E% ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%zooﬁ%ﬂ&EHE{&*@J%%&tﬂ

%Zm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@%&EEHW%%T@ﬁﬁﬁ%mmﬁ%&ﬁ%%%?
HZRITEEREERRTEST TRTZ2ROGEE BHAREBITRBZ
30% o PR B IES + 2@ A M B A A LA ERE N RIS
HEBITRMI%Z BRE.

TREBRAXARART (BREESR) IHFBEREZHEAERERZ 28!

R-ZBZ=F R-ZEMmE

' mA—RB : ZA=Zt+-18H

SRR 8% RERRE REABRLE RERTE RERTH £t
(HfeE)

19947t &1 11,889,000 (11,294,550 - - (567,150) 27,300

2002t # - - 11,665,000 (10,510,000) - 1,155,000

11,889,000  (11,294,550) 11,665,000  (10,510,000) (567,150) 1,182,300

R-ZEEZF R-BE=F

mA-H ZA=+-18

sHEIER g% RERRE RERRE RERTE RERTH g8

199473t & 43,169,000 - - - (31,280,000) 11,889,000
BRI EREBR040TEE 043 TR

AEE RN ZEERNFI9945 B ERERERE T

RZ=A

RMEA—H =+—8H

F {5 Bk NERBHE NERTESH o33

(B 3E)
“EFNEF 4,580,000  (4,351,000) (229,000) -
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A 48 AR 4% 200251 | 1] T 7 H AR AT A -
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HEo
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R-ZBE-SFNA=-+BEH 28 ([2002578])

BEE 1904 BN —FEFE _FNAEKRLE - ARNARE—ER _EE _F£/NA
TARBBBZEZRERM002:TE ZetBEEREGER/ AN TREZE HR
CE - C_HEANA T HAHEER-BIE200258 ALNGEEETE IS ER
ANETREBRE LREAL TG

i) ArFAHEHMBLRAILALAFRAREMNRARZEZEAARAZER &
FRITEF K

(i) Bea HHEBLFAERAXNAHE L TMBARERS ZFEMAFZERT
EFH

(iii) HEBMEFF ;&

(iv) A -ERZALE AN

iRt EREARRE IR T ARNER BREAREEMNRZ ERESX
T ITRE-FHEEEEAOBRMRFREEBREZ B 2 W E; Sa)BRe 7
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() RBAMLAFZZFZARNBZAM6 (A6 ERIZFZF=ZFNATEHABEAZ R
#FPRAEA(BRAEL EEBRAYE _FTF=FUATEREEM - HPH L

(a) () FLIABEATERT@EEB®IOTZHAFESETEERKRG (TR ZHE
H-BRFHESSHEIEERS Y HEREEEH0.0995T - TS EE
BpzEBREEEBLIOTHEEH.0005T- Bl R AHAHZE
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AEEZETEZHELR (BALAMERE R_FFNE=ZA=+—H

ZFEAT
AEE
i S ERRT EBERES
BMEQTER BBEX EEME #RkF IBEXH
%
TREBHRLE & 2936 REER
LTRBEARAR 43X 3B 0 4 2745 HEXRMA
(T A [ B 2 CE-
AHRAFD)

PRI AZEMBLAALBELR NEFXAIEREAERS
NZEAXMEAEHFREEFEERRH AR -EHER LA FHHE
Mg A7 REEARGEIRERR TR
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Wi 8 — | AEE B AR

3408 HEAF
RHORT RACSEA
BRTR Bx/ Bx/ RERE(

HRATHER/ BRRE HMEX  HREX hxg

WRADEH EERE ZELES EAk Bat B TTEE
% % %

Memorex Products ¥ 1 - 67,08 4360 ERRABEEES
Europe Limited ERREEER
Memorex Products, £R 79,001,000% 75 - 67.08 $60 BERRAHER
Inc. BEERRYEER
Memorex Holdings BRE 100,000% 7t - 65 65 REER
Limited
GEABEEELY REEIER B - 100 100 BALHMBERNEE
HRAT
Rich Life Holdings A M - 100 100 HREHEE
Pte Limited
REFERAHE Ei HET - 100 00 HEER
Ultimate Strategy EREAEE 1£7 - 100 100 #REHE
Limited
Bt

a SHEERIMEEN G2 A SR B A T EMRRAGZ BE L LK G
S B L 3R - R S T AR 5 A £ 28 U A8 SR O A A1
143 ¥ -

rEAILSNEEEREF B

o
I

LA 45 BB 2 )0 4 40 B0 0 A AT B B MR R AR TSR R BE B
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41.

TEMBRARARBERTNZFE

ARAETERBAAR FENFZAST A ZAFOT

HWELAEE

Cyber Business
Network (Singapore)
Pte Lid

Hanny Magnetics
(B.V.L) Limited

RHERERAA

B2 (%) g5
ARLA
(Bitp)

Memorex Canada Ltd.

Memorex International

Inc.

ERAIAER/
a4y

i

i

R

N

ERRLES/
ZHBLRE
(TEHD

SRR
BREx
FELES

4,444 445K 70

40,000,000 7%
HEm
8,000,000 72
Bt

1,100,000,2008 72
LERG
6,000.000% 7%
SHERFE
FERH
(if#a)

686,072,148 T

1,000,000% T
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100

160

43.60

43.60
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RERAHE
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REAREER
AREEMER
ERLBH
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e

a. i, AR B T BRR AR BRI SR & R R BT S A
ERHELMRBHEBEER MR BF) il EREE-

b. ZER 5 I RAEI B A E A T AT
c. ZEXHIRBEEX S W ETEST-

d. ZEXG HEARETRFAREZEREE -

WA BARNF —ZEFZ2HAABEREEH 2 AEHDE THRIT RHE M
& 3#6,441,000 T (—ZFFE =4 :6,306,000{ 7T ) °

BEXHEEEN AEARFRNLEBERFEEANLEREAERTS
BREHAREZEALHFAERS K
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39.

40.

XEAFTERZHBARAZAERER R PREF TS MR EEBE
FEINR -ZEWBAFEAMNLES T B MWL ZBKERNFTH ZH#
o AEEHZBARBHTE ZREBERFELFEZ MK

AEEEA

REEBH REARANFETIEEFEARITRAEMBERSEZ K
F5E v N

ZBEME ZBEZE “BEIME it 3-8 3

FHT F#ET FitT FiET

EHREMERHE 217,420 174,431 - -
—~HBEL Tz LR 75,199 59,148 - -
hE 93,180 39,162 - -
THEEE 12,392 30,818 - -
BHTE 813 944 813 944
BIER - 19,226 - -
399,004 323,729 813 944

REMEATETREZRAFZESR

ARENE RS T ENENTET 2 ERLH 2 LR A
MENLI 2 ERIT

—gENE —RB=F

FHT ~ FHT

FERREEBE AL

AEBBFRESZRE (Mfita) 12,263 9,857
AEBECEWEERZFE (Hia) 3,015 4,789
EIHBWA (HfiEd) 1,182 5,256
W R 2 W28 R (Bffatd) 13 3,000
PELHEAEBN X ZHE (Hita) 168,368 168,339
RNELXREAEER I A (Hita) 149,333 71,793
FERNEHAEBRR L ZER (Hita) . 140,541 224,875
FERNAER (ER) B Z2ER (Fita) (15,667) 172,000
iR /NI

ERNAER (BB B X2 ER (Hita) (41,173) 6,400
EHBEIA (Mitd) 6,677 9,336
AEEB W EERFE (Hfita) 1,507 639
HESER (ffitc) : 1,347 2,524
P B BB (B EED) - 76,894
HER B (Hab) - 3,566

RESR BEBREARZ AR HERM 20 -
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EEBz2MBER

38.

BEREN _ZEZNFE-FTREESHF - BETEIHZ AN R RO W THE
B2 8% T

BRE"E
hid
R —BE=F
ZBEC-f BELT =
mA—H Ria6 =+-—8

R AM TES TEE o RAT & mAEE R AT

E%

“EF-F  CEF-F
AR AAZT—H
=t—H  EITERE
AR=Z+H 2.9888 460,000,000 (448,500,000) 11,500,000

4=
“EE-F —EFE-F
MAH ANA=+—H
=+—H E_ZERF
AA=+1H 2.9888 180,000,000 (175,500,000) 4,500,000

640,000,000 (624,000,000) 16,000,000

PAE P BT AR Bt 2 AR T O 2 AR 13T (
FEZFRB) -

ERHZEREZMBEEZEERTALLARAEHA ZEERERT
HEBREETHEA L A4 NMENREBREZBERESRER
PRERR S EAT AR TR IT M R A AL AR RO EEE AT
SN B - T 5 i AT (8 1 R 48 AR T (L MO BB o AR 8 D 0 AR e (B IR
3 B o B EL AT (E H B T AR RUERGE B 2 M ARRE AR SR AT i B RO B RC T o
i B

BKBFGE

FEBAARFRETEMBLARAZ cEHRERETRAEAEE (8
el - BRI EEEGRAER TREAERZ 2 HFH-
AEENARITERAZ5%M ZaT M 35K 8iE S 2 HKFEMR -

AEEIR RGN B~ R (B A7 SR - 38 A B 5 A B RO N 22 Fit
BT Z A B E B TSR AR A B B R R A FT BB BT (R 5T
ANERTERAZEBAZEEPAFE - AEBNEHE LEREZ4E10%[
2R BN SR B 2 (B -
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FEE2MBEEHR

R EERNE=A=Z+—H - HE_EFZ=ER _ZEFT—FEHKEIE
BRI K RAT 2 B BT & 2 B BUE £21,800,00008 (ZFZE =
£ :16,000,0008%) - (EE HANB ZEBITRMZ11.69% (—FEFE =4
9.98%) °

BREAERE AR A-EINEOEREE vz A EmER-
BRET R HE 2R B HEFI0FRERITE-TEEOAL
AEEEE EARBERTI=ZFFZHEE FALARMRFTHANZ
BT 8 B R BRI B AT AL 3 B 2 P B AR AR
] {E -

TEHEBEFANALAER (BFEEFE) FAZALFABRELZEHFE:
—EE=FERETE

FARER
R-ZEWF
=ZA=t+—H
BHAM TEH TEE CEXR:d
#E T
EE
“EFTME_AZF=E “EENE-_A-t+=F
EF_EFRNE_A-+H 3.415 6,400,000
=]
ZEZNE_A-+= ZZZWE_A-+=H
BIEENE_HAZTZH 3415 6,400,000
12,800,000
—EZ-FERETE
BRERR
R
» ZE8NE
—EBZ=HF =
BA-A FRFH =+-7
BHBESE  TEH SO CEXR: ERFHE g3 BRI
# T
Ex
TEF-& —EFT-%
ANH ANAB=+—H
=+—=H EETRE
ARBZ+H 2.9888 11,500,000 (1,750,000) (750,000) 9,000,000
EE
TEE-&E ZFET-F
AR ANAB=+—H

=+—8 FIEZA
FEFARZ=Z+H 29888 4,500,000 (3,000,000)  (1,500,000) -

16,000,000 (4,750,000) (2,250,000) 9,000,000
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AEEZHB AR

37.

RHEBER AFEEREEF LT RRBRERS 50

—EEFNEF —EB-F
¥ EE R
tih REF RiHE turEF RE
F it F oo F# T F T

EEEL
ZIEWRERE:
—E R 4,747 20,000 2,662 -
B OEEHF

(B EME

BIETEA) 18,109 35,000 9,780 -
AEE 13,914 - 12,057 -

36,770 55,000 24,499 -

BRESS

ARARZEE-FNA T —HREAHERENS ([ ZET—FHK
M) BEUBALEBEZER - RE_TT-FHEEFH AL
EFEGUMALAFSERER AETHES (EAEFBLANTESR)
B AR B AT AT Wi J 2% R HE S AR B b > LR A 0 | B A

MBEALNRANR__FEZ=ZF=A+LHBETZIRAFI KRG LERZ RH#
FoARNFEKRIE"FFE - FHREST R RA - A EBRERE ([
FEZEHEEE]) - RE_FF=FHEEFE - AAAEEEMH
ARHMEZRRE UABEZEX A SRS e RN EAREFLE
Mz ALEBAE BB 8 A EE REAFF X
BB SELXXEBHE- BEA MBELEHREERE ZFTF=F
MREASNEEASZHERMBAAEEAROERZZRE L B2 H
ERAUAEBREBRRZERBAGARE REAEFRAEIERGZE
{8 o

RE - TEZFEBER B AL TR AR 83 2 IR k2
B BB A B RIAAR L RAAR T BEITRMZ30% - EZHRGZHRRT
RE_FF=ZEFEHTREZBERETRIBZRAEE £ EREAE
MEAMFER L2 ERETRRZROEBE A RERRER KRR
“EFZFEREAHZAARAL AT BITREZ10%

B _FEZFRBREST EREAAN R REELMME M —FER
AETFEMAEAZEBRESSBARLAFAEBITRNZ 1% - M EEKRE
BB EATEETREZERENBREARREARZ0.1% L EES
i#%5,000,000% 70 IR EER A N TR R Z BB -
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FEEHzZHMBER

36.

EEBNER

FEBEREEA

FER-RBEEHAM N ZRERE:

T RETF
oy WA LR A

A EH
—BRmE —BB=F
THT  THET
27,134 24,209
8,615 2,959
35,749 27,168

REFEH AERMEL TREARMZEBEEHYZ AL ZERER

BEAOMKZEHE DT

—EENEF —BE=-F
/R T R T
TEEF REE THwREF RRE
F i oT F T F T F# T
HEE A
2B A
— X 25,096 22,678 19,403 2,594
- 2
(B W F
BIEFER) 79,900 41,721 50,733 3,018
HEL £ 53,162 705 34,437 -
158,158 65,104 104,573 5,612
AR —E2+FEREE K> MBESERAREE-
ERNARGE BT ETAEERLRE-
AEBEREHEBEA
T EE
—EFNF -BE=F
F I F# T
R RIESERGZHE
T Ho ke HEEF 6,568 4,754
Yk M Es Rkt 5,000 -
11,568 4,754
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FEEB2HBER

3s.

MEERRRZEIME A TREENEEERREC FTHE - LT AR
A5 B i IR IE R TR &S8R 0 AT

—eEME —BE=F
FHT  THET

RIEFHIEEE (35,480) (13,298)
AR IE & & 136 750
(35,344) (12,548)

PREEE B AR E R SRR G A 2 R E) A BLIE RS 18 5 363,848,000
I (" F =4 :470,299,000% J0) < 3% 518 $69,488,000% 0T (—FEE =
F:45,357,000% 70) O WERR A IR HE B TH B 2 o B A R R TR I o 2R g2 1 2R R »
Wk B B AR 5 18294,360,0008 70 (T F = 4F 1 424,942,000% 76) HE 52
EEBIEEE S HERTERBPLEE.

NN

ﬁf*Z*%-‘iEi AN | AT RS S8 ok R i B 2 SR Bl B B TE S 1B 549,958,000
T ZEEFE = 494880001%75 o |y FA IR BE T8 M >R 28 ¥ F 2k R 5 R A B
%%%IEEETEHE EERIE -ZEEETEREAEE

HREE

rEE b NN
—EENE —ZE2E=F —Z2FTRE —BEZ=F
F & T F T F i T T o

B AEE R T

AT R E A

B HEELL

BRI T T E

ZHEZ

EB A&
= RN - - 57,933 164,369
FRFNE - 11,674 - 11,674

- 11,674 57,933 176,043

AEBNERYEMERIIEEMERD ERDMELEZBEESEN T
iﬁzss 0003 JT (#4155 §22,213,000% JC) £:855,000F JT (F1% i*6,639,000%

cHNHRARERRKH - AEFENBE_FENF=ZA=Z+—HIH*
I“?JLEZ%HJ%*’\*HEFEEHE5302000%71: B 2 2,345,0008 0T) DAEATE
AL 2 Al BERE 48 -
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B 8% — rEEBzZHBER

BE_FTEXE=F-AZ+—HLFEEHHZIERZFREZHWT:

(a) AEEFTUYE BBREAREZBEHOZE RETXHARFZER
{8 52,990,000 T

(b) 7% £ [ 0 35— [ 64 B 2 71 2 2 Sh R A - 1218 15 278,320,000 8% 5T » 1) 8
% FE U B 1 £ 3K 260,578,000 7T AT © 17,742,000 7T 2 B B8R 207
CEE=ZHE=ZR=t+—HBMEREE-

34, EEBE
MAFEFERBEFEEZEER ERFIEAE (EE) REZFHWT:
rEH
g3
HERE REFE Hiy g%
FiET FiET FiET FiT
RZZZ_FEA-H
- LR ER - - - -
- AR ReHERED
F 1% (BEBT)
1 4 % 1,532 (15,264) 898 (12,834)
-ZE5 1,532 (15,264) 898 (12,834)
ENRERRER T
B GIA) ERUEE
(Kiz14) 551 (491) 26 286
ROFE=F
ZH=t+-8k
“EZ=FNA-H 2,083 (15,75) 1,124 (12,548)
ok (57) (1,922) (20) (1,999)
ERFAGSE
Wik (Hiie) (1,362) (2,724) (16,724)* (20,810)
ﬁi&ﬁz 5’/%
-RERRE XY
(FFA) GARER
(Btati4) 80 (67) - 13
RZERWE
ZHE=t+—H 744 (20,468) (15,620) (35,344)

* BIEFEERTEFANEE —MHBLAR C EEARMRZIEEERE (WEB UK
FH-HFEEREFHER 2 REAERERZCUREZRE 228 .
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TEBZ2HBESR

33.

TEFHRSTH
BE - EENEZA=+—ALEFRMZTERBEETH N T

(a) A% B UALAE 150,000,000% IT Y B8 Bk 15 85 L - 8% T 1818 19,492,000%
TN _EZENE=ZF=+—BNRES-

(b) AEEPI201,987,000 THEETHBEAR BEREBME—F
BAANTRT L 2B, Hh124,387,0006 Tt 2 R EBLUMRE £
HoAh FE A ERIE SR 8 - 82 T 1048 77,600,000 7T LA AR [R] 4 %8 2 H b FE 1
ERIEIE SN o

(c) A EHLA{E 190,000,000% T R R A B - RIEAEHEEFH
AR ZZEEHEHAZAEGZE BAoRESAIUBREHE
240,699,000 T F At FE i 3k TH 81,871,000 7T 3 A » #44 AL1E Y
LA 2R 4 20,000,000% 7T 32 £ o 8 T 1818 47,430,0008 JT it ZFF W £
ZH=Z=+—B81KREM-

(d) WRBEAFEHETEALT I ZZEHEFEAZA - AERFTARS
T FE i 45 HA B 3K42,165,000%5 7T K L Ath B8 0 3K TH 19,360,000 7T » 3%
S RIE 41 Al 043,275,000 T 2 H A B 3K 12 18,250,000 7T 2 H At &
YRR EAE AT -

() MEBAEEHEAFMA LTI —MFE EMhEIEKIE38,710,000
J6 LA HAth B 3K 23,543,000 70 & FE AT F] B 15,167,000%5 7T & 1+

(f) 45 H8 3022,866,0004k 7T - fE W F1| E 1,290,000% 7T & FE {5 2K TH 24,000
T DL U B — TE R & 2 18 24,180,000 4 T & {5 -

(g) [ — P 5 1 ) T 48 BB B 8 4 W) BKIE 3 0 19,024,000 T »
EREBUAEEE ~vEBAANLT Lz M EFEHZHETH
BEX:PS AR - it

(hy A&EELI16,000000E Tz RELES TeHEZ KM EE - RELE

M- RABALT Tz —HEEEARA . RE R LEZ R
4 0 R B A o

- 55 -




i &% — rEBCHMBER

32. HEMBAR

—ETNE —FF=F
T#ET T#E T

HEEBEZFE
BEEEE 78,388 -
MEW 5L B oy /) 22 3E 157,353 15,000
WITHF AR E 5 2
FEAT SR B 22 A 2 5K0A - (8,853) -
FEAT B & s Tl 2 FOE (1,433) -
JE AT B IH (22,531) (13,027)
202,929 1,975
FE AL & A 556 -
C 5 B R (216) -
203,269 1,975
HEWMBATZ (BR) ki (1,282) 25
201,987 2,000
AR
e - 2,000
H th FE A 2R IA 201,987 -
201,987 2,000
HERBAREAZESR (1) ABH:
ReE - 2,000
HEZRITEFLEE (5) (2)
(5) 1,998

FAMHEZMBAAHAAEBAZEXFERERLTBFHERTER-4F
MITHEZMBAREMSBAZHRERELAEK.
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31.

BB —EHERT

7 48 [ #% 14,18 150,000,000% TU R G E E L RE B EA R A A ([3RE
REL]) 2 2IMEBITRA

ZWHEEHECORRARBEHEAIR.

4,598,000% 7T °

WREEZFH
Hih &
HoAth AT KR

[EE: S
BAE

XRFER:
He
EIERAE (K 3E33(a))

~53_

ZWHEEHETEAZBHESHYE

—EENF —BBZF
T# T T T

150,000 -
(4,598) -

145,402 -
4,598 -

150,000 -

130,508 -
19,492 -

150,000 -
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FEE2HHESR

30.

Giiy R— NN NFER_ZFXZ=ZHHEALAAROTEENEEZER: X

(iv) BEHEBEEMRUIEHEALFAIHN FFEZE—-A=+—H"
CEE-FE-AZT-HARZFFE=ZF-AZTHZEMZEH-

KEERE-ANA—FLAE (BERD) AR ZEHABRTHIRT
ERFMEME LR U TEI AL AN EREHE ST REIRERE K
B 2K :

1. BEERELIRBEEACERIHE K

2. HEEZISIEESEWEREEERC #7TRAEROEER
Z R

FERL ALATHSRTRR ZFEHOT

—EENFE —BFT=F
T#TT T# T

BEH8E% 1,673,702 1,673,702
5% B s 13,876 25,891

1,687,578 1,699,593

BN—ELBRRAE

ZHEABIEN RS REEEREFY ZREMETNREE AT —F
WEE B ZFES BB A
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B 8% —

ZNE S

g 2 Bt & R

AEAR_FENF=ZA=+—BZHEAHAHKT):

() AEER—ANANE_A-+ER-ZEE=F"F+L0ERHE

BEREBBEAER AR GRIE £ ZEIR;

(i) R—ANNFERZFZ=ZFHBRALARGTEERELZER X

(iii)

BEEBEEBEMRUBHALA MR - FFFF~A=+—H8"

TEE—FE—-A=Z+—HAREE=HFZA_tHZEM S

ENN

P £
mA- A
RERGFELLEE
R R
R4S
BB R R
HERHEE
REEER
£
ZA=t-H&
“ZE-FNA—E
BORGFEL2ER
ROEHEA
AEEBR
#ik s

RoREmE
EVERS:

AR R _EFUEFE=RA=+—HZEHBKT:

EmEs RERA

RBE B4R @ (B 4) k]
T T FiET TH#T T#T
1,074,542 437 592 (20,069) 1,955,502
23 - - - 23
(1974,565) 1,974,565 - - -
- (460,000) - 460,000 -

- 158,700 - - 158,700

- - S (414,040)  (414,040)

- 1,673,702 592 25,891 1,700,185
99,934 - - - 99,934
(713) - - - (713)

- - - (794) (794)

- - - (11,221) (11,221)
99221 1,673,702 592 13876 1,787,391

(i) AAFWHEHanny BVIRE HZ AR ZEERRESHANFME
AUEBAEREIT IR EEZ Z5;

) M—HAIANEZAZTERZZF=H_AF+HEBEAELTZ KM
HEIRBBEAANFAZEHRARKENEESE ZER:
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FEEzZHBES

28.

i A

RoOEE B

Fi# T

EERA:
WZFEFE_FEMNA—H (FK0.025%T) 26,000,000,000 650,000
B 40481 (25,350,000,000) -
R 1 1D (B R 64.,350,000,000 -
o5 A (45,000,000,000) (450,000)
W_EEZFER _FFTNE
ZHZ=Z+—H (0.0l T) 20,000,000,000 200,000
EEBIT REERA:
WZEZE_ENE—H (F0.025% 7T) 6,412,057,523 160,301
T{ERRCRE 70,595 2
MR E A B R (6,251,824,916) (158,700)
RZZZ=FE=A=Z+—H (B0.01ET) 160,303,202 1,603
BAITE R (M ita) 21,500,000 215
FTEEE R RE (B 3tD) 4,750,000 48
BR_EENE=H=+—H (5&0.01%T) 186,553,202 1,866

it

RZEZENFE-AZTAB - FHTAAEELHE URETXABIRAREET
ABEREFCXEEARLTE (AAAFERE) #5244 7 21,500,000/ &
BEEOIE T B - HEEAESRI0ET BEMR_EZNE A=+ /N
HAH TRz Wi B R4358 T B 48% -

RERF AT IZRBHE THCEXEHERAAUERIOB LT B mE
2 R EE21,500,00008 R E H0.01 T2 FF R M- TS A D BIEA L S Z I
BEEE BEVMRE IR ERS TR _EE=FAA T A ETZREEE
RELBRTFTESZ —BEEST NBOESSFEEEMOBITREZEERS
BE -

T A B 47 (84,750,000 B 3% 48 1 3% 45 B% 2.9888% JC 2 3R BE 18 35 474,750,0001% &

EHECOIETZ ARG - RERNBTZRHRBEREAZROIRSETER
7] 4 HE i o
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FEEB2HBEH

27.

MEROEAE
r£E
BEBUMTR BEEATRERAE
ZEEME —BE=H —EEME ZEB=HE
T F T T T
BEmAREERY:
— 4R 1,117 1,181 1,068 1,113
MELER
(BHEREMF) 536 1,868 462 1,557
1,653 3,049
HoORRBEERR (123) (379)
EHRERE 1,530 2,670 1,530 2,670
ﬁfmm
ERZHK
(ﬁ'Jﬁ'\{uu@J
AEET (1,068) (1,113)
— 1% 5
EEZHHE 462 1,557

AEFCREMEHAEERE TREAREG FHHEARFE-HED
ZENFEZA=Z+—HLEFZ FHEREENERING (ZEF =4
12.51%) - MR THH & #) B BIFEE - Fra 4 8 A B 2 8 JUE 0 ik
WA A EHIEETEMEZ -

ARBZBERLARENUBEAZHEEESE LKA
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25.

26.

ESREMESRE
Z 5 o EoAth A 3K TE 6145 827,620,000% 7T (—EF =4 :632,561,000% IC)
ZHEMESHRIEER-
FEMTE SR ERE ST T
& H
“EERE —ZBE=E
F#oT F# T
ok F #A 445,088 319,505
my o —1EA 116,373 99,484
MY —ZWE A 50,321 35,422
i A W A 215,838 178,150
827,620 632,561
& 7
XEE P N
ZEEQNF —B8=F% “EEME —E8=H
T ¥# T F#ET F#T Fi#T
LB
BATE 205,641 237 468 - -
Hb & 151,339 180,000 149,333 165,000
356,980 417 468 149,333 165,000
R
A H 159,583 107,140 - -
S 197,397 310,328 149,333 165,000
356,980 417.468 149,333 165,000
TRREAREATEAHERFEANE BARUT EHER:
— NI E R 349,059 244,473 149,333 -
—EWERN 266 165,238 - 165,000
MELER 940 843 - -
BRALE 6,715 6,914 - -
356,980 417,468 149,333 - 165,000
IAREEEETR ‘
—E Rz HE (349,059) (244,473) (149,333) -
—EH B M HIE 7,921 172,995 - 165,000
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BEZREMERRE

B 5 Tr HoAth FE i 370E £1.5 685,025,000 ¢ ( B FE =4 :397,764,000: 7T)
CRUB SR EEG - AEENEBRSEF THRH—ZWMBAREZ
B3 GE

FE L 5 5 B BR A A A I T
rEE

—ETNE —BT=F
T T F# T

* 7 85 624,041 354,824
i H8 > — 18 A 52,433 26,561
W — = ™mE A 2,099 6,916
s 1A A R A 6,452 9,463

685,025 397,764
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AEEZHBEENR
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23.

Hit&EE

ZHEMPRZ L MHAZREE N AEH - ZERAREBREEXEZ =
B EEE MR PR AR E AR = FHFAME-
AEBZEZHEBZBZRER TAERGER I MFERERE (TH
EE)) ALEEFAEEREZRESLBEERETREE

U898 R b 35 HE 2 18 150,000,000 TH AL B R FERN T > MAEEC
T AT NEH5,750,0007T (FB% HA £75,425,0008 5T) LLEBUIE 1= H BH 3 K b g
FEIRZEZTIOREF-

FEEZAHMEEFEHE AHAEEZ AEINARBEE-
EEC2EMBUMEMTERRBTERERLAMEMAEE %%

WE=ZA=+—HZAMWEEEFGEREMEEZ REE > Bl HEE
BAEHER -

7E
KEE
—ETNEFE —FEBE=F
F T F# T
JE A1 KL 6,769 9,459
o 1,435 2,702
A5 869,205 493,004

877,409 505,165

ki B A E A R 109,000 T (ZFEFT =4 371,000 T) KB R &
269,854,000 7T (ZEE =4:104,422,00087T) - DR E AT R FET|E-
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21, BHERE
RERS HttiRE an

“EENE “EE-F CEENFE ZS3-F “SENF Z88=F
Fi#T %%i F#ET Tt FHTL FiBiT

y g4

LiiEE

& - 698,407 126,114 108,548 126,114 806,955

W - - 850 984 850 984

FLiiEs ‘

&k - - 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

won () 188,890 204,573 - 78,388 188,390 282,961
188,890 902,980 132,964 193,920 321,854 1,096,900

LTiEEzHE - 10,859 126,964 109,532 126,964 120,391

HEHEMM

gz

REHEM

ki 188,890 887,300 330 330 189,220 887,630

ik - 15,680 132,634 193,590 132,634 209,270
188,890 902,980 132,964 193,920 321,854 1,096,900

y: N

BINEH S

i - - 813 944 813 944

Ftat: FETEINBETHEEEEFREROARLA ([EH])) 28.04% (ZFLX=
F:8.04%) ME-BHHFFREFRLE AHEREARLF HELEERL
AREMREARAAEGHTR _EE_FWNA Z+—HEEGEBRY FHEHE
ERBUEFARBMET-

FERA EREBEHRZRERDHERHIRMEE-
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Fi#or
REE
NZZFE=HEWAH—H 72,132
=i 208,760
MoOETNE=A=+—0 280,892
By o
M_EBEF=4NTH—H 6,612
A AE E 17,651
REZZEFNF=R=+—8 24,263
BREFHE
R_EFMNE=ZA=+—H 256,629
W _EZ=F=ZH=Z+—H 65,520
FE B E105-

EERLH BARSAHEEREOEZBEER.
fEF — B8 =) &30 ST R M E E B3 - (71,336,000 T (ZFF =4
7,516,000 7T) X WEAZEHTZMNERAEA LN KBRHAEE -BRBEL
AHEARET 2ERTEERERTY -EFAL SERAMAERFGE R
Rt —HEREE Bl Z%E AT F R R B SR

AEBZEIEBMERNAR _FEFNF=ZA=Z+—HZFHHRHRME4 -
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BB AL
FABEE
REEE
ME B R
FRBRIER D BRI S
EERE

AEBMEIEEEFE

CES

BRRE VBB RERMN—REFZER

AR EREAE Z R R D BB RORE R AT — B 2 B 1R

1,124,597

1,064,647
(161,090)
(494,774)

(169,184)

(56,996)

UTERFR IS EHEERE AR ERABEEARA R ZHHEER:

BAEAR UL
FHBEE
mEEE
B =R E
FRE R R R D BRI R
KEFE

AEBREIEEERE

BEE

R A R 2 B SR 28 T
—EBZEN (BER

A G T A 2 BR B R D R R M 28
—REBZEF(BR)
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—EBENE —BE=H
=A=+—8 =ZA=+-—H
F &L Fi#ET
473,982 376,171
403,316 513,082
(152,958) (191,929)
(142,831) (124,550)
581,509 572,774
159,624 157,226
IEB=HF —BEF
WE—BZE EFA—-HZE
—EENMF —BR=E
=B=+—-H =ZB=+-8
F BT Fi# L
664,125 619,467
31,923 (12,432)

8,763 (3,413)
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BILTIBEAREE (BE) BE:
—fEEE LW (Hia)
— TR (B i)
— LMW

VB E N R E A Z B BB ()

& T — M B & N m B BUEE (M d)
FE U B B 2 Rl 5RB (B 32 d)

LA T E

e

AEE

—gENE —SE=F
FET  THE
463,234 -
169,770 184,574
(15.459) (12,229)
256,629 65,520
874,174 237,865
1,361 7,651
30,874 25,846
906,409 271,362
320,500 134,561

a. RIBEZF=ZA=Z+—H - AHBHEE X #698,400,0000 T Z KB T s A %
B ERZ 1455 A #E R oFE=ZF LA - AEBLUME£ 19,300,000 T
WSR2 16.65%HER - HM - RPFRZREWEN20% THESEREEY

TRBBE LTS

FRDTMBFE LT AR EMBEEAEREAA T A=+ -9 - NRAEE G
BERCARBAAFTREABZHBEENTHER Bt A RERIEHRER &
FTMEZA=+—Hzf#En NRE\EFFER _FF=ZE+_A=Z+-HZEEF
ERFERAEFAEABEELAAZEE-TEZF A=+ -HZ L4558
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ELEEL

19.

it

a. RIERZZF=ZFZ+T—HB2Z2&HAER — LI =F & Tandy CorporationZ
Memtek & & #F & MemorexComputer Supplies # R R —_EEZF A NF Z —
i B B 7 Bl Memorex International Inc.Z 14 9% ERTEE 2 BB -ZEHE T
HEHRETIHETLEREH-

ER-EHCEHERE-HMHEBLOFTMELZERAZIREE 4,598,000 74 I
MERE I8 (5 184,598,000/ 70 M B IS R R kR

b. WIEEZEZAZ+—HZEHEAH N — LILILE M Memorex Telex N. V.4 #
[Memorex | B EF I HEZ WHEE - HEFVENRKEREE - T FHMMREN-

A 25 B R 190,000,000 ¥ 5T 1] — {8 32 585 = F JX B [ Dysan] 22 [ Precision ]
SR E ZRE2ER L AEMPEEEERARFTIEMESEE -HIERD
AETIEEREL T E R

c. FEBEATANEEENEREM R ZHEMNENEEAREE T FRNHEE-

EERA - BARIAREE HEFTERENERTEZ REER-

EQ RS
QT

“EZNE ZEBEZH
F T F# T
FE E AR 118.373 118,373
T I B T S R 2R 1A 5,026,854 5,022,636
5,145,227 5,141,009
o REURET B S R SR IH (2,374,810)  (2,374,810)
2,770,417 2,766,199
JE AsF — R BfS BB 2 &) 3K IE 813,043 877,475

¥ LW R 2 BREIE > T3 R #8444 B I Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited
([Hanny BVL]) R EMH B AR £MEB AR A 2 EEREEFE
BE -

MEBARZEGAREN e REAEEFM EHBEM A ENER
H&—FRNEREE @R FREFE-

ARAZEEMB AR -EFNF=A=Z+—H ZHHEN M4 -
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B % — FEE BB EHR

—HMAEEZ L EEFHEEIG MBI EFNEMTEXETFEER
WA IE L AT EHEEELT -

FEMZITHMEEFHAAEREBRITERESEAR RREERES
21,157,000 7€ ( —FEFE =4 :21,862,0004 70)

WE BEABRE2EOSFEEBRURBMEEAFREAEZEE BEA
1,985,000% 7T ( —ZZ&FEE = 412,660,000 7T) °

18. EBREE

BE
BE BT BHE an
F#T FiET FET F#TT
(H5ta) (HtzEn) (fite)
58
RAE
RZZE=EWA—H
- LA ER 354,665 91,318 - 445 983
-ERBEFERER
#1058 (B1B3)
il 7 % (1,982) - - (1,982)
-BE5| 352,683 91,318 - 444,001
#IR 4,598 190,000 ) 8,065 202,663
HE-HHBARZ
3 {1y B 1 O 4L B (69.857) - - (69,857)
R_ZFRE
ZA=+-H 287,424 281,318 8,065 576,807
B
R_ZE=EWA—H 85,962 20,166 - 106,128
FEEEE 32,768 10,899 470 44,137
REslEES
BRZHEER 4,598 - - 4,598
dE— R E A A
2R (6,075) - - (6,075)
R-EEWE
ZA=+-H 117,253 31,065 470 148,788
FERE
RZEFNE
ZA=+-H 170,171 250,253 7,595 428,019
RZEF=F
=A=+-4 266,721 71,152 - 337,873
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17.

XEB2HBEHR
ME-BERRE
TR BER RE-£8
g3 - EE ET RE k|
T Fi# T Tk FiET FiET F#ET
ZEE
WAESHE
W_EEZE
mA—H 48 846 43,569 2971 84212 7892  187.490
AR 331 - - 3,473 9 3,813
B - - - 16,518 1,208 17,726
HE (3,155) - - (6,061) (3,047)  (12,263)
R-ZFEZME
ZA=t—H 46,022 43,569 2,971 98,142 6,062 196,766
iR
MAE 17,815 43,569 2,971 98,142 6,062 168,539
- E
i (& 28,207 - - - - 28,207
46,022 43,569 2,971 98,142 6,062 196,766
FEREBS
RBE
R_EEZEZE
mA—H 9.617 37,867 2,955 48,538 4401 103,378
I 7 - - 2,682 4 2,693
A A 1,012 1,470 7 15,968 1,175 19,632
4 I B (2,056) - - (4,456) (1,928) (8,440)
W oEENE
=B=+—H 8,580 39,337 2,962 62,732 3,652 117,263
RERE
W_FEENE
ZA=+—8H 37,442 4232 9 35,410 2,410 79,503
R_FEZE
=g=+-+H 39,229 5,702 16 35,674 3,491 84,112
AEEZ T REFERE:
“EEME ZEEB=ZF
F T F T
FwE IR
g AN RLAE (THE])

Hit# w2z F A % 25,050 25,978
NeaBzkAEEYE 12,392 12,151
PREFZ FHAFE 2 ) - 1,100

37,442 39,229
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15.

16.

B E

—EENE —BE=E
Fit T FitoT

R EAT — ZFF = F 8 R0

“EF T E) 3,206 -

HHE BT — R EFRESHEAL
TR E=EE) 8,015 -
11,221 -

FEEFRRER S (TEEBLRMAE) RARES ke Bl (ZFF =4
T2 EM) CBASBREREERFAF R G ETIIEE-

BREF (FE)

BREARBZR (BE) DIEAFEERF 13,300,000 7T (ZFEFE=F FH
648.620,000%%%%@@50 B AR B FE BB AT B A 2 N AE T Y #7164,239,677
B (& E =4:160,303,1748%) 5+ & -

FERZE FTTNEZA=Z+—HLEFEZERBERFEFIBRRAL
AEARTHEZ ERELEETHE FREZEEREZTEEaRER
Btz i AE -

HERE_FL=F=A=+tPLFEEZERBEEERREITEBREELL
AZBERETEETHE FERTHEZEBERETEHAERERED -

MBE_FEF=F=A=T—HLFEEERMNEEHFEF129 (&

Er) MBKEEREAERELAEMS HRE_FT=F=A=+
—HLEFEZEREAERIEERCE- AL TEEIGRESER-
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FEEzHBES

AEEZRB I HERASEATR A (ER) HRNT:

BRETIEBLRTHR A (RS 1R)

REBHERBEITSREZBIE
(ZEE=ZF:16%)
ELBE AR EREHELS
RIBHEHBWAZ BH &
NNk R
RERBREFEBZHEEE
i AR R HERR B H S 18
RERBELEFIEEE BB E
EHEMABRECHEERE
XA FEERER R AMERBIEER
MAFEZ (B8 KEBE
PREMEEEEREEZHEBEARAZ
RRIBRZ &
H Ath
12 B R IR ZE B TE A E

FEFEEHI S

—EEME —_FEE=F
F# T T T
121,639 (570,474)
21,286 (91,276)
15,233 9,021
(2,113) (34,407)
28,594 60,068

641 9,392
(18,495) (24,706)
- 8,965
(11,270) -
(10,450) -
(112) 141
3,001 98,654
1,518 189
13 -
27.846 36,041

A 6 O R B VAR v AR A T TR R R R RRBE i ) 2 Bk KR

ZHUEEIRIEE-

FHENERUERNEEERBAIEHERITS (CEEZH:16%) FHHE -
NZBE=ZFARA FEHNEBREN _EEZ= ZEZNEHETH16%
WE175% - WEMZPECOR __FFNFEFZA=+T—HZEERELE®

R

HEHEMFEEERNELA L EREARAEEEREZBTH R -
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Fris %X i

HRFHLIA

THITEH
BHEFEZ (B NEEBE
& Sh

EERLIE (Kf5£34)
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[H fi 2R 2 )

o
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—BIMF —BF=F
F i 5% F % 5%

(BEF)

(112) 141
46,378 31,773
46,266 31,914
(20,810) 286
13 -
(20,797) 286
2,377 3,841
27,846 36,041
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13.

WEZBMEn R T IAR:

£ £ 1,000,000% T

1,000,001% 7T % 1,500,000% 7T
1,500,001% JT % 2,000,000% 7T
2,000,001% 7T & 2,500,000% JC
3,500,001 7T & 4,000,000% 7T

AEFEWEAFPTEETNBLFRTEEI N E M-

EEAH

—gEme

10

= 251

10

FAEAAFETEALUERSHFAL (EFREERER) XM EAHME
VB 5 45 45 I B A B T B0 B A R AR 2 R B o % R AR R AR AT

] B 4 -
EEME

hiREFALCE-2EHE (CFFT=ZF MAEE) EMeHRCE
PR EX - AL (CERZ=ZF ZZ)RAHALZMEHHTOT:

R & M H AR
MERAHMZ RS
B ARAR A R UK

WEZMEs A TIIAHA:

2,000,001 7T F 2,500,000% 7T
3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000% 7T
3,500,001 7T £ 4,000,000%: ¢
5,500,001%5 7T £ 6,000,000% 7T
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—_EENE —BE=F

F ¥ T T # T

9,788 8,802

3,307 1,064

381 50

13,476 9,916
BEEAE

—EENFE ZEE=F

2 1
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rXEB 2B ER

10.

11.

12,

WE- N AR BB REFE

NEBEEEFEZZFZA=Z=+-HLEEERN ALFAEELE —HBEELA
AZMBERELREFEF B REBZHEAAREAZBHEZREE
(ENAEEERBEFIAEE ZHELFATEREETEMAH
MiRE RS- BBEA TN - ZHE L R REEBRTHREER
EHEH C T 104,585,000 T2 BEER - T Ee REA W R R PR -

HEMBLAARBEQATN 2 RHEFH

—EBRFE —RE=F
T# T T# T

O — [ T B F AL R 2 IR A 28,594 -
WHRABHEREATREZEEEFR (16,935) -
HEHMBARZ (BHE) I (1,282) 25

10,377 25
BEEMS

—RTME -FT=F
F#E T

EEMEE _ _
HibBH & (BITES)
ek HAEF 4,952 7,175
R AR AE R EH B 2 130 378
5,082 7,553
AT — & BT 2 B A M
AN H] -~ -
AN F 22 Mt B S A 625 -
5,707 7,553
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BERR (BR)

L F (BER) B (FFA)

EIRA (BREFEME)
Fr S H A A8 F
B PR R A ET B K

IS e
mEYEGESH (BFETEMIA)
E IR LY SR Tk
—HEHE
—RIEMEENREZERE

o+ B OR Y A

T & B

FE W R S

e R RE T R A

1% BT BH
Hp#REZESH (R BREH
HE YR A LR R

MBEHR

/EﬁAﬁiﬁq%gtféﬁZ%%ﬂ%
—MITERREX
—/ﬂ;ﬁﬁié
—MERLY

WANLERNTHERZBTERFE

— 33 -

—E2EENME —FEEB=-F
F it T F it
170,261 151,729

3,160 3,854
173,421 155,583
44,137 14,338
19,298 20,816
334 455
63,769 35,609
3,208 36,534
16,653 22,056
5,300 2,429
24,679 12,277
9,204 7,003
(3,975) 83,926
696 3,373

“EENE ST =F

F T F T

12,070 10,458
13,229 20,360
587 244
554 607
26,440 31,669
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Hp B WA G FIEE :

1B 5 38

F B A

Pris B EZ REH KR FH
HEREEHZ IR FHE
HEHEMEREZ i
ENFEY S PN

HAUgA

HtEEM<

W E—HMEL A EEZFEZEERR
MR g RERERFH

R 1A 8 5 R UUOR B i K

VI Ha L REREZER

-32 -

—EENE ZBE=F
F# T FH# T
31,467 18,974
22,728 38,646
16,829 -
9,577 -
5,660 -
3,363 5,262
2,722 3,063

—EEME —ZSB=F
F T F T
4,598 -

- 26,482
- 10,821
- 1.305
4,598 38,608
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AEBZHBEN

5|

AEHERMARNEMES TER AR RBNET - HEETERES
HidtEER REFEEIEREE: '

ALBZHERAZMBHGIRTTNT RELR/RE R
WENSEERA

—EENE —BE=fF
F T F T

= 4,222,099 3,483,037
B 564,896 484,362
Fi 35,836 70,618
FE M 51,312 25,917
B 38,986 41,617
H A ' 96,801 57,253

5,009,930 4,162,804

TR B Y AR KB L IR T (E R % 5 T BT R 2 [ (B
RO

TREEZ MR -BER
A [ REHEE
“E2EENE ZZ2FZHF ZFTTONF —FBZ=F
T # T Ti# T TF#TT T # T

i 1,248,216 1,265,517 1,742 4,359
itz 1,180,872 905,828 10,944 10,843
B M 392,483 184,075 - 4,717 4,080
= 253,034 291,384 234 124
Hith 405,132 269,756 89 41

3,479,737 2,916,560 17,726 19,447

B 4 TE B % R A A TE B AR O 0 B A b 38 40 B > BB {5 428,019,000 0T
(ZEF=4:337,873,0008 70 REY)) z BV & E 5 35,480,000% 7T (=
FE=H:13,298,000i 70 WHEF)) T EXEBEEERIARETEERE
RE{ED*-
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rEBE
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AERER

2E
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RN
HEEF

Ao EREE

H &
P 22 HE N
EARMEE
kD&
. e 72 9 (A 85 18
HAbFEB £ X

EREAEE
EREZ
T # T

HEET
EmES
F# T

1,395,363 983

883,844 -

Cy-Ric)

EmES
T#T

(FEEY)

199,590
15,810
33,657

76,669

HHEER
FETT

193,920

l

Mg
T# T

3,637
1,952
324,592
5,706

Re
F#T
(REES)

1,590,266
271,362
902,980
503,123

3,267,731

883,844
417,468
62,254

1,363,566

)
F# T
(2 E3)

199,590
19,447
35,609

324,592
82,375
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B0 ER

—EBECHK
W &R
ERER HEBEEF

ERE5 ERES BHEE 7e
F# T F i TT F# T F T
(HEY)

HER
ShET B & 2,975,181 1,109,617 78,006 4,162,804
DEESE 97,875 20,177 (110,408) 7,644
BB IR A 38,646
FAEAER X (38,644)
M EESZ WEERER 7,646
HEHFEHEZHEER (323,287)
meEE (315,641)
% E H (31,669)
FE {1k 5 8 N B S 5K (32,397)
WE—HMBEELAAELEZHEZHEEE (104,585)
HEMBEAGZ N EHE 25
BERE MBS AR ELAZHE (6,612)
TS B (79,595)
TS H A ER (570,474)
g L 36,041
R LEBREEERER (606,515)
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BEEEX
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1,561

BHEH
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198,065

16,946
61,640

17,972

EHEER
T# 7T

132,964

2

Fi# T

208,760

4,598
780
2,129
4,598
24,820

me
Ti# T

2,244,062
906,409
188,890

603,875

3,943,236

1,110,026
356,980

197,892

1,664,898
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208,760
198,065

4,598
17,726
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42,792




B &% —

X&EH

ZHBER

ERXEuEo

MBALEBRMABERE AEEREXFIELHTEREL A D

FhARERSEBN-

E k|
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—EENE
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ERES ERES RHEEE Se

FiE T F ¥ T F#ETT F # T
REE
G ER &Y B 3,737,278 1,237,703 34,949 5,009,930
THEES 206,695 21,881 20,804 249,380
A E WA 22,728
o B 2B T (43,292)
28 5 5 F 228,816
% E E (26,440)
FE Ak B AN Al 4R (73,463)
HEWB AR XS AT Z WG FHE 10,377
BECHW B S N EE 2R (17,651)
B B 45 B A i A 121,639
FRAS B S 27,846
FE A BORE B 15 BT F 93,793
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LEHEY
MEEERAAEM 2R AHBEAOBMKESEERRSERT K-
BRER G BMN
SO T AR OB IR AR B FH I 2 SROE B B8 R B 4 B S 4B

4. EHEE

BERBENALZBETIHHEFZEGRENHMEFRBEZERZOWR
FEUCE RSB A R B an T

—EENE —BB=F
Fi#T T

HERR 4,974,981 4,084,798
HEEE 34,949 78,006

5,009,930 4,162,804
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FEE2HBESR

o
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MERGEAHHEMER LETUANZ ERER I AEBENXBEEE
RAMBEEH B 2 ERRE R WIH B B SRR R E - B
EAELERE (WH) IERA UBAKREEINE R MBEE - ZFEREE
BRHEEBPHERS AKX

Bl
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